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veyadiAaryniunasivu
Financial Highlights

ruog : anuun

Unit : THB Million

wads:=naun1s dnsanisiJasunlag (CREED)
Operating Results Change (Percent)
2558 2559 2560 2559/2558 2560/2559
2015 2016 2017 2016/2015 2017/2016
108Us:AUNEAOSU Gross written premium 1,851 1,975 2,157 9.2
IUEJUSﬂUﬂEJmOSUE]ﬂS Net written premium 1,828 1,950 2,137 6.7 9.6
Alsnoun@ Profit before tax 478 390 542 (18.4) 39.0
n1sans Net profit 389 322 436 (17.2) 35.4
AlsansFoU (UN) Net profit per share (THB) 0.65 0.54 0.73 (16.9) 35.2
10gUs:=Nunmoasuans (aauuin) nlsans (aauun)
Net Written Premiums (THB Million) Net Profit (THB Million)
2,137 436
1,828 150 383
1,607 372
| i
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

MUQw : auuIn
Unit : THB Million

gIUzNISIVU U Suzul SmsanasiUdounday (CREED)
Financial Position at the End of Year Change (Percent)
2558 2559 2560 2559/2558 2560/2559
2015 2016 2017 2016/2015 2017/2016
aunSweisou Total assets 2,025 2,053 2,397 16.8
HUAUSIW Total liabilities 743 740 854 (0.4) 15.4
NUISENENS:IAD Share capital issued and paid-up 600 600 600 - -
RuUNaINUKSadouUVeuTiorU Capital funds or sharenolders’ equity 1,282 1,313 1,543 2.4 17.5
UanARumIuUnYG (UNFiorRU) Book Value per Share (THB) 2.14 2.19 257 2.3 17.4
Nuduwa (UINEBKU) Dividend per Share (THB) 0.50 0.40 0.50 (20.0) 25.0
dunswesou (aauunn) IunoJynursSogouvouyfioAu (druun)
Total Assets (THB Million) Capital Funds or Shareholders’ Equity (THB Million)
2,397
1079 2025 e o
1.082 1,313
| I l l | l1 190 l
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)



rHuog : Sogas
Unit : Percent

dmMs1doun1unisiuu

Financial Ratios

2558 2559
2015 2016

INSIMISENSMOS1UIASOU Return on revenue 20.5 15.6 19.9
SnsWAnaUINUABITOUS:UAUMOSUANS Return on net written premium 21.3 16.5 20.4
dmnsansuInuAadauveIlfioru Return on equity 31.4 24.8 305
ONSIWAMNDUINUINNAUNSWESOU Return on assets 19.4 15.8 19.6
HNSIWANDUINUINNNNSAINU Return on investment 3.6 53 4.6
dnsdousouAdulrunAINuIa:ATEINSTUNISANITUINU Combined ratio 76.1 84.6 777

dmsawanoulinusodouvouwonu (Sovar)

Return on Equity (Percent)

SmstwamnouINUYINFUNSWESOU (Sova:x)

Return on Assets (Percent)

24.2

2556 2557 2558 2569 2560
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

SmsawamouInuYIINNISaJINU (Sovas)

Return on Investments (Percent)

2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
dmsndousounidulhnunainunazAligonsiu
n1IsAMIGUYIU (Sowax)

Combined Ratio (Percent)

2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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dnsonnssunisia:goiusenasing

Letter to Shareholders

ISOU - Whonru

Ut w.A. 2560 10uURTNSIVAgUIUadUranga Uy
UssinAlINglUd9:10unmUVaIAIAUKSONWANUIASWIND SOU
SauloungvoINNIASINLIWANAUTAUSINAININES:UURINA
UINVU G08A01USOUDOVaININIASTIaNIAIDNEUIWOROUAUDY
rlonnsilasuilagvedyusinalugndaguu Bov:Aulimnnnisu
viruunlnsamisingnaust 4.0 TAlusUsssuunnvuludRwnuwb 1So
nsiNsatiuauunay Startup NAAGI9:ENUNSNASWUSToBU
[ATusunAR dmrsurulAsyyNawUIIAsHINaUsINAlNgog U
B00VaINSWUDOEENMIUANID:IASEIARIAN NSVENUovay
GDP dmsSul w.A.2560 aunsnvegaoUds:-uinusosa: 3.9
INdIABINURAIANISAU I1a:USUIVU9INTou SsTaUs:AUEIm
[ngTud 2560 Tans1NsIUlRUS:uIUSoYa: 5.9 TIJuUs:UNY
5USOUNVAU 601,725 81UUNN

[udouvaduamsenitussNaSUUSAUNYADAUUS:AU
Fomvouussniul 2560 wudnusBNTIJuUs:Aungsosuansnio
Jusgldsuou 2,097 aruuin wWUVuandneusesa: 6.7
\Jous:=nungsantoJusieldannnisus:Aungsominy
(Conventional Reinsurance) ¥1Uou 1,150 d70U7nN
anadnUnousosa: 3.0 1az1uusouwrIUN (Non-Conventional
Reinsurance) AMUNMSUSTAUEIN uUs:noumouniIsUs:AUEIn
Ussinnandry nisUs=nuaurBoniossnola:auidoiwonagond
la=N1sUsS:AUEINNEUIILOU 519 a1uun anadvindnau
Soga: 4.1 nazenuUsNuaUAIKAIA=EVIIWILOU 428 aUUIn
WuvuvInUnousSeua: 78.8 soulJuiloUs:Aungsonuu
SOUWRULNFNUOU 947 dnuunn IWUVUINUnisusSosa: 21.3 [ng
UandouBoUs:AungFoIuUAUIAUIAsIUUSOUWEUUNOYN 55:45
iAounudndoudnousyn 60:40

91NWaNSANTUNUAINAITUIUMUILIUAGNIS 1057
U0V AWULUIUSBNY:=AoVILBYNUTRIUNIBIVINIA BIAU
Tunangsu 1dn9:10uanna:ams1neniDusn Suduns:nuiBuau
AUNSaINUYOIUSEN KSoMsIUagulagdnsimsusausing
2560 (TMO 2017) AUNMSUs:MATEINEUNIUANNSSUNTS
AnNuIa:auiasuNIsUs:NaussnaUsAuny (AUN.) lulisiounuengu
AWIULT 1a:9:1EUlAF1aMsINSIBUIRNTSSUUSAUAYFDIUY
SOUWRULNDENSINSIAUIAIWUY ULINN3INNSSUUSAUSERIuU
AYIAY 10e99INNagNsHaNveIUsSENAeNISLNILUNSAOUALDY
Ao wFAoINIsYauanANdunaniwolkianAnlasuUs:lusuogny
117950 1a:1JuNSIWUANUAIUNSOTUNTSINGTUYVEIUSBNENEoY
TUOAWIUUINNUSENGIAIUIILTUNISS JUWRIUNWARATUTT
Js=nugdndnsuyguony nazus:nugvniwsounuusyn

swinuls=9d 2560
usun IngsUs:NUsdIn 910/ (UHIBU)

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2017 was the year of changes for Thailand
inboth social and economic aspects, including the government
policy on pushing forward Thailand to enter into the digital
systems. This policy, which was supported by both public and
private sectors to respond to customers’ changes, enhanced
the focus on developing Thailand 4.0 Project during the past
year as well as supporting startup groups to increase benefits
in the future. The economy of Thailand, however, was slowly
recovered along with global economic condition. The GDP
growth for 2017 was almost the same rate as forecast at
3.9 percent, higher than the growth in previous year; while
the growth rate for Thai life insurance business was
approximately 5.9 percent, with total written premiums of
THB 601,725 million.

For life reinsurance business in 2017, the revenue of
THREL from net earned premiums amounted to THB 2,097
million, which was 6.7 percent increased from previous year.
The earned premiums were from Conventional Reinsurance
totaling THB 1,150 million, 3.0 percent decreased, and
Non-Conventional Reinsurance, which included ordinary life
insurance, commercial and housing credit insurance and group
life insurance, totaling THB 519 million, 4.1 percent decreased;
while the amount of accident and health insurance was THB
428 million, 78.8 percent increased. Total Non-Conventional
Reinsurance increased by 21.3 percent from last year to THB
947 million. The ratio of premiums from Conventional
Reinsurance versus Non-Conventional Reinsurance was 55:45,
compared to 60:40 in the previous year.

The abovementioned performance was according to
the Company’s plan; no matter it faced many aspects of
positive or negative factors. The negative factors were low
interest rate, which had negative impact on THREL's
investment; and the change of mortality rate in the Thai
Mortality Table 2017 (TMO 2017), announced by the Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC) in late September. The growth
rate of Non-Conventional Reinsurance was increased more
than that of Conventional Reinsurance due to THREL's core
strategy that focused onresponse to customers’ needs for their
true benefit, which also helped increase the Company’s
competitive advantage. During last year, THREL still put an

emphasis on cooperating with other life insurance companies



Us=Auddn WosoaSunisivagdunutasonglnuauysnivod
Us:InAlNe (Aged Society) Ia-nouduadulounonisanragounis
NUsUavNWARDWauIAUTEIdunSaisntul w.A.2560 riTli
UsENe Didods=nungsioduavnwvodtd w.A.2560 MUTUSoy
a: 84.2 [Jaifgunulnou UsNYINATUWENLIURY:LIITUNTS
WHJUNWARNNUZISOUTIUSNNSSUUS:NUNUADAUEDR USBNIAIA]
IRunOWEAATYVEINISIWIUIoNEN WS SATUS:g:n0rTKUSIN
[FUN1ssouaInuNIsUs:NoussiaUs:NudIntuaisisusy
UsznsUlngUssuuand dunndnusenusnugdniinlndo:
AunsnIsUssARIFMUTUT w.A. 2561

nisiAulnvoyusenlASUNIsaduayuanygtornu
WUSDNSNISSTIY ACUINSSUNISUSEN lIa=msniuinUgusinuin
VOUWINUUNNS=AUrTKUSENTNUAIVUITaIa:0uledn9:887
ADWITSTYMOKLNVagdFnsTRaudUsiolU

wuvonaovountusionnritunsouidudountiuvoy
AOUIFSIYNIOKUNVOIUSENIA:US:aUn0UESIA08FUNIRY
naonu ru Tomad

L

(UNgaNs SINSIASSH)
NSSUNISIIAsWauouNslkiny

to jointly develop life insurance for seniors and health insurance
products in order to support Thailand’s Aged Society as well
as respond with Tax Deduction from Health Insurance Policy,
which was initially enforced in 2017. As a result, the health
reinsurance premiums of THREL in 2017, compared to previous
year, were increased by 84.2 percent. Apart from the effort to
focus on product development, including life reinsurance
service, THREL also realized the importance of increasing
long-term business opportunity, which resulted in investment
in setting up a new joint life insurance company in Lac PDR.
The newly opened life insurance company was expected to
start operating in 2018.

With the support of shareholders and directors,
business partners, and hard-working employees at all levels,
the Company will continue to grow and maintain a strong
market position resulting in sustainable prosperity.

I sincerely thank you everyone for being a part of this
special and accomplishment operation. On behalf of everyone
at Thaire Life, we are excited for the future of the company and
all of the possibilities it may hold.

(Mr.Sutti Rajitrangson)

Director and President

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



ANUZNSSUNISUSEN

Board of Directors

UN8EUR NOUNA (ong 81 U)

Mr. Suchin Wanglee (age 81)

Us:zsaunssunas lias nssunisadnu

URlSUNsIFofdunssunis: s.A. 2542

dndounnsiionu: Soga: 0.22

ATUDAISUEANIINISANLA :

DAINSSUANARNSUINUAR (DFONSSUIWWA)

Northrop Institute of Technology drnSyoIUSN

n1sousu/duuunlnedauinudaiasuaniou

nssunasusuning (I0D) :

«  Chairman 2000/2544

« Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2544

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2545

« Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2556

mseusu/e‘luuméﬁuq :

e KANANSINYINISUSTUAYS:AUZ] (0UA.) SUf 2
nlneddnuiu aun.

+  MANGNSLYUSHISS:AUZIATUNISUSHISUIUWRIL
1J0J “uniuns” InganuuwsuNidoy

+  MANGNSWYUSHISS:AUZUAIUNISATIATNISWICUBY
[nyanIuudNgINISAN

«  HANFNSWUSKISS:MUZIANIUUONYINISHATINNU
(0MN.) SUM 9 lnganUuUdNYINSHAANU

Us:zaunisninasniunu :

usSuNYAN:I08U

5..2542 —J990U  Us:s1unssuns uue. [NgsUs:-NUEIm

W.A.2559 — J990U  NSSUNISadnu uu9.Ingsus:nuson

2544 - J99Uu US=SIUNSSUNIS UL9.U0N9Us:AUNgY

2550 — Jo9UU AUSNUNACUENSSUNISUSNS AUSNUN
ANUNSSUNNSAINU UUR.U0ARUSNUNg

2553 - Uv9Uu SOUUS:8IUNSSUNS
uuv.anarnssutvlar:ing

2552 - U99Uu Us:sunssunsiruamAImauInuiia:

Assn uuv.anannssunilan:ing

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Chairman and Director of Investment

Committee

Date of Appointment: December 1999

Shareholding: 0.22 percent

Education :

B.E. (Electrical),

Northrop Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association (I0OD) :

«  Chairman 2000/2001

«  Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2001

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2002

«  Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2013

Others Training Courses :

» Advanced Insurance Science, Class 2, by OIC.

»  Executive Management “Urban development”,
Urban Green Development Institute.

« Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade
by University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
/2015 By the University of the Thai Chamber of
Commerce

«  Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital
Market Academy

Experience :

Listed Company

Dec 1999 — present  Chairman, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2016 — present Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2001 — present Chairman, Navakij Insurance PCL.

2007 — present Advisor of the Executive Board,

Advisor of the Investment Committee,

Navakij Insurance PCL.

Vice Chairman,

Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Chairman of the Remuneration and

2010 — present

2009 — present
Nominating Committee,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.



2554 —J990u
25653 - J990u
25655 - J990u

2556 — J990u

25653 - J990u

2537 —J990u

SOUUSISIUNSSUNIS U9 1asuay
NSSUNISDAS: UUY.1dSUY
US=81UANUSNSSUNISWANSIUN
ANROUINU UUY.185uay
NSSUNISNSIVADU U IasUdV

NSSUNNSIAS: NSSUNISMSIVADU

NSSUNISAssSHIIa=NKUAAINAUINU
uu9.0MI0a nSU loanad

NSSUNNSAAs: Uv.olsunsnd

0.9.2521 - N.W.2559 US:51UNSSUNIS NSSUNNSdas:

2512 - 2556

usunlulnann:dou

25657 —J990u

2550 - 2557

2550 - UJ990u
2525 - 790U
2534 —J990u
2548 — J990u

2511 = J990u
2531 - UJ990u
2533 - 2560

2549 - J990u

2550 - UJ990u
2536 — 2559

2542 - 2559

NssuNIsaunu uuv.Inasuds:Nunesio

NSSUNISDAs: UUY.INg-1g0SIJU 18s10A

auAans

AUZNW U9, Woanauus:Ausy

Us=sunssuns

UU9. Woanouus=nuny
Us=sunssunas uv. f.lo.[o.
Us=sUNSSuNIS Uv. 8185810
Us=81UNSSUNIS U9. Suanwans)
NSSUNNSAAS: UUY. [SUISUSIBAS

ASSUNNS U9, KUKA
NSSUNNS U9, 109:1WN
NSSUNTS U9. Uswa
NSSUNNS U9. KAWL

NSSUNIS U9, 911 BUWUN
NSSUNISWYANIS U9.W 49 BUfiSy
loun oalsiond

NSSUNISEIANIS UY. W [0 10 BUNISY

2011 —present
2010 — present
2012 — present

2013 — present

2010 — present

1994 — present

Vice Chairman, Sermsuk PCL.
Independent Director, Sermsuk PCL.
Chairman of the Compensation
Committee, Sermsuk PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Sermsuk PCL.

Independent Director,

Director of the Audit Committee and
Director of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee, BTS Group
Holdings PCL.

Independent Director,

Varopakorn PCL.

Jun 1978 - Feb 2016 Chairman, Independent Director,

1969 -2013

Director of the Investment Committee,
Thai Reinsurance PCL.
Independent Director,

Thai-German Ceramic Industry PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2014 — present

2007 - 2014

2007 — present
1982 — present
1991 — present
2005 — present

1968 — present
1988 — present
2533 — present
2006 — present

2007 — present
1993 -2016

1999 - 2016

Management Advisor,
Falcon Insurance PCL.

Chairman, Falcon Insurance PCL.

Chairman, T.1.I Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Sathorn Thani Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Rangsit Plaza Co., Lta.
Independent Director,

Rajadamri Hotel PCL.

Director, Wanglee Co., Ltd.
Director, The Pet Co., Ltd.
Director, Nuchaphol Co., Ltd.
Director, Wanglee Development
Co., Ltd

Director, Agua Infinite Co., Ltd
Managing Director,

P49 Interior and associates Co., Ltd.
Managing Director,

PIA interior Co., Ltd.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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U18dNs sIMSuASSA (ony 70 U)

Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson (age 70)

NSSUNTS NSsUNIsaJNu lla:zgonusunisiney

URlsunsisgaudunssuns: a.n. 2555

dndounnsiioru: Soga: 0.00

ANUDAISUEANIINISANLA :

WIUBgANanSUrUnRn (a0m) INusHtuY

QWIaINSOUUKNONeNay

n1sousu/duuuilneauinuduiasuaniou

nssunisusenline (I0OD) :

«  Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555

msousuléuum%ﬁuq :

- Fellow (FLMI) 91nan1JuniIsvnnIsAIuNIsUs:NuU
BOMNVOUanSYOIUSM

+  HANGASLUSKHISS-AUGIANIUUINYINISAAIANU
(0RN.) SUA 6 lnYanuuUdNYINISHaNANU

Us:zaunasniniasnavau :

usSBNYNN:IduU

a.n.2555 - 090U NSSUNIS lIa:a1uounsinny

uU9.IngsUs=nusom

NWw.2557 —J990u  NSSUNISAINU UU9.INgSUS:AUEIRN

usunlulnann:dgu

Director, Director of Investment Committee

and President

Date of Appointment: August 2012
Shareholding: 0.00 percent
Education :

B.S. Honor (Statistics), Chulalongkorn University

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association (IOD) :

«  Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012

Others Training Courses :

o Fellow (FLMI) (LOMA's Life Management Institute),
U.S.A.

«  Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital
Market Academy

Experience :

Listed Company

Aug 2012 — present Director and President Thaire Life

Assurance PCL.

Feb 2014 — present Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2556 - J99Uu NSsuUN1S U9.InuSisosdalsd

2539 - J99uu NSSUNNS duAuUSNUBInNINgY

2555 - J99Uu NSSUNMSUSKIS autAuUs:Nugoning
2553 - 2555 ugNauIAY aunAUUsNuganing
2544 - J99Uu nssuMs uv.n.lo.loEnuudsnunglng)
2550 - 2555 Senior Vice President U9. 191010 91110
2543 - 2554 General Manager Uv.10[010 9100

(Us=nudunAng) avadszinAlng

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

2013 — present
1996 — present

2012 —present

2010-2012

2001 — present

2007 -2012
2000 -2011

Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.
Director, the Thai Life Assurance
Association

Director, the Thai Life Assurance
Association

President, the Thai Life Assurance
Association

Director, Tl Co., Lta.

Senior Vice President, AIA Co., Ltd.
General Manager, AlA Co., Ltd. (Non-

Life Isurance) Thailand Branch



ns.nNoUs NNMEINSIU (o1g 78 U)

Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana (age 78)

NSsSUNISdas: Us=s1unNsSsSUNISmsovdaou
Js:saunssunasasskhiliazninunAInoulinu

UnAlsunsifanudunssuns: s.A. 2542

andounnstioniu: Soga: 0.00

ANUQAIGUEANIINISANYA :

wWandnufiuruzin Harvard University

Us:inAansyoIusn

n1sousu/duuuilagauinuduiasuaniou

nssuniIsusBnine (I0OD) :

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2544

«  Excellent Board Decision/2547

« Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2548

« DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2548

msausu/ﬁuumé"ﬁuq :

«  AUUUIANUNSSUNISASOREOUVOIUSENUS:NUNY
“IT Governance” Ingddnuiu AUN./2558

Us:zaunisninisniunu :

UsSBNYAN:IJoU

§.1.2542 - J99UU  NSsSUNISaAs: UU9.INgSUs:-NUEIM

W.e.2559 - J990U  US:s1UNSSUNISASIvaDU
Us:s1UNSSUNISASSHAlIa:NIHUnAN
MOUINU UUR.INegSUS:AUEIN

W.A.2557 - W.8.2559 NSSUNISKASOIE0U
U INusSUs=NUBEIm

N.W.2558 - W.8.2559 NSSUNISASSHIIANIHUA
AmouUINU
uUY. IngsUs:=Nuddm

1U.9.2532- 11U.9.2556 NsSSUNIs . Inosulds:Aungsio

Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Chairman of the Nominating

and Remuneration Committee

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education :

Ph.D. (Physics), Harvard University, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD) :

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2001
« Excellent Board Decision/2004

« Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2005

«  DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2005
Others Training Courses :

« “IT Governance” by OIC /2015

Experience :

Listed Company

Dec 1999 —present  Independent Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Nov 2016 —present  Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Chairman of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
May 2014- Nov 2016 Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Feb 2015 - Nov 2016 Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Apr 1989 - Apr 2013  Director, Thai Reinsurance PCL.

NSSUNIS NSSUNISUSSENAUNala: 2003 -2012 Director, Corporate Governance and

assh uuv. Uy

2546 - 2555
Nominating Committee, Banpu PCL.

usBnlulnvnn:I0gu Non-Listed Company

2543 - J99Uu AUSNW dNIUWEUIUNGNENANERS 2000 — present Advisor to the National Science and

lasinAlulagdinesim Technology Development Agency
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as.onsSnu Inwsuuna oy 74 )

Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul (age 74)

NSSUNISOds: NSSUNISASOV&EDU
lla:NsSsUNIsassKllazNIKUARINDOUIINU

URlFsUNSIFIANTUNSSUNTS: 8.A. 2542
andounnsiionu: - U0 -
ATUDAIGIEANIINISANYA
USsU1nuRonumnanfiuang
ANUUUUTINWRUUUSKHISANERNS
n1sousu/duuunlnuauinugduiasuaniiu
nssunasusuning (I0D) :

« Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555
Us:zaunisninisniunu :

uSuNYAN:ITuU

8.A.2542 - J990U  NSSUNNSas: Uuv.[nusUs:NuEom

1.A.2555 - J990U  NSSUNSASI9ADU UL INUSUS:AUEIRN

N.w.2558 - 090U NSSUNISASSHIla=nrunAInouInuU
uu9.IngsUs=NuEIN

usunlulpann:Uou

2547 - J99Uu NSSUNTS 1a:USsSUITKHUNAUSHIS
U9 Inads:NuEoR

2533 - Uv9Uu Us:81unssunis ub.Inads:Augvniw

2550 - Jv9Uu souUs:sUNSsSUNIS Uv.n.lo.1o.

2526 - Jv9Uu NSSUNIS I1A-NSSUNISUSKHAS Ay

Us=nugoning

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Independent Director, Director of Audit
Committee and Director of the Nominating

and Remuneration Committee

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: - None -

Education :

Ph.D. (Hon), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD) :

«  Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012
Experience :

Listed Company

Dec 1999 - present Independent Director, Thaire Life
Assurance PCL.

Oct 2012 —present  Director of the Audit Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Feb 2015 - present  Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Commiittee, Thaire Life

Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

2004 — present Director and Chief Executive Officer,
Thai Life Insurance PCL.
1990 — present

2007 —present

Chairman, Thai Health Insurance PCL.
Vice Chairman, Tl Co., Ltd.
1983 — present Director and Executive Director, The

Thai Life Assurance Association



ulgAuAYy §aS’1UUﬁ(O’1q 66 U)

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon (age 66)

NSSUNISSds: NSSUNISASIvEDU
lla:NsSsUNIsassKllazNIKUAARINOUIINU

URlASUNsIFIAdunssunis: n.A. 2559

andounnsiionu: - U0 -

ATUDAIGUEANIINISANUA :

WHJUNNISIASUINIUNIUNUTIR

ANUUUUTIAWRJUUSKHISANERS

n1sousu/duuunlnedauinuduiasuaniou

nssunasusuning (I0D) :

« Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2546

msousu/éuumé")'uq :

e KaNgnsongINISUSNUNYS:IUAT (0Ua.) Ing
dunanu Adn. /2554

«  HANFASWUSKHISSIAUAIANIUUINYINISAATNNU
(0mN.) InganIuudNeINISNANNNU /2550

«  nangnsnisUounusisoInuIvNSNIASYSoUIoN3U
(Uso.) IngdnenasJoanusisonnu1ins/2546

o HANFASNISWHAUUNUNUSKHISS-AUED (UUA.) [ng
ANNUUWRUIVISIBNISWAISOU

Us:zaunisninisniunu :

usENYnN:IdoU

N.A.2559 = J99UU  NSSUNISDas: U9, [NgSUS-NUEIR

W.9.2559 - U99UU  NSSUNISKSI9d0U
NSSUNISASSHIIIA:NIHUAATIMNOUINU
UUR. [ngsUs:Nugon

NSSUMS 1a:5NHINISNSSUNIS
WINNISIHOY NSSUNISUSKNS
NSSUNISAUNU UUY.NSIINWUSIUBIR

N.A.2559 — J990U

W.8.2556 — U990U  US:S1UNSSUNISMnAURIiafionIsn

UU9.NSUINWUS:NUZIM
10.9.2557 - U99UU  NSSUNNSUSHNSADIUIZEN ULU9.NSIINW
Us=Nugan

IU.8.2556 - 1.8.2559 NSSUN1S9as: NSSUNISASIIADY
UU9.NSUINWUS:NUZIM

usunlulnann:dgu
-IUo-

Independent Director, Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of the Remuneration

and Nominating Committee

Date of Appointment: July 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education :

Master of Development Economics

National Institute of Development Administration

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association (IOD) :

« Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2003

Others Training Courses :

«  OIC Advance Insurance Program, Class of 1/2011
by OIC

»  Certificate of Executive Program, Class of 7, by
Capital Market Academy

« Top Executive Program, Class of 34, Civil Service
Development Institute

«  Certificate of National Defense Course, National
Defense College, Class of 17/2003

Experience :

Listed Company

Jul 2016 — present  Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Nov 2016 — present Director of the Audit Committee,
Director of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee, Thaire Life
Assurance PCL

Jul 2016 —present  Director, Acting President,

Executive Director / Member of the

Investment Committee,Bangkok Life

Assurance PCL.

Nov 2013 —present Chairman of the Good Corporate
Governance Committee,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.

Apr 2014 —present  Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Bangkok Life
Assurance PCL.

Apr 2013 = Jun 2016 Independent Director, Director of
the Audit Committee, Bangkok Life
Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

-None-

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ‘IO
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ms.as lunv:zioa (ong 42 7)

Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa (age 42)

NSSUN1Sdds:

UAlSUNSIFIANTUNSSUNIS: W.g. 2559

dndounnsiioru: -lU0-

ATUOAIEEANIINISANLA

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial

College, London Us:INADINOY

nisousu/duuunlnugauinudaiasuaniou

nssunasusening (I0OD) :

« Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2559

nsousu/duLuUdun :

¢ MANGNSONYINISUSNUNYS:RIUAY (0Ua.) sun 2 lng
dundgnu Adn./ 2555

«  HANGNSINUINISNAIANU (0KN.) suf 24 Inganiu
INYINISHANANU / 2560

Us:zaunasninisnaviu :

uSuN9RN:IdoU

W.9.2559 — Jo9uu  NSSUNISAs: ul9.INgsUs:NuBIRn

2549 - J99Uu NSSUNISUSHISAOUIGEN
AUSNUINSSUNSLINNS
uu.1Jouingus:Nuny

2552 - J99Uu NSSUNIS NSSUNISUSKNS l1as

AUSNUINSSUNSLINNS
UU9.ANSABY

usunlulnann:0ou

2560 - U99Uu ACUENSSUNNSENUOENIS AugnoUITU
IBAATUACINANERNS ACUONYIANENS
UH1ONEagunna

2560 - J99uu NSSUNISUSEN
U9. Widg 1puasintna

2546 - J99Uu SOUNSSUNISInNIsanala
UL 1JouINgUS-NUEIR

2559 - J9yUu NSsSUN1S ST-Muang Thai Insurance
Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR)

2552 - Jo9uu SOUUSESIUANUZOUNSSUNISUSHIS

IANNISADUIAL FUNSANLN
auAuUs=nugoning

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Independent Director

Date of Appointment: November 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education :

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial

College, London, UK

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association (IOD) :

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2016

Others Training Courses :

« Advance Insurance Program, Class of 2 by
OIC/2012

«  Capital Market Academy Program, Class of 24 by
Capital Market Academy/2017

Experience :

Listed Company

Nov 2016 — present lindependent Director, Thaire Life
Assurance PCL.

2006 — present Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Advisor of Managing
Director, Muang Thai Insurance PCL.
2009 — present Director, Member of the Risk
Management Committee, Executive
Director, Advisor of Managing

Director, Phatra Leasing PCL.
Non-Listed Company

2017- present IBoard of Directors, Centre of
Excellence in Mathematics,

Faculty of Science, Mahidol University
Director, Fuchsia

Venture Capital Co., Ltd.

Senior Executive Vice President,

2017- present

2003 - present
Muang Thai Life Assurance PCL.

2016 — present Director, ST- Muang Thai Insurance

Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR)

2009 - present Vice President of Risk Management

Committee, Education, The Thai Life

Assurance Association.



2549 — J930U AUSNNAOUIBIFURnaNAIa:
AUANTWAED ANUZANIIU
IJagaunsweJurtiau Anuzriou
Mortgage Insurance ACU=N WU ALM
System Implementation
SUNAISOIANSANINSTH

2550 - Uv9Uu
2556 AU TUWAIUNIIUONWNNSANSINIU

NssuMs Isuisguayuianinin

NOINUANUSAUADIAEN (RBC) S:6:1
2 &0nuu AN,

UIJEN21UDA ISOUSAUIUS (o1g 42 T)

Advisor to the Market Risk
and Liquidity Risk/

Mortgage Insurance Committee/

2006 — present

ALM System Implementation
Committee, Government Housing
Bank
2007 — present
2013 Risk Based Capital Tier2
Development Committee, OIC

Director, Kukai Kindergarten School.

Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee (Age 42)

NSSUNIS llazgyouorudunisingy

Unlsisunsistogilunssunis: n.A. 2559

dndounnsiionu: - 10

ANUQAISUEANIINISANUA :

USHISSSNIUNIUNUTIR UKM1ONgNauaadusny

n1sousu/duuuilngauinudviasuaniou

nssunisusuning (I0OD) :

«  Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

mseusu/a‘uuméluq :

+  rangmns TLCA Executive Development Program
(EDP) sufi 17 TngaurAuustnenn:iJoulng
(TLCA) / 2560

. KANGNSUNUSHISS:AUD "SSSUANansIWodonu”
(Uus.) In8Yatsan1uudNeINISSSSUANENS
WoduAu / 2559

+  Kangms Senior Executive Program (SEP)
[ngaNIUUUNIANUSKNSSSNVAAUNSIKIgWIAINSHU
UHDNeNas / 2556

Uszaunasninasnavau :

usSBNYNN:IdoU

N.A.2559 — 990U NSSUNNS UUY. INgSUS:AUBIR

2556 - J99Uu Woouauounsined
U9, INgsUs:nugan

2550 - 2556 JIUOUNISLNYWEIUNSSNIVT
uu9.Ingsus:Nugan

2548 - 2550 SONNOAVI R NNAT]
U9, INgsUs:nugan

2547 — 2548 Yoo uouMsthy

UUR. IngsUs:Nugon
usunlulnann:dgu
-TUD -

Director and Senior Vice President

Date of Appointment: July 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education :

M.B.A., Assumption University of Thailand

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of

Directors Association (IOD) :

«  Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

Others Training Courses :

«  TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP),
Class of 17 by Thal Listed Company Association
(TLCA) /2017

«  Executive Management “Thammasat for Social”

by Thammasat Science Institute Foundation / 2016

. Senior Executive Program (SEP) by Sasin
Graduate Institute of Business Administration of
Chulalongkorn University / 2013

Experience :

Listed Company

Jul 2016 — present

2013 — present

Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Senior Vice President,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business
Development 1, Thaire Life Assurance
PCL.

2005 -2007 Deputy Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2004 — 2005 Assistant Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company
- None -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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UUNBNS osSSruanme (ong 43 U)

Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit (age 43)

NSSUNIS llazyouo1udunisikny

URlAsUNSIFgATuUNssUNTS: n.A. 2559
dandounstionu: - WU -
ATUOAIGIEANIINISANYA :

NISYNNISUKITNUZIR ATVINISIANISSSAY (NIA

NIWIDINNY) DNYUIFUNISINNISUKIINENaUURNA

n1sousu/duuuilagauinuduiasuaniou

nssunisusuning (I0OD) :

»  Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

msousu/é'uumﬁluq :

+  rangmns TLCA Executive Development Program
(EDP) SuR 10 IngaunAuusEnann: Doulng
(TLCA) /2555

«  HANANSWFIUNUNUSKAS (EDP) Sl 11 lnoyads
AnNUUIVYUIEUNUIASHYNINISAAT /2558

+  Kangms Senior Executive Program (SEP) Suﬁ 24
[neanuudnUINUSKHISSSNVARAUNSIKUYWIAINS U
UKHoNeNas / 2553

«  nandms Academy of Business Creativity (ABC) SU
A 1 [nguraNeNagAsUnu

Us:aunisninisniunu :

usSuNYAN:ITuU

N.A.2559 —J990U  NSSUNIS Ub9. NgsUs-NuEon

2556 - U99Uu WEouwouogNsivny
uu9. INgsUs:=Nuzdm

2550 - 2556 WOUDUNISLNEWRILNSSN2
uuv.IngsUs=nusIm

2548 - 2550 soUoU0uMSWIY
uu9. INgsUs:=nuzdm

0547 - 2548 WEouWaNUogNISUNe

uu9. IngsUs:NusEomn
usunlulnann:zdgu

-l -

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Director and Senior Vice President

Date of Appointment: July 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education :

M.M., (International Program), College of
Management Mahidol University (CMMU)
Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (I0OD) :

»  Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560
Others Training Courses :

«  TLCA Executive Development Program by

Experience Association: Thailand/2012

«  Executive Development Program (EDP) by Fiscal
Policy Research Institute Foundation /2015

«  Senior Executive Program (SEP) by Sasin
Graduate Institute of Business Administration of
Chulalongkorn University / 2013

« Academy of Business Creativity program (ABC)
Class of 4 by Sripatum University

Experience :

Listed Company

Jul 2016 —present  Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2013 —present Senior Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business

Development 2,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
2005 -2007 Deputy Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
2004 - 2005 Assistant Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

- None -



AfUWUSHIS

Management

Uu1va10asuns sssuaunsnl (o1g 40 U)

Ms. Sirin Dhummaupakorn (age 40)

lavaunNIsusen la:ganusunisueunyd
na=N1siju

dndounistionu: -Iuid-
ATUDAIGUEANIINISANLA :
INYANENSUKITNUZIR davINISHU
ADU=WICUBYANENSIANISUNYT
QWIAINSOUUKIONENaY
Us:zaunasninasnivau :

usENYnN:IdoU

2560 - Ja9uu auouNIsheUnyBia:nIsiiu
uw9.IngsUs:Nugan
2553 - 2556 WyouauouMsugUnyd uuv.Ingsu

Us=Aunomo
usunlulnann:Uou

2558 - J99UU NSSUNISUSEN U9.100S 11oA10863

UmJandondyun n'ltyououriqeﬁ
(01gy 44 U)

Secretary and Vice President - Accounting

and Finance

Shareholding: - None -
Education :

M.S., Finance, Chulalongkorn University

Experience :
Listed Company
2017 —present Vice President — Accounting and
Finance Department, Thaire Life
Assurance PCL.

2010-2013 Assistant Vice President — Accounting

Department, Thaire Insurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

2015 — Present Director, SR Advisory

Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

(Age 44)

wouounisugaunu

dndounnsiionu: Soga: 0.00
ANUQAIGUEANIINISANYA
USHNISSSNUMIUNUAR 8 vIN1Siiu
anUuUUINWRJUUSKISANENS
Us:zaunasninasnaunu :
usSuNYN:IdoU

2555 - J99uu Wonuounstgadnu
UU9.INgSUSNUBIA
2538 - 2555 Wynnistigainu

U IngSuUSNUNUFD

usunlulnonn:Uau

Vice President - Investment

Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education :

M.B.A. (Finance), National Institute of

Development Administration (NIDA)

Experience :

Listed Company

Vice President - Investment,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Department Manager - Investment

2012 — present

2002 - 2012
Thai Reinsurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

- None -
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urewssy [arnSmudla (ony 60 0)

Mr.Pornchai Loratanavilai (age 60)

woruounisuhowaisrurSuds:nune

dandounnsiionu: -IU0-

ANUDAIGIEANIINISANYA :

USK1SSSNYUNUZIR a1vINISAana

UKNONENAgSIIANINY

Us:zauniasninasnaunu

usSENIAN:ITuU

2558 — J99Uu WououNstgwnsuNsuUSNUnNY
uL9.IngsSUsNuEIn

usunlulnnn:Ugu

2555 - 2556 WyouonuosuMswigUs:nunay
usun 1vlolo 911n

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Vice President - Underwriting

Shareholding: - None —

Education :

B.B.A., Marketing

Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience :

Listed Company

2015 — present Vice President — Underwriting
Department
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2012 -2013 Assistant Vice President — Group
Operation
AIA Company Limited



ulsulrunaznawsounasus:=noussne

Policy and Overview of Business Operation

usun [ngsUds:nuson 910R (UKIsu) (“usune”) 1R
InaVUIUT 2543 [nasuloussivnssuUs:AUNYFoNTIFU
Us=AuBInMINSwWeaUIa:nUaURINEoVeIAUNIKUA RllsIAL
AIbuUnNaINIslng usen [ngsSuds:AuNuso 910R (UKIBU)
(“THRE”) 1wolk Tulunuws:ssUnynaUs:AugdnIa:
WS:S13UYIAUS-AUBUNAAY W.A. 2535 ArHUATKEaI0
NSIENNISUS:NOUSSNYUSNUBIRAIA:SSNYUSNUDUNANY
00NINAU MAWIINUUSSTYDNISIAUINOY R 01000
oumouNTUdUR 9 matAu 2556 USENd [Fenn:10uulu
nannrannswalnids:inAlng Ingusen IngSuds:Nunumo
9710 (UKBU) [FUnrHuadyudouiduavignuanasnu
MolU WoasunouduAdiunsyengssnaluaunan Tuidu
fodAYBNAIKTIVINISIRSYIAUTROEIEIIEU

3dunFiu
Vision

services.

Thaire Life Assurance PCL. (“the Company” or
“THREL") was established in 2000 by the transfer of the
entire life reinsurance business and related assets and
liabilities from Thai Reinsurance PCL. (“THRE”) to comply
with the Life Insurance Act and Non-Life Insurance Act B.E.
2535 which requires the separation of life and non-life
insurance business. The Company has since maintained
continuous growth. On October 9, 2013, it was listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, whereby THRE allocated
a portion of ordinary shares held in the Company for sale
to general investors to ensure stability for future business
expansion. This represented another major milestone on
a path towards sustainable growth.

1sawSaulKUSN1sSUUSNUNYFRONIUBINNEONAADINUAIIUADINISVOY
anAtegius:anSNTwiiazsonISo

Being unique life reinsurance solutions provider, efficient and fast

WUSAN?

Mission

IsuIUlAUSNISAo8AIBEIBITYSSNaUs:NUBDINTUUS:INAROBUINSZIUENa

We ensure that our international standard domestic approach is conduct to

our long relationship clients.

1S15NYIS=AUAIBUAYNNNISIUDEWAIUDY llazaswwanauinulus:AunIkuIzau

TAnngioAu

We continue to maintain our financial strength and create fair return to our

shareholders.

ISTIIUWRIUIANENIWUAAINSIWOSDISUsoNsIUABUNUaInIumANVoIssN9

We aim to optimize our resources and platforms to cope with business

environment changes.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL

16



17

10nurstunisAtussie

usENg Ditru1ene:10unNnaTKUSNSSUUS:AU
AYFADILUAIAUINGIDENIFUD FulFLNAY-WrIUNoUANS TH
AWNSNIAUSNISaNANUSUNUSNUBINIAASUOIDS WSOUTH
USNSSUUSNUBIRFD TngNISIVISOUWFUUNSSND 070U
NISAAR WEJUNWANADUZIA:NIKUAIUONWNISWRISIUN
SuUs:=Nu naonUEAUSNHIILONWWNSTUNAUTHUNAINU

AMSUIWUIIUAIUNISSUUSNUNYFD IUudasIauna
VOWNUSHIIUNDADUAUASOUS:8:aU (Short Term) fu
muﬁDmmuﬁumso&s:a:ma (Long Term) 1JUVE&I9NISSU
NUlUIFa:WwanAUINaNATRASOUAZUUINTU 1Ia:5nWN
onsmsiAulnogurioltion Inulduloungdnnissiunuved
NISYENUIIURNIUKANNISAISIIUNDINUY laANTufiuwa
MOUINUADNMSIZIUNOINUATILSUAINUIASIRAUAN NS
UINNSSUTHUS U TETUNISAINSAaNA MISIWILEOINIINNS
viglirnannransungavu

UsuNd [ASouUWRJUNWARNTUZRUUSNUNYaUR NG
la:Us=uavniwogusaltion GuAntulnsINISSoUWRIUN
WwannNurmds=nuavnIwnuusenUds:Augdnnanging
la-Unlauawaninumwiudon g 1su deooulay
ANISVIgWIUINSAW A2INU Ia:aN1JUNISU SOUNIKUA
sUluunouAuAsauIKIdulUn unouioINIsvaIgnA
W91SUNANSTEUSAUNEIA-0SNISWINSUISUUS:AUMY
SOUUSKNSIA=ADUAUADIIIZLNNUUSENUS:AUEIR Baveu:T
0¢S:1ININISANITUNSAUIWUIIUVDIIRAIASINS

Usung gaAddidruIgne:ve19n1sIKUSNNS
NsSuUsS:NUBINAD TRANIUUNWaNNNUZTHUS 1az1uon
ASSUUSAUIWLIAL USBNY g9AdAnuiualtiuwnfnssu
JuslnAla:anio:mannog s oltodWowsnu1ssn9
Ussinnilrnaulongnoudounisninasavouusinaas
anunsniFontE@oliognuiriunzay SounIIuUNISUS:AUBIN
Finue) AUSUNUs:AUZInauisnUdauovigiuanidu
NISRAU 18U IUUUS:AUAUASEIAUITO IUUUS:AUBDIRIA:
oUAInA 1uUUs=ruavnw 10uAU dulutRuuulFsouveny
5sAUMUTAUUSENUS:AUBDRHaNUIKIRITUWUS RSN
ssAvnUsUIASBuLluls:INAlNg uenvNtNsvsoutu
Us:31AUIASYIAR0EUU (AEC) RIAAVU USENY [T
NISINSYUADIUWSOULNAIAT 2558 NINSASIUSUSVOY
usSBENY lIa:NISVaNEMNAan/

swinuls=9d 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Business Goals

Aspiring to be more than just a conventional
reinsurance provider, the Company is committed to
developing the organization to provide customers with a
comprehensive range of insurance services by collaborating
in business development, marketing, planning, product
development, formulation of underwriting and claim
guidelines.

The Company’s reinsurance plan emphasized the
balance of short term and long term coverage by focusing
on expansion of each product’s coverage as well as
maintaining continuous growth. The guided policies for this
are based on management of expansion cost under the
principles of Risk Based Capital, consideration of return
on the use of capital at acceptable level of risk, adoption
of modern innovation for marketing, and diversification of
sales channels.

The Company, together with many life insurance
companies, has continually developed accident and health
insurance products, which are presented through various
media such as on-line media, telemarketing, agents and
financial institutions. Besides, the Company also works
with partnersin determining the types of warranty that meet
customers’ requirements, the premium rate, the method
of underwriting and joint management and control of risk.
Currently, itis implementing each project’s plans.

The Company still aims at expanding its reinsurance
service and providing recommendations on new products
and additional underwriting guidelines. In addition,
the Company has continuously studied the trend of
consumers’ behavior and market conditions in order to
develop the types of business that respond to customers’
real needs as well as select appropriate media, including
Bancassurance, for some types of insurance such as credit
insurance, life and accident insurance, and health
insurance. In the previous year, the Company had
cooperated with many life insurance companies,
the business partners of leading banks in Thailand, in
expanding these types of business. Furthermore,
the Company has prepared itself since 2015, both in
branding and market expansion, to join ASEAN Economic
Community.



dmSulwuusIuUNIsSaduayunNIsnann usung [
anus:uuInAlulagnoFuls:AunigFona:s:uunN1susNIs
AUBU 9 13U s:uUUNYE s:uuadnu 1TURTU IWoYouIWL
Js=ansniwiia-us=answalunisniuiu nsvnlASInISweun
ynansiwoliiUuouAnshifinod Office Innovation InIRSUL
ynansiEns=ruNIa-wsausulonunsiJaounlannsoniso
vousshiaUs: AUy la:sulionuannmaione9:Inavulsiu
OUNAR N1SASSHIUAANSTIIUS:AUNSTUIA=ILOARTHL U7
soufunN1sUSuUsINISA WU llasWeuunAuIUTKDAtUNIW
oI MUNETUNSaSNSIAUIRVOISST90EWEIEU

nasiJasundavwruinasndiAryvouusen
Tudou 5 Unuwuwn

nsnAu  NUs:gudalnyyfioRunson 1/2556 100
2556 JUR 19 NSNNIAL 2556 DuRoUIANSIATY
URIRYOMUNNSIAASSKUAITYIWUNUYOY
usBng 10U
1. AmassAuadoyiwunusiuoulyinu
90 d1UAU Yanlnnsildiua: 1 uln
RINhorumuveIusung MuUdandou
nisfiorduveuyiiorulsa:sy (Rights
Offering) lla: THRE [A§ansiunsdoru
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For Marketing Support Program, the Company has
invested in technological systems, i.e. reinsurance and
other services such as accounting and investment systems
that help increase efficiency and effectiveness of the work.
Besides, the Company also organizes Employee
Development Project to support the organization to enter
into Office Innovation by preparing the employees to be
conscious of and ready for rapid change of insurance
business; and being able to cope with future crisis as well.
As such, it seeks employees with experience and new
ideas to join the Company to help improve the work and
develop a quality team; aiming at building sustainable
growth of the business.

Significant Developments in the Past Five Years

July
2013

The Extraordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders No. 1/2013 on July 19, 2013

resolved to approve an amendment to

allocation of newly issued ordinary shares,

as follows :

1. Allocation of not more than 90 million
new ordinary shares with a par value of
THB 1 per share by rights offering to
the Company’s existing shareholders.

2. Allocation of not more than 10 million
new ordinary shares for an initial public
offering.

August to allow

2013

Approval was granted,
the Company to have non-Thai nationals (as
defined in the Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535
(and subsequent amendments) holding an
aggregate of more than 49 percent of
the total number of voting shares and paid-up
shares of the Company for a period of
10 years. For the preparation of listing Thaire
Life on the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
the Company and THRE offered 295 million
shares for Private Placement, by offering
rights to the Company’s existing
shareholders. The first public offering price
was THB 9.50 per share. The offered shares
were as follows:
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Usung 1FsunisInduaUA UL Dafio
ATUNISIIUYINANIUU International Credit
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Financial Strength Rating: A- (Excellent) ]
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usung [RSunisus:Igus:AuNISANURIA
fon1susynean:idoulngds:910 2558 1
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THRE andndounisfiorudiinyvosusund
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swinuls=9d 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

October
2013

August
2014

November
2014

March
2015

June
2015

October
2015

April
2016

1. The existing shares held by THRE in
the Company being 285 million shares,
thereby leading to THRE’s holding in
the Company to reduce from 100
percent to 50.8 percent

2. An offering of 10 million newly issued
shares

The Company was listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, with the first trading
day on October 9, 2013

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 1/2014 on August 4,
approval for the amendment of Clause 10.
of the Article of Association to “Clause 10.
The Company's shares can be transferred
without any restriction”, in order to comply
with the Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC) letter No. 4220/2386 dated August 15,
2013, stating that foreigners can hold more
than 49 percent of the total voting and
paid-up shares of the Company.

THRE partly sold the Company's ordinary
shares. Thus, THRE’s shareholding
decreased from 50.8 percent to 41.5
percent.

THRE decreased its shareholding in
the Company from 41.5 percent to 24.3
percent leading to a change in the Company’s
status from a subsidiary to an associated
company of THRE.

The Company obtained financial strength
rating of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent),
awarded onthe International Credit Rating by
the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Very Good” (4 stars)
in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai
Listed Companies (CGR) in 2009 published
by the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D).

THRE decreased its shareholding in
the Company from 24.3 percent to 17.5
percent leading to a change in the status of
their relationship from an associated company
to a market investment.
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June
2016

October
2016

May
2017

June
2017

October
2017

November
2017

The Company obtained financial strength
rating of Best's Financial Rating : A-(Excellent),
awarded on the International Credit Rating
py the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Very Good”(4 stars)
inthe Corporate Governance Report of Thai
Listed Companies in 2015 published by the
Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD).

The Company already registered the revision
of its requlation on the proportion of
shareholding that the number of non-Thai
national shareholders should not exceed 49
per cent of the total number of voting and
paid-up shares.

The Company invested in 2,600,000 ordinary
shares of TKI Life Insurance Company
Limited, with a par value of LAK 2,000 each,
amounting to LAK 5,200 million or equivalent
to Baht 21.7 million, representing 32.5
percent of the share capital of that company.
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited was
incorporated in 2016 and is principally
engaged in the operation of life insurance
business in Laos. The Company has fully paid
up the shares.

The Company obtained financial strength
rating of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent),
awarded on the International Credit Rating
py the AM Best.

The Company obtained an assessment from
the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) the
corporate governance practices of Thailisted
companies and rated THREL at “Excellent”
recognition level.

The Company sold all of its 1,200,000 shares
held in EMCS Thai Company Limited
("EMCS"), which is equivalent to 20 percent
of the total shares, to THRE who is the major
shareholder of THREL.
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Business Overview

Apart from the core business in providing all types of
life reinsurance, the Company sets aside part of the written
premiums as reserves and invests such reserves to
generate returns to cover its contingent liabilities.
Therefore, investment also plays a crucial part in
the Company’s core activity.

The Company diversifies its investment in a variety of
short-term and long-term securities, both debt and equity
instruments, and complies with regulations under the OIC’s
Notification Re: Investment in Other Businesses of Life
Insurance Companies.

Shareholding Structure of the Group of

Companies

The Company has a clear shareholding structure and
there is no cross-shareholding or pyramid structure in its
group of companies, thus creating no conflict of interest.
In entering into related party transactions, the Company
has complied with the policy on interest and conflict of
interest and the measures or procedures for approval of
related party transactions.

THREL has one associated company, TKI Life
Insurance Company Limited, established in Lao PDR in
late 2016 to perform all types of life insurance business.
Its total paid-up registered capitals are LAK 16,000 million
or approximately THB 66 million of which the Company
holds 32.5 percent shares.

Shareholding in the Associated Company
by Other Parties
Apart from the Company, other shareholders of TKI

Life Insurance Company Limited include Navakij Insurance
Public Company Limited., holding 32.5 percent and TK
Group Sole Company Limited., holding 35.0 percent.

Relationship with Major Shareholder’s Business

Group

The Company uses human resource services from
THRE and also uses IT services provided by Thaire Services
Co., Ltd. The operational support is deemed essential so
as to ensure the most efficient of cost between them.
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The Company’s core business is to reinsure all types
of life insurance. Presently, there are 24 life insurance
companies, of which their objectives are to provide services
for individuals and group of corporate customers for the
coverage of death and illness. Examples are whole life
insurance, credit life insurance, accident and health
insurance and critical illness life insurance. In addition, one
more objective is for saving benefit such as endowment
insurance, investment-linked insurance, annuity life
insurance, and life insurance with refund/dividend. As life
Insurance that covers death and illness causes risks to a
life insurance company more than saving insurance does;
the Company, therefore, has to manage its risk by
reinsuring the assured, in the case that the total sum
insured exceeds the amount determined by the Company;
by evaluating the amount of the sum insured that are
exposed to risk of total claim payment against Retention
in order to reduce the impact of risk that may arise in the
future. The life insurance company, however, selects a
reinsurance company by considering
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Reputation, financial status and credit rating of A or
higher;

Advantages of the reinsurance terms and conditions
that meet the insurance companies’ requirements
including underwriting, reinsurance agreement,
reinsurance pricing and commission.

Various service factors that support the business
operations, for example, product consult, underwriting
ete.

Satisfactory and timely service

Types of Life Insurance Reinsured by

the Company

The types of life insurance reinsured by the Company

Us=Augondned include:
o0
ﬂ\ Us:Nuddnsr9da1iiny
\ / (Ordinary Life)

Ordinary Life Insurance

This is a life insurance which pays the insured
amount to the beneficiary at the death of the insured
or pays the insured amount to the living insured upon
expiry of the policy. In general, the policy is setto expire
on the date the insured reaches the age of 90 or 99.
Premium is paid throughout the insured’s lifetime.
However, the premium payment period for some types
of insurance may be shortened to meet policyholders’
requirements, for example, aterm of 15 or 20 years or
the age of 60.
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nasus:NuBdnnau
(Group Life)

Group Life Insurance

Under group life insurance, it provides coverage
for five persons or more, mostly a group of corporate
employees. This is a type of staff welfare provided by
private organizations and state agencies for their
employees. This type of insurance is normally
renewed, and premium paid, on a yearly basis. There
is also a tailor-made policy where premium is paid in
one lump sum for the entire coverage period.

nisUs:udsniWoAuAsodduto
(Credit Life)

Credit Life Insurance

This insurance plan provides protection against
death oragainst death and total permanent disablement
of a borrower of a bank loan. Banks need risk
insurance in the event that their borrowers are dead
or become totally and permanently disabled. Under
this policy, the insured amount and coverage period
will be reduced according to the outstanding balance
and period of the relevant loan. The example of loan
products under insurance protection include home
loan, business loan, car loan and credit loan, etc.

nisUs:=nugUuRInANazgavnIw
(Accident & Health)

Accident & Health Insurance

This is an insurance that provides coverage
against death and loss of body part caused by an
accident and also provides compensation for medical
expenses incurred from either an illness or an
accident.
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Types of Reinsurance Agreement

Reinsurance agreements are divided into two types as

follows:

Treaty Reinsurance

This is a form of reinsurance made between an
insurance company and a reinsurer subject to
pre-agreed terms and conditions. The insurance
company sets the retention limit based on its financial
capability and then cedes the excess of the retention
tothe reinsurer. The agreement, in general, establishes
a broad framework for reinsurance terms and
conditions with respect to, for instance, coverage,
reinsured amount, etc. Any policy that meets such
pre-determined conditions can therefore be instantly
reinsured by the Company.

Facultative Reinsurance

Facultative reinsurance is made in the case where
a life insurance company does not take out Treaty
Reinsurance with the Company or where the insurance
is not qualified under the Treaty Reinsurance.
The offered terms and conditions, coverage and
premium rate for facultative reinsurance are granted
and approved on a case by case basis.

Facultative reinsurance contracts are automatically
renewed on a yearly basis, unless any of the contract
parties gives a notice of cancellation three months
ahead of the year-end. These contracts allow time for
both parties to reconsider the conditions before
confirming such cancellation if they cannot reach a
mutually agreed solution. In case a facultative
reinsurance contract is canceled, the Company will
terminate coverage under new policies, while
reinsurance coverage under renewed policies will
remain valid until the policies expire.
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12100 [R0N1SNS:918AUIgAIUNUUS:AUTRAU
UsunUs:=Aungsanulula:Agus:INArates sy
FusUUSENUS:AUnUFaIrandUDTUOULN 1a:USUNd
filludauntunlsuls:nunesoanunu:d lnuRusEN
Us=nunusionma:shelusouinlddaousoulunisasiia:
WRUNWAMANUANUUSENUS:AUBIR H3oniSundn
Passive Reinsurance Ml NsUS:AUZIAUS:INNAIAL
UanyruUs:Aunosiony 2 Us:innde 1uurindoynynsio
AUIAIUUIOWN:S1Y

NUSENY WeUNSSNvNIsSuUUS:NuEdnsoUs:Inn
AVIAL 13:5n31MNSINTSIFSUIAULR H8N1SIFUSNIS
FUANE MIUSMUINUUNWERNTUAUS-AUEIM SOUOW
IUONIIWINSTUINISSUUSAUBIAIWLIAU 13:USN1S
WISUNSUUSNUNYIVUIWI=STY drSuluunisus:Nu
FRsnee MU IuudsnuAUASadaUIGe IUUUS:AUEIR
Ia:9URIKR IuuUS:NUNau IIuuUs:nAulsasiansd iIdusu
N1sUs:NUBonUs:NNSOUNUWRAIUN

(Non-conventional Reinsurance)
natnsuls:Aunonoldunatnidnnussnsy
Us=Aungmoanm1aus:InAaIuIsnIvIunlAnaon
usyNdg uluanuisnidondnuleiuiniws1:91uoudu
uds:INATFUOUFARA USENY FaFouwuuNUN
lunsAItussiv Ia=duulouNEvVoIUS BN N9:rnsshv
luunaourilonianiinisnannlny (Active Reinsurer)
[ngv:vldidaousoulunng N9NSSUSIUNUUSEN
Us=Auddn AuisinsUniauona:waunnsusssuus:inn
iU AIuAUFABINISVaIRATA FAMILUNISAANA
lasFEeININISAanA BarnlkusEng aunsnikun
sUuuNsusssUlla:ansI0uUs:AURoRIKU:aU SOUNY
frundounuonissuusnunusoludnsidounauiu
Basnoldludounuseng v:ldsuv-oglusUvoale
Us=nungsiovounsusssulu Ife:lAsuTuandounaindn
9nSNFoUNSSUUSAUNFOUS:INNAYIAUNISUS:AUEIR

Characteristics of Reinsurance Business under

Marketing Policy

The Company reinsures life insurance for domestic

insurance companies and is unable to directly provide life

insurance services. Its business can be categorized into

two main types:

Conventional Reinsurance

Conventional reinsurance is reinsurance provided
for life insurance companies which make all
arrangements by themselves, ranging from policy
format to marketing and sales of products. Risks
associated with the sum insured are transferred to
several reinsurers at home and overseas. Conventional
reinsurance features two types of reinsurance
contracts: Treaty and Facultative reinsurance.

The Company has developed the conventional
reinsurance business and maintained its growth rate
by rendering services in product advice, underwriting
guidelines, and the provision of facultative reinsurance
of varied types such as credit life insurance, life and
accident insurance, group insurance and critical iliness
insurance.

Non-conventional Reinsurance

Since domestic reinsurance market is an open
market where international reinsurers can enter
at any time and volume of business is limited,
the Company cannot be very selective about
reinsurance cases to accept. THREL serves as an
active reinsurer by participating in all activities with life
insurance companies, ranging from new product
launch and development to meet market demand,
marketing and planning to the acquisition of new
distribution channels. By doing so, the Company can
design appropriate policies and determine appropriate
pricing as well as achieving a higher underwriting
sharing ratios. lts income earned in the form of
reinsurance premium is a greater proportion than that
of conventional reinsurance. Non-conventional

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL

26



21

Us=InnSounuwsunddnyoynus:Aunosiony 2 Us:inn
Ao IIuuUManyryIsoNUIazIuUIOWI=SE

dIMSUNISWRIUNSSNYNIsSSuUsS:NudInm o
Us:INNSouwsuunusung snidulasonissioltodiu
NSSOUWRIUNIA:UNIAUDWARATUA WUZaF e i
UogUudentddoulnnyiddenaulad rinisvigwiu
INSAwrIa-AaINU UsyNd gdaAN0UlASINISSOUWRIUN
wannturicuUs-AUNgUR IR IIaUS-AuavNIW [ne96n
rwannnuARdYnIRUIRNFANAUTUIRA:NAUaNAY B9
WanouUSURA uan9nUguyduuliuUSNISWoNSaU
SUUS=AUIDWN:518 FMSUIUUUSAUAASOIAUIGO 1UU
Us:Aus18a1nyiviguIugesnusunnIsia:gednad
AoINU

IAsvasusoln

Revenue Structure

sngle

Revenue

iDuUs:nunesosuRtioIus als Net eamed premiums income

- MsUS:AUETRUSINNANIAL Conventional Reinsurance

- MISUS=AUBINUSINNSOUWEJIUN Non-conventional Reinsurance
SWEJTGTO’]OOWSQ\]QUQHS Investments income
sngldAIa:AUKEY Commission and brokerage incorme
$6183U Others income
SOU Total

reinsurance also features the two types of reinsurance
contracts: Treaty and Facultative reinsurance.
In its non-conventional reinsurance business
development, the Company has implemented projects
in joint development and offered products through
various media such as online media, telemarketing
and sales via agents. Also, innovative niche accident
and health insurance products have been developed
with good success rates. It also writes facultative
reinsurance for credit life insurance and ordinary life
insurance from bancassurance and agents.

2559 2558
2016 2015

aauun

Soga: aauun Sovar aauun Soga:
THB Million | Percent | THB Million | Percent | THB Million | Percent

1,149.4 52.6 1,185.3 57.6 1,282.7 65.2
947.1 43.3 780.5 37.9 600.7 31.7
82.4 3.8 86.7 4.2 52.4 2.8

3.5 0.1 2.3 0.1 3.7 0.2

3.9 0.2 3.6 0.2 2.6 0.1
2,186.3 100.0 2,058.4 100.0 1,892.1 100.0

NISYANIWANNIUINSOUSNIS

IKagnuIveouiiunu

USENY DiradnuIveddunulsin douvettioru
UoUs:Aunosuans na:rf1lsvinnisainuans
fu Aun 31 SuoTAU 2560 USENY Daouvodwfiounuau
1,543.5 &uun 10oUs:AuNgrosuniodus1oln 2,096.5
auun 11a:s19lRvINN1SaINUEns 82.4 a1uuin

luoUNANUSENS 919610uFITUNISAOUISNISAU 15U
MSIAUOAUMUNUIKIALTORUIAL (Rights Offering) NNsiauo
AuIwunulKunAalngiowl:197:94 (Private Placement)
n1seonludnAtyianiansiunisdoranniwe (Warrant)
0udu Nedustng IW0UlBUIYNSTIAMITUNUNNNISHEU
KSOYINNILUON

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Procurement of Products or Services

Sources of Funds

Our sources of funds come from shareholders, net
written premium and net profit from investments. As of
December 31, 2017, the Company recorded total
shareholders’ equity of THB 1,543.5 million, net earned
premium of THB 2,096.5 million and net profit from
investments of THB 82.4 million.

In the future, the Company may raise funds in other
ways, such as issuance of new shares for rights offering
or offering to specific investors on a private placement
pasis, issuance of warrants, etc. The company does not
have a policy to mobilize funds from borrowing or any other
external sources.



nasaunu

ulsunanisaunu

ulgurgnisainuvaduseng darnannisainuiuy
s:IRs: WIAwAon:IFIAnWwanauinuavan IFUIATASU
wamauinunauniauslus:g:010liIWawwala:aonAdodiu
Ms:uNWURDoY SulRAUANANAUATUNWYSIHANNSWE
WonouUaonngvouluadnu NNSUSHISADUIZENINNMS
AINUOYASOUAAUSaUAU WialUTHIARADWIALNUIU
NS:NUTIVIIUENISIUIa:WaNISATUIU Ia:au1snaswa
AoUINUYINNISaINU JN1SUSKISNISAINUATIUNSOU
NSASIIUNOINUATUS-AUADUIAL (Risk Based Capital)
WoldRunaununbogod199nnliiNnUs:ansnwadan
naonuUNISUNURMIUVONIKUAVEIEITINIU AUN. ulguny
mMsainuv:lRSUNSaouUNUag WaINIaUe la:0noudangu
wSounv:USuIlagunagnsmsanuiwalidonndouunno:
nannonisilaguilatognasnioaniioneliifnus:lusu
NG RIVEEIEIR

WU 2560 Usund [rRds:n1ASUNISUNUAMIUKANSS
sUrfUraNsadnu (Investment Governance Code: | Code)
BaliUnsUs=nAMgTuISulesivosusEnia:vaddiniiu
n.a.0. IngUudunv:URURMUKAaNSSSUINUIANISaINun
oonlngAruNssuNIsINUKRannswela:natnrnannswe

mstkauIgo

nstAguGovoausund IJunsRAEUMIUEdaRNISIN
wunuu ain NstRgguaniau NstRdguionogonfiy 1a:
MstAdduIioFosnous IngIUlANSumunanoTnnUsauA
WioussiniAoWIFanSounwinaulunstdnsdu ia:
aduauuliwingudvnu néenogonduiluvesnuiod ng
USBN:ARNONITEINSIANN HS0OMSIa0uURaNIEoIAUSINN
voIN1SNEY

Investments

Investment Policy

The Company adopts a conservative investment
policy by focusing on investments to ensure consistent
income earnings. Importance is given to the quality of
securities for the safety of our investments taking into
consideration the maintenance of liquidity that could
comfortably cover the unpredictable future loss.
The Company exercises caution in portfolio management
to bring the stable long-term return at an acceptable risk
level, while controlling risks at low level under the
risk-based capital framework and adhering to the OIC’s
regulations. Our investment policy is reviewed regularly.
Our investment strategy is readily changeable to always
be insync with the ever-changing market environment and
ensure the maximum long term benefit,

In 2017, THREL announced its acceptance to pursue
Investment Governance Code: | Code and posted
the announcement of its commitment to comply with
the codes, issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, on the websites of the Company and
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission as
well.

Lending

Credits extended by the Company include loans
under the staff welfare scheme, such as an emergency
loan, a housing loan, and a car loan. These loans are
intended to help relieve employees’ difficulties, where
necessary, and enable them to have their own house or
residence of their own. Interest is charged at either a fixed
or a floating rate, depending on type of the loan.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL

28



29

ulgungnisavnuiuusBnegouazUSBNSoU

ArUNssuNsUSBNIduoudaulyunualnuliuusensou
AILVOIAUDIUVOUATUNSSUNISAINU Inanisnnaulvadnu
laswanstuneulAs1ensIdulUmuinoudfiritrualng
d1Ungnun.a.n. nannranndwalnius:inAlng 1a-andnuiu
ANUZNSSUNNSNNNUIIAzENIaSUNISUS:NoUssNaUs:AUNg

usyng UnalntunisminuaianisAiiugiuvaIusen
sou TnUNISIFNAINSSUNISIA:USKHISVeIUsEnd [UiTu
NSsUMSIia:USHISvauUsEngogia:usinsou [nsunnan
[AsunsiFuAglDunssunisia:usrisvedusindoylias
USENSoU THUNAFAURIA ASUAU FRnIUMSFITUIU W
TrAnUs:TosUnussAvImusEndue 1Ia:usend 1og

AoEUISnIuNISAISURNUNOINU

ulgugTUNISFASITNSIEURENATYVOISSARVOIU
36N4 9:AaulusNdNINCUARNNKUIUAKUAIA:ENUNSOIREU
AlAtuunsIuaIna IngdnsIaoulnAUSENY Wansau
IE0IRUSTNIUANACYAOTUEIA-NOUTUAIVOIUSENS F10E
180 USUNY 9:5nuNI3TKegUS:AU] FTIN OMSIA0UNIWIWE
WOVOIRUNDINURROIFANSIMUNNHLIY

fu AUR 31 SUXNAU 2560 USBNY Ddouvoat)iioruny
AU 1,543.5 1ULIN IA=ANSOFNISINUNOINUIIN 1,323.0
auun [ngusseng JoNSIASUNUIWEIWOVOINUNDINU
(CAR Ratio) NauNdnsoua: 450 BIogsrannIsnsovdou
nNyaoudnyBIa:gundincuriuFnSosa: 140 Afnunlng
adnuiu AdN.

uloulglunisusrisaniwAgaou

[usuaniwAaay usend DulgungdiranuIsnFansd
anwAaaulUSNSINIKUI:AUASNSININSOUIIKAIRUNUTU
Jnv:lfonns:ianuanSulazenaunswganiwnaouli
aNsNsSoISUNUAURDINISIBUlRTuNNanN1oNIsSaU

swinuls=9d 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

Policy on Investment in Subsidiary Company and

Associated Company

The Board of Directors approves the policy on
investment in an associated company, as recommended
by the Investment Committee, based on the criteria
determined by the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
the Office of Insurance Commission.

The Company, as a control mechanism over an
associated company, appoints the Directors and
Executives of THREL to serve as Directors and Executives
of the associated company in order to oversee, control and
monitor its performance for the benefits of itself and THREL.

Ability in Maintaining Capital Funds

[tis our policy to maintain all key ratios at not less than
the minimum legal requirements and comparable with
international standards. Any ratio deemed crucial to our
position and stability will be maintained at a high level,
including the capital adeguacy ratio as required by law.

As of December 31, 2017, our shareholders’ equity
stood at THB 1,543.5 million in total and the Company
could maintain capital funds at THB 1,323.0 million. The
Company's CAR is higher than 450 percent , which is in
the process of auditing from auditor and substantially
higher than the OIC’s minimum requirement of 140 percent.

Policy on Liquidity Management

Our policy aims to maintain liquidity at an appropriate
level by making available sources of funds, whether from
cash receivable or from liquid assets, to be able to meet
our funding needs in any situations.
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Market Situation and Competition

aniunisnissnods:=Nuddmniazssnods:=Nunumo
AuUds:=Nuzsdm U 2560

WU 2560 1AsuyINlNggIndIRUINogWEa0ndNaIAgY
AUUAWIUL IniRulngosa: 3.9 9INNSWURINWIASYIND
vouAAmanvoulny 910 ansgoIusni su na:guu 8nny
FuoudNneNuaRIWULINTU UanaNUdIduautan
ulgungnisns:AUNSIZINoveInnsINITulssTUIRZoUDN
fontRdyiasunisipulnvadiAsseRalng diaanndadnu
AANIRUlvedssheUsAUgaRNIAUInogYSoua: 5.9 Inal
UuUs:AUNYSUSIU 601,725 anuun duiluwaiuuion
JuUs=-AUEIMNSUSSSUADUARUENYYIWUIRUUS VW
donsunuUs:nAlNgRmMogdunuyanond (Aging sociality)
ogauysNU Ia:0MS1ANSNYIWEUIARTIUOIULUSUIWLTU
nNU Tngussnesne lussnoidulinoudiAtynuauninau
avnw sounuidumsvausuulounganrdouniBanaudn
Us=iuavnwnowausAautud 2560 1IJunsuisn uenandd
JauAnguus:nugonnounniIsadnu (Unit-Link) 1a:auqn
nauUsNUEINULNYADNSIAUTVOU DUUS-AUBINSURASY
AlRAIRU NNANUNNSIURSINENITYREIAIRLAaMDUINUAN
1a:Us=s1vulin1u$ oIV TINgoTUNISTNUS:UE3M
13:01IWUNINISITUIWULANTU 1a:10oW91StU19mSA
DuUs:nNuanssowaniuriuoasouvouls:inA (GDP) wud
UdAouruingiAeenutneu 1lusosa: 3.9 9nSosa: 4.0 vad
U 2559 UurNgnwdn AUlngddnsdoumssgidous:ru
FINIWEN 3.9 % vousols IDeIRaunUUS:INARTKAIUENANY
AUNSUS:AUEIN 017 iy tydu dound Tomsndoulity
10% vousngle 3atiodus:inAlnggudlonianisinulmeion
UAN IA=DILITUIWUTUNNT - 81HSUSIUOUNSUSSSUTIMNT
WatIAULS tu aut 2560 D9uou 24.1 dnunsusssy Builu
NsUsssUUS-AUBINS19IAUIUTT 91UoU 4.1 dunsusssy

Situation of life insurance and life reinsurance
Business in 2017

In 2017, the growth of Thai economy was still slow
down almost at the same rate as that in the previous year
at 3.9 percent, resulting from the economy recovery of
the trade counterparts of Thailand like the USA, China, and
Japan. Exports levelsincreased, tourism has positive trend
and private sector consumption grew. The Thai government
also announced many major infrastructure projects that
will boost economic growth over the years to come.
It corresponded with the growth direction of insurance
business at 5.9 percent with gross written premiums of
THB 601,725 million received from life insurance policy
and supplementary health insurance contract. This growth
impact from the people awareness of becoming aging
society of Thai population and foresee the increasing
medical inflation of hospital treatment. Tax exemption on
health insurance products helped promote this portion of
the life sector. Due to the economic situation of low return
on interest rate and the people are educated about life
insurance and financial planning, Unit-link insurance, and
pension insurance products all experienced growth. In year
2017, the ratio of life insurance spend to GDP was almost
the same as previous year at 3.9 percent from 4.0 percent
in 2016 indicating a slower market penetration. While Thai
people spent only 3.9 percent of their revenues on
insurance premium compared to 10 per cent spent by
people in other countries that more developed economic
and more educated in life insurance like the UK, Japan, or
Hong Kong. Optimistically, there is an opportunity of life
insurance growth for Thailand. Evidently, the number of
in-force life insurance policies at the end of 2017 was 24.1
million policies which consist of new business 4.1 million
policies.
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1DuUs:AuURBSURowanAnuriuoasoul 2551 - 2560
Gross Written Premium per GDP in Thailand during 2008 - 2017

4.0
38 3.9
3.4
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nuUoY: Sogas

Unit : Percent

3.9

2651 26562 2553 2564 2565 2566 2557 2558 2559 2560

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

AU - FNNUARUENSSUNNSAUIa:aIasuNIsUs:NoUssAvUS:AUS/auIAUUS:AUEIRINY
Source : Office of Insurance Commission / The Thai Life Assurance Association

nsusssUUs:AUGSNRLWAaTIAU ru FUT
U 2551 - 2560
Number of policies in force in Thailand During

2008 - 2017
nuoy: au ns.

Unit : Million Policies
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2561 2552 2563 2554 2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
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nsusssyUs:NuBIns19Tkl
U 2551 - 2560
Number of new policies in Thailand During

2008 - 2017
HUOY: 81U NS.

Unit : Million Policies

4.2 4.1
3.9
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o7 o 2.9
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2561 2552 2553 2554 2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

AU - dNNUARUENSSUNTSAUIa=adIasUNIsUs:NaUssAvUS:UAY/auNAUUS-AUTIRNINY
Source : Office of Insurance Commission / The Thai Life Assurance Association
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sUNANS (Bancassurance) ANSINSVENUa0g1IsaItod aULUTTEndoUBUINGIASIAUR 49.2 : 44.9 AUANAU

Of note is the fact that most of life insurance sales are through agents. Bancassurance is close behind the agency
channel in the distribution stakes and will probably surpass agency sales in the next two or three years.

sUmwiianudmnsidouzgounitunisvieds:=nusdniut 2558 - U 2560

Direct Premiums, Distribution Channels in 2015 - 2017

2560 2559 2558
2017 2016 2015

@ nulnsAwr Tele Marketing @ 3uq Others @ £2INU Agent sUNANS Bancassurance

AU - AUNNUANUENSSUNNSMAUNIA:AIaSUNTsUS:-NoussAaUs:UAY aunAuls:nuganing
Source : Office of Insurance Commission , The Thai Life Assurance Association

d1MSUWaNISAITUINUYOUSSNRUSAUTIRN KINWINSTUNIINWANIIS (VIaNu) 91NNISANTUIIUVDISSAYIUNIWSIU
BanuNSoUTINIINFNUNSSUUS:AUNEIA:NSaunusoUTasudUe 9:1RUlRG dnsnwarilsonnisaitueiu 1ugos 10
U Aaiist 2551-2560 Aniduds:uirusosas 8.0-9.0 rSolnuiaduognus:uirusouas 8.6 riol

Operating profits for life insurers over the last 10 years have been good with operating ratios in the low 90’s.

10gUs:=nunasu U 2551 — 2560 wanils (vaanu) 2 1nn1satiugiu U 2551 - 2560
Gross Premiums Written in Thailand During Profit (Loss) from Operation in Thailand During
2008 - 2017 2008 - 2017
HUDE: 1uUN KUog: Sowas
Unit: THB Million Unit: Percent
601,725
568,002
536,839
499,495
441372
390517
9.2
328,897 8.9 8.8 . 9.1
206,164 8.3 8.6 8.2 8.0 &8 86
258,533
221,598 I I
2551 2552 2553 2554 2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2551 2552 2553 2554 2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560F
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017F

AU : AUNUANUNSSUNSAUIA:EWIASUNNSUS:NOUSSNIUS:AUME AunAUUS:AUBIRING a-n1sUS:-UInUNISVouUsEn
Source : Office of Insurance Commission , The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts
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AdN1IdNUnguATUENSSUNISAIAUNIa:auasy
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FussAvUs:AUnuFio Tultsuouiluionds:Auniusio
10,368 auun AndudnsAuinSoua: 9.4 daIAUIR
dgonndaunUITuUs:NUNYVISSAY IIFDaRdoUVeINISIa
Us=rungsiolndirsenutiuiu Inoilbuiduionds=Aunosio
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The regulator, Office of Insurance Commission, has
adapted regulations to encourage “Digital Insurance”,
leading to the expansion of new distribution channels that
are more customer focused and will lead to more consumer
awareness and subsequent business expansion

Net premiums for reinsurance in 2017 reached THB
10,368 million at an annual growth rate of 9.4 percent. Most
of the reinsurance premium stems from the health
insurance product group. Reinsurance premium growth
usually mirrors growth in the direct insurance sector. Over
the past 5 years reinsurance premiums have grown at an
annual average rate of 9.6 percent.

IDulonUs:Aunusiot) 2556 — 2560

Reinsurance Ceded Premium in Thailand During 2013 - 2017
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AU - dUNuUAUENSSUNTSAUIA:AIaSUNTSUS:NoUsSAvUS:TUAY aunAuUSUEINING 1Ia:n1SUSIUIrUNSVoIUSEN
Source : Office of Insurance Commission, The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts
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Reinsurance premiums during 2015 - 2017

2560 2559 2558
2017 2016 2015

anuun MUl (Sovas) anuun AUl (Sova:) auun INUlR (Sovas)
Amount Growth Amount Growth Amount Growth
(THB Million) (percent) (THB Million) (percent) (THB Million) (percent)
ESahEsy,
Gross written premiums 601,725 59 568,002 58 536,839 7.5
iTu1o1Us:Aunso
Reinsurance ceded premiums 10,368 9.4 9,479 6.4 8,910 13.3
ToUs:AUAgMaSUVaILSIN
THREL’s gross written premium 2,157 9.2 1,975 6.7 1,851 14.0
dounuvnisnannvouusyn(Sogas)
THREL's market share from
reinsurance ceded premium 20.8 20.8 20.8
(percent)

AU - SUNNUAUENSSUNNSAUIA:AIasuNTsUs:NoUssAvUS:AURAY auiAuUs:AUBanIng a:n1sUs:unrunisvesustn
Source : Office of Insurance Commission , The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts
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Although life insurance companies are able to
reinsure, most of them do not recognize animportance on
transferring reinsurance policy among themselves since
reinsurance is not their principal business. Besides, they
are competitors. Thaire Life Assurance PCL. Is the only
one domestic reinsurer and foreign reinsurers are such as
Swiss Reinsurance, Reinsurance Group of America (RGA),
Hannover Reinsurance Group, Munich Reinsurance and
SCOR Reinsurance.

Competitive pricing, expertise, professionalism and
the reinsurance capacity are the reinsurer’s offer.  Hence,
those foreign insurers may encounter with some threats in
doing business in Thailand; when compared with Thai
insurance companies, as they lack understandings of Thai
market conditions, including loose relationships with local
life insurance companies.
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In 2017, THREL reinsurance premiums totaled THB
2,157 million achieving an annual growth rate of 9.2 percent
and a market share of 20.8 percent. The Company
transacted business with all 22 domestic life insurance
companies in Thailand.

The Company focuses on products and Value-added
Services; and on being a partner with all insurers so as to
create business opportunities and to develop and launch
products through all types of media such as television,
radio, on-line media, telemarketing, agents, and financial
institutions. Successful products include Insurance
Products for Seniors and Accident & Health Insurance
plans aimed at specific target markets.

The Company’s reinsurance contracts signed with
insurance companies allow for an active role to be taken
to jointly manage underwriting and monitor claims to strive
for good underwriting results. The Company also supports
the technical considerations that accompany the
acceptance and payment of claims.

The Company has identified opportunities in the
ASEAN Region and a joint investment in the insurance
business in Laos has been concluded. This life insurance
company is expected to commence business in 2018.

Compliance with all the regulatory requirements and
high standards of corporate governance have built up a
level of trust with customers that strengthens its ability to
be a leading player in the life insurance market. The
Company's CAR Ratio at the end of 2016 was 350 percent
and the pre audit CAR at the end of 2017 was higher than
450 percent , considerably, exceeding 300 percent, The
credit risk that life insurers carry in their CAR calculations
is at the lowest possible level when reinsuring to THREL,
equivalent to a AAA rating for a foreign reinsurer.

In 2017, the Company obtained a financial strength
rating of A- (Excellent) Stable, from AM Best.
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The Trend of Life Insurance Business in 2018

It is expected that life insurance business will grow in

the range of 6 percent to 8 percent in 2018 based on the

following assumptions: -

1.

Strong economic growth with greater personal
disposable income resulting in higher life insurance
premium.

New product development in both life insurance and
Accident & health insurance aim to fulfill the saving
purposes replacing the low interest rate return of
bank’s deposit and ensure uncertain medical
expenses of the hospital treatment in the future.

Government support for Micro Insurance allowing
insurance to reach all levels of society, including
low-income groups.

Digitalization serving customers in new distribution
channels for life insurance.
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Risk Factors

Risk Based Capital

The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has implemented Risk

Based Capital (RBC) regulations to ensure that the insurance

@ which varied by character, size and complexity of the company. The adequacy
of capital measured by the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), calculated as below;

Capital Adequacy Ratio : CAR

Total Capital Available: TCA

Capital Adequacy Ratio: CAR —
Total Capital Required: TCR

Total Capital Available : TCA
represents the fair value adjusted of shareholders’ equity corresponding to the OIC’s requirements.

Total Capital Required : TCR
represents the amount of capital required in order to cover risks arising from business
activities, consisting of 5 key risks;

1) Insurance risk

2) Market risk

3) Credit risk

4) Concentration risk

5) Surrender Risk

r The OIC required the insurance company to maintain CAR not lower than 140%. The Company hag
policy to maintain CAR above 300% to take competitive advantage from reinsurance credit risk charge as
RBC model required the insurance company to hold the capital to cover reinsurance credit risk.
Considering to this requirement, if the insurance company make outward reinsurance with the domestic
reinsurer that has CAR above 300%, the insurance company will be allowed to hold the capital at the
lowest level of risk charge 1.6%, equal to making outward reinsurance with the AAA rated off-shore
reinsurer.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s CAR is higher than 450% which is in the process of auditing from

LAuditor. J

Reinsurance Credit Risk Charge

Risk Grade Off-Shore (Credit Rating) Risk Charge

Domestic (CAR)

%

A+
A ‘ A b 4%
A- ‘ A3 | A- ¢
BBB+ Baa1 BBB+ B
4 < 150% BBB Baa?2 BBB B** 8%
BBB- Baa3 BBB- 47
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5 or Below or Below or Below or Below 12%
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THREL faces both internal and external challenges that affect the way the business is operated. To meet these
challenges the Company has developed a risk management framework to help accomplish its vision, mission, short
and long-term goals as well as maintain its financial stability, reputation, image, competitive advantage and sustainability.
This framework is developed from the Insurance Core Principles (ICP) of the International Association of Insurance
Supervisors (IAIS) and corresponds to the OIC’s risk management requirements.

The Company determines its Risk Appetite and applies this in the formulation of strategy and operational policy
as well as the establishment of enterprise risk management guidelines. In the process of risk management, key risks
that may affect the capital fund, financial stability and reputation of the Company are identified, assessed and analyzed.
The Company establishes risk indicators using appropriate threshold to measure and manage these risks to an
acceptable level whilst also monitoring the effectiveness of these measures. Focusing on learning from actual loss,
THREL then revises both measures and risk indicators to cope with changing environment, regularly monitors key risks
and reports the results of risk management activities to both the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the
Board of Directors every quarter.

Monitor

Response g

Risk Management Process
Key Risks of the Company are classified as follows:

1. Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk is caused by inappropriate formulation and execution of policies, strategic plan and operational
plans; or their inconsistency with external and internal factors including social, economic and technological changes.

Risks Risk Management Measures

Innovation Risk

Creativity is an essential factor in the development of
products, services, programs, processes, operation and
business models of a company 1o use new Innovation,
for example online media, Internet of Things (loT)
or Digitalization. The Company realizes that there may
be a risk of losing a competitive advantage because
employee creativity are not sufficient to handle changes in
the operating environment and opportunities are lost.

The Company has worked with employees to raise
awareness in the importance of creativity and innovation
via the 3D&l (Digital, Diversity, Deregulation and Innovation)
Project. There are many activities organized to promote
creativity and encourage innovation such as Change
Agents, Great Award, the innovation project Contest, and
Creative Day, the knowledge sharing activities.
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Risks

Financial Stability Risk

Maintaining and managing the capital fund securely
and efficiently is a key requirement of the Company. The
reinsurance business and the investment business require
sound management to ensure appropriate returns on
acceptable risks, and sufficient capital fund to cover all
liabilities arising from risk events. A measure of Financial
stability is the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) that is
calculated according to a formula set by the OIC using Risk
Based Capital (RBC) criteria.

Customer Concentration Risk

The concentration of premiums or profits from a
customer or a group of customers may cause volatility in
the Company’s performance interms of revenue and profit
when business from these customers is lost.

2. Operational Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company has taken into account all factors
affecting Total Capital Available (TCA) and Total Capital
Required (TCR)to covers insurance risk, market risk, credit
risk and concentration risk and surrender risk. And
integrates these factors into business planning and core
business activities; including product design and
development, premium rates, underwriting, claims
management, reinsurance and investment, to ensure that
the Company is financially secure and has sufficient capital
for its risk appetite.

The Company has business expansion plans to jointly
develop new products with insurance companies and
diversify income sources thus reducing dependency on a
particular company or group of customers.

Operational Risk is the risk arising from incorrect, insufficient, delay and inappropriate of human capital, process,

systems and external factors; including lack of control over the business, internal controls and corporate governance.

All these risks can have a detrimental effect on the results of the business.

Risks

Human Capital Risk

Knowledgeable, qualified and capable employees are
an essential component in the success of the Company.
Lack of knowledgeable, skilled and experienced managers
and employees will eventually cause the Company to lose
its competitiveness andresult in poor financial performance.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has trained all employees developing
their knowledge and specific skills required for their
position in the business. The Company also has additional
risk management measures in place: -

1. The Company has formulated a Succession Plan to
prepare potential employees for succession to senior
management positions.

2. The Company operates a Talent Development Project
for individual development programs for middle
management, progress of individuals is closely
monitored.
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Risks

Business Process Risk

Business processes that are inefficient, inappropriate
or lack monitoring and control will cause errors and affect
the Company’s financial statements or statistical data used
in determining premium rates or underwriting.

Information Technology Risk

Information is an essential part of any business.
The Company places great emphasis on managing
information technology. Systems must be efficient, effective
and up to date. Information Security Systems need to guard
against all types of Cyber threats.

Legal and Regulation Risk

The change or introduction of new laws, rules and
regulations, including financial reporting standards, can
have an impact on business strategies and results.
Implementation and compliance with these changes often
involves additional expenses.

Reputation Risk

The reputation of the business can be tarnished
through poor corporate behavior, inadequate customer
services and reducing in the CAR.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has operational manuals to provide
standard work procedures and are updated when
necessary. They include guidelines for employees to follow
so that all departments can operate effectively even when
employees are absent. The Internal Auditors check full
compliance to ensure that operationis in accordance with
the manuals.

The Company has a Business Continuity Plan (BCP),
which is reviewed annually.

The Company has an established Information Security
System that safeguards essential business operations and
data. Back-up Systems and a Back-up Data Center are in
place to support the business in the event of an emergency.
Regulations and procedures in connection with
the Company’s policy on Information Security and
Information System Security to prevent loss and leakage
are in place. The Company has Business Continuity Plan
for its Information Technology System.

The Company closely monitors changes to laws, rules
and regulations and assesses their impact on business
strategies andresults. Careful preparation and management
to comply with any changes is undertaken ahead of
deadlines.

The Company always strives to meet the expectations
of key stakeholders. Customer surveys and employee
satisfaction surveys are used to improve the corporate
image. In a survey on corporate governance of Thai listed
companies organized by the Institute of Directors (I0OD)
the Company scored 90% and was rated as “Very Good”.
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3. Insurance Risk

Risks

Insurance Risk

Insurance risk is associated with performing insurance

activities. These include

1.

o 9k w

Product Design and Development

Pricing

Underwriting

Claims Management

Reinsurance

Reserve Valuation

reflecting the frequency and severity of actual claims

that deviate from the assumptions used in actuarial

calculations and affect underwriting performance.

Risk Management Measures

The Company sets risk management measures as

part of insurance process, which are:

1.

Setting up the Product Design and Development
Committee to consider key factors that may affect
the financial status of the Company. When products
are launched monitoring, the underwriting results form
an essential partin the improvement and development
of these and other products.

Enhancing Underwriting Guideline for seeking high
standards of technical knowledge and reliable
statistical data. Training underwriting personnel to
comply with the guidelines in the manual.

Actuarial certification of reserves ensures that
the financial condition of the company is sound, and
it can meet all its contractual obligations.
Purchasing Excess of Loss retrocession that limits
the maximum loss the Company might suffer.
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4. Market Risk

Risks

Market Risk

The changes in market factors such as interest rates,
exchange rates, debt instrument prices and equity prices
may affectinvestmentincome, value of assets and liabilities
and capital fund.

5. Credit Risk

Risks

Credit Risk

Signing contracts with the counterparties who may
not be able to meet their obligations or may delay payment
of suffer a credit downgrade can result in bad debts affect
the Company’s cash flow and overall performance.

6. Liquidity Risk

Risks

Liquidity Risk

The failure of the Company to pay debt and meet its
financial obligations ontime could be caused by an inability
to liquidate assets or the cost of asset liquidation may be
deemed too high. Circumstances such as these would
seriously affect the business performance.

Risk Management Measures

The main type of Market risks for life insurance
companies is Asset and Liability mismatch from interest
rates change. Although interest rates have followed a
worldwide decline the effect on the Company has been
small when compared to insurance companies because
net cash flow from reinsurance differs from that of the
underlying life insurance policies.

For the risk in equity prices, the Company has a policy
that avoids speculative investment in high risk securities.
The investment focus is in strong fundamentals. All
investment decisions consider present and potential
economic conditions. The Company also limits exposure
through investment ratios, both product limit and
counterparty limit, to limit any losses that may occur.

Risk Management Measures

The Company’s credit risks arise from investment in
debt instruments and reinsurance retrocessions.
The Company monitor all its reinsurers in terms of their
ability to repay debt and their financial status. Corporate
policy requires that all retrocessions and investment in
private bonds are with companies having a minimum
A- credit rating.

Risk Management Measures

The Company manages its liquidity by diversifying
assets and matching liabilities. Investment in liquid assets
is matched with cash requirement needs based on cash
flow projections. There is also a focus on maintaining
liquidity at a higher level than required by the OIC’s
regulations.
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Structure of Shareholders and Management

whoKu

snuBoynoAusulnn
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HAUAR U JUN 14 AULNBU 2560

snuBounNorRU

Shareholders' Name

BNP Paribas Securities Services, London Branch

CHASE NOMINEES LIMITED

nodnuidniuasAuauaalAw Aoerdeen Small Cap Fund
NoINUIUAUIMA0IRUS:8:819 Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund

navnuIdAIudSAUINSN Aberdeen Growth Fund
NoVNUIUAIUBSFHURUS:8:e10 Aberdeen Long-Term Equity Fund
. UNYsIE NSSAUUWIY Mr.Thawat Tassaneepong

© ® N o ok~

10. NOINUIUAUOKHADIAUS=8:610 75/25 Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund 75/25

SOU Total
11. JAORUBU Other shareholders
SOUNAVAU Grand Total

UsuNn IngSuds:Aunoso 910n (UKNBU) Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited

N.C.B.Trust Limited-Norges Bank 11 N.C.B.Trust Limited-Norges Bank 11

Shareholders

Major Shareholders List

Ten major shareholders as at the latest registration book
closing date of September 14, 2017 are as follows:

JIUDUAUNTIO dndou (Sowuar)

No. of Shares Percentage

93,190,630 156.5
23,200,000 3.9
21,240,600 3.5
21,128,929 3.5
21,065,600 3.5
17,350,700 2.9
15,214,713 2.5
14,087,503 2.3
11,890,000 2.0
10,814,000 1.8
249,177,675 41.4
360,822,325 58.6
600,000,000 100.0

lushuBonauyioruninanovesu 10K Affelnuusen
InuiBusrons $11n dulugoonnsiansiBudionsrSoluianians
Tuwaus:luRinaINKannswgawauing (NVDR) Burudout
InoUn@v:liTgansoonidoaiunisus:yuiifioRu nutiyainu
ANUNSNNSOAUTNUOURUANEAYVEY USUN Afelngusdn Ingy
1BUTADNS 9711A [RvNIBulsFivasnatarannsweliKuus:inAlNg
www.set.or.th

Yaunuausngioyautioruaian 10 shoisn AIdudaguu
TR n13UlsrvoNUSENY (www.thairelife.co.th) 1a:i5ulgsivoy
natarannsSwdirnads:iNAlNg (www.set.or.th) NEHAY
msUAdauAn:IDouinnslourulunnASy

WriorustelrnyRlngwnAnisnudonswaronsiirun
ulguNENISINNISKSONISFNITUINUVDIUSENY Dgubuganny

-Jo-

vVomnaus:noayghoRUs19TKnY

-lub-

Among the shareholders listed above, none of the shares
are held by Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., which is an issuer of non-vot-
ing depository receipts (NVDR). Normally, the voting rights on
these shares are not exercised at the shareholders’ meeting.
For the latest update on number of the Company’s shares held
by Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., please visit website of the Stock Ex-
change of Thailand at www.set.or.th.

For the latest update on the top ten major shareholders,
please visit website of the Company at www.thairelife.co.th and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand at www.set.or.th after the
closing of the shareholders registration book.

The major shareholder who, by actions, has a significant
influence over the determination of policy or the management
or control of operations of the Company.

- None -

Major Shareholders’ Agreement

-None-
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Issue of Other Securities

The Company has not issued any preferred shares, debt
securities or convertible securities that may affect rights of the
shareholders.

Dividend Policy

We have a policy to pay dividends at not less than 40 percent
of net profit from the separate financial statement after
corporate income tax and all types of reserves as required by
law and as specified in the Company’s Articles of Association.
However, the dividend payment is subject to change as deemed
necessary and appropriate by the Board of Directors.
The Company’s dividend payment must be approved by OIC
pursuant to Section 32 of the Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535 (and

the subsequent amendments).
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Shareholding of Director and Management

ANU:NSSUNAS Director

LEEIUF KAura Mr. Suchin Wanglee
Aausala:unsHglussataNIo:

their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

UNgaNs sIRSUASSA Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
Aausala:unsngIliussaumAnio:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

ns.NoUs NOMYINSU Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
Aausdia:unsnauliussaumano:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

ns.onsny Inwsuuna Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul
Aausaia:unsnauliussaumano:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

UNAUATY 8aSUUN Mrs. Kornkai Thusaranon
Aausala:unsngIluussaumnio:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

nS.g8 [unv:10a Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa
Aausdia:unsnauliussaumano:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

UNEN00U0R 1S9ISAUIUS Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee
Aausaia:unsnauliussaumano:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

UWUNBNS d0sstuanme Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
Aausalia:unsnagIluussaumnio:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

WUSH1S Management
UWaNoasuNs sssugunsnd Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn

Aausala:unsagulilussatmnio:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

UNEN0A2IUNT NIEYIUDIAQFU Ms. Duangnapa
Kanchanawongwut

Aausdia:unsnauliussaumano:

their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

ungwssy larspudla Mr.Pornchai Loratanavilai
Aausaia:unsnauliussaumano:
their spouses and children who have not reached maturity

FIUOUKURA
Wasundauwuvu
| (@nav) Tul 2560
Change Increase

FuouUKURTo
U dun
1 8Ud1IAU 2559

dndounisiioAu
fuussen(Sovas)

Percentage

(Decrease)
in 2017

of Dec 31, 2017'|of Dec 31, 2016'

1,341,471 1,341,471 -

3,360 3,360 -

8,018 8,018 -
672 672 -

1,500 1,500 -

0.22

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

HUNgIKR - | SIUoURUANUrYRooNIa1sId0 600,000,000 KU
Remark : "Number of common stock issued and paid-up 600,000,000 shares
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Management Structure

The Company’s management structure is composed of
the Board of Directors and four subcommittees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, Investment Committee, the Risk Management
Committee.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of eight members of
whom five are non-executive directors and three are
executive directors. Four of them are qualified as independent
directors, as defined by the Company based on the SEC’s
guideline. Each term of directorship is three years, as
stipulated inthe Company’s Articles of Association. However,
there is no limitation on the number of terms of office of
the directors, independent directors and members of
subcommittees because the Company needs to especially
retain some board members who are knowledgeable and
specialized in insurance business and are scarce. Profile of

each director is presented in Board Members.
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As of December 31, 2017, the Board of Director are listed below:

Bo

Director

AIIKUY

Position

UNgaRUE KK
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

uNgans sInsuassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

ns.NoUs NOMYIASHU
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

ns.ofsny Inwsuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

UNAUAY sasuun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

ns.gs lunv:ioa
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

UAN00UA 1SOISAUIUS

Uszsunssunis lla:nssunNIsadnu
Chairman and Director of the Investment Committee

NSSUMS Wonuognsivny llasnssunisavnu
Director, President, Director of the Investment Committee

NSSUNNSDAS: US:S1UNSSUNISASI80U 11a: US:SIUNSSUNISASSHIIIa:mKunAINouINU
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee

NSSUNISIAS: NSSUNISASIIFOU 12:NSSUNISASSHN 1d: AMHUAAINDUINU
Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee

NSSUNNSDAS: NSSUNISASIVADU IA:NSSUNISASSKA lla: KURAINoUINU
Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee

NSSUNISOAs:
Independent Director

nssuMsia-yoseuosnisivey

Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

8. UWUNBNS dosstuanme
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

Director and Senior Vice President

nssuMsa:gosenuosnisiney
Director and Senior Vice President
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The authorized directors on behalf of the Company are Mr.
Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson, Miss Navadee
Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
whereby any two of them shall co-sign with the Company’s seal
affixed, except Miss Navadee Ruangrattanametee and
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit are unable to co-sign.
Miss Sirin Dhumma-upakorn acts as the Company Secretary.

Term of Office

Atevery annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third
of the total number of directors shall vacate office. If the num-
ber of directors is not divisible into a multiple of three, the
number of directors nearest to one-third shall retire from office.
The directors to retire from office in the first and second years
following the registration of the Company shall be drawn by
lots. In subsequent years, the directors who have remained in
office for the longest time shall vacate office. A vacating direc-
tor may be eligible for re-election.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of

the Board of Directors

1. Perform a duty and oversee the Company to ensure
compliance with the laws, objectives and Articles of
Association of the Company, resolutions of the Board of
Directors and resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting,
by upholding accountability with due care and integrity.

2. Formulate and approve the vision, strategy, business
direction, policy, goal, guideline, action plans and
budgets of the Company and its subsidiary, prepared and
proposed by the management, and supervise
the business administration and performance of the
management or the persons designated to handle such
task to ensure compliance with the policy outlined by
the Board of Directors.

3. Follow up on the performance of duty, on a continuous
pasis, to ensure it meets with the action plans and
pudgets.

4. Ensure that the Company and its subsidiary have in place
a sound and efficient accounting system, a reliable
financial reporting and auditing system, and an adequate
and proper internal control and audit system.

5. Review the risk management process and policy and
follow up on the performance thereof.

©.  Ensure that there is no conflict of interest between
stakeholders of the Company and its subsidiary.
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7. Establish a policy on good corporate governance
and ensure an efficient use of such policy.

8. Appoint subcommittees such as the Audit Committee or
any other committees to assist in and support the Board
of Directors’ discharge of duty, as deemed fit.

9. Appoint the Company secretary to assist the Board of
Directors in performing of duty to make certain that
the Company’s business operation conforms to
the applicable laws and regulations.

10. Seek professional advice from external organizations,
where necessary, to form a basis for proper decisionmak-
ing.

11. Prepare an annual report and assume responsibility for
the preparation and disclosure of financial statements to
present financial position and working results in the
past year to the annual shareholders’ meeting.

12, Arrange for an annual general meeting of shareholders to
be held within four months after the end of each fiscal
year of the Company.

The delegation of power, duties andresponsibilities
of the Board of Directors excludes the authorization or
subauthorization of the directors or their appointees in
the approval of transactions in which they or persons with
potential conflict of interest (as defined in notification of the
Securities and Exchange Commission or notification of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have a vested interest
or may obtain benefits in any form or may have any other
conflict of interest with the Company or its subsidiary, unless it
is the approval of transactions that are in line with the policy

and guideline approved by the shareholders’ meeting or
the Board of Directors of the Company.
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The Scope of Duties, Authorities and

Responsibilities of the Chairman

1. The Board Chairman or person designated by the Board
Chairman has a duty to call for a meeting of the Board of
Directors by submitting an invitation letter at least 14 days
pefore the meeting date allowing directors adequate time
to fully consider board matters to be raised at the meeting.

2. The Board Chairman determines the meeting agenda
jointly with the President.

3. The Board Chairman chairs meetings ensuring that it is
efficiently run with sufficient time for the presentation of
information and participation of all directors from
the raising of questions and opinions to the controlling of
discussions and the summation of the meeting’s
resolutions.

4. The Board Chairman plays a key role in encouraging all
directors to comply with corporate governance principles.

5. The Board Chairman communicates all essential
information to directors.

6.  The Board Chairman encourages directors’ participation
in shareholders” meetings and acts as chairman of the
meeting to control and ensure that the meeting is efficient
and to respond to all guestions raised by shareholders

7. The Board Chairman requires the Board of Directors to
perform their duties in compliance with the laws and the

corporate governance principles of the Company.

Board of Directors Structure

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board
of Directors shall be composed of at least five, but not more

than fifteen members.
1. The board members are categorized into two types:

Type 1: classified by management into
« Executive director
« Non-executive director
Type 2: classified by independence into
« Independent director
» Non-independent director
2. Thedirectors’ term of office shall be three years atatime.
Atevery annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third

of the total number of directors shall vacate office.
If the number of directors is not divisible into a multiple of
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three, the number of directors nearest to one-third shall
retire rom office. The directors to retire from office in the
first and second years following the transformation of the
Company shall be drawn by lots. In subsequent years, the
directors who have remained in office for the longest time
shall vacate office. A vacating director may be eligible for

re-election at a shareholders’ meeting.

Apart from retiring by rotation, a director shall vacate office

upon his

1. Death;

2. Resignation;

3. Disqualification or possession of legally prohibited
characteristics;

4. Being retired by resolution of a shareholders’
meeting with votes not less than three-fourths of
total number of shareholders attending the meeting
and having voting rights, provided that their
aggregate shareholding is not less than half of total
number of shares held by the shareholders attending
the meeting and having voting rights;

5. Being retired by a court order.

The independent directors shall have the gualifications

as regulated by the SEC and the SET.

The Board of Directors shall be composed of independent

directors in the number not less than one-third of total

number of the board members, but not fewer than three
persons.

The Board Chairman and the President shall be elected

oy the Board of Directors. It has been made a policy to

elect the Board Chairman on a yearly basis at the first
board meeting held after every annual general meeting
of shareholders.

The directors and executives are allowed to assume

the position of director and executive of affiliated

companies or other companies, which shall comply with
regulations of the SEC, the SET and concerned authorities
and shall be informed to the Board of Directors’ meeting.

The Board of Directors shall designate a Company

secretary, whose duties are to give advice on legal issues

and all rules and regulations necessary for the Board of

Directors, support the board activities, to coordinate and

ensure that the board resolutions are implemented, and

liaise with the shareholders, the SEC, the SET and

allregulatory bodies concerned.
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Board of Directors and Subcommittee’ meeting

1. Board of Directors Meeting

1.

The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates of
the meeting to be held at least four times a year
(once every three months) and shall clearly specify
regular items on the meeting agenda such as
consideration and approval of reviewed/audited financial
statements, etc. The agenda other than such regular items
shall be jointly determined by the Board Chairman,
Chairman of the Executive Board and the President as
deemed crucial and necessary. In 2017, the Board of
Directors held a total of six meeting, in the event that
the meeting is not held monthly, the Company shall
prepare and submit a performance report to the Board of
Directors on a monthly basis to enable the Board of
Directors to continuously monitor, control and supervise
the management’s operation.

Other Subcommittees may hold a meeting to consider
the issues under their power and duties delegated by
the Board of Directors, with the Company secretary to
coordinate the meeting.

Details of the meeting agenda and meeting documents
shall be submitted to the directors at least seven days in
advance. The documents shall provide a brief summary
of the proposed matters. Confidential issues that are not
to be disclosed in writing shall be put forward for
discussion at the meeting.

The non-executive directors may, as deemed fit and
necessary, arrange a meeting without presence of the
management, with the Company secretary to coordinate
the meeting, and shall report results of such meeting to
the executive directors.

The directors may additionally request essential
information directly from the President and the Company
secretary, including the executives assigned to handle
such matter.

At every meeting, the executives and concerned parties
should be invited to join the meeting in order to provide
information and details as a basis for making the right and
timely decision.
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Review of the financial statements of the Company prior
to submission to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
the Securities Exchange Commission.

Nomination of auditors and their remuneration. In 2017,
EY Office Limited was nominated and appointed as
auditors of the Company for a further year.

Holding of joint meetings with the external auditors two
sessions took place in 2017. At one meeting without
the attendance of management, a review of guidelines
and the scope of audit performance was conducted.
A review of audit plans, results, and recommendations
has been undertaken to ensure that all audit processes
are done inamanner consistent with auditing standards.
Directing, supervising and approving internal annual audit
plans based on the Company’s risks in order of their
significance. The inspection reports are audited to ensure
that the investigation has been completed in accordance
with auditing standards. This includes monitoring of the
proposed revisions to the internal controls system to
improve efficiency and effectiveness.

Areview to ensure compliance with laws and regulations
every quarter.

A review of transaction reports relating to the parties
every quarter.

Directing and supervising the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee. The ERMC review the
Company’s risk management policies, policy
implementation and guidelines for effective risk
management. Their reports on risk management are
provided to the board and they provide useful feedback
on a regular basis.

Conducting an annual Audit Committee self-evaluation

for review and self-improvement.

Provision of an annual internal control evaluation and

propose evaluation results to the Board of Directors.
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4. n1sUs:yuAruzNssuNiIsadnu

U0 2560 UN1SINUST3UANUINSSUNISAINU 2 ASY
WoWNSUNIWUNISaINUUS=91U
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3. Remuneration and Nominating Committee’s

Meeting

In 2017, the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
held three meeting to consider the director nomination and the
yearly remuneration for the Board of Directors, subcommittees
and top management. The Remuneration and Nominating
Committee performed duties within the scope of responsibilities
set forth in the Remuneration and Nominating Committee

Charter in all respects.

4. Investment Committee’s Meeting

In 2017, there was an Investment Committee’s meeting

held two meeting to consider annual investment plan.

5. Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s
Meeting
In 2017, The Enterprise Risk Management Committee

had four meetings. The committee reported risk management

progress to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

nasivasouUs:guvaunssunisusenia:nssunisyngout 2560

Jdruounsunivads:yu / 9ruounsunus:=yuiut 2560

ANU=NSSUNIS

S10EONSSUMIS Akt ACUINSSUNIS | AfuzNSSUNIS | dsskilla: | AfU=NSSUNIS
MNSOVEOU KU aJnu
AMDUIINU
1. UNgARUS KK Usz87uNnssuNIsia:NssuNIsadnu 6/6 - - 2/2
2. ps.nads NOmendstu NSSUNISHAS: USts1UNSSUNISASOvAU las 6/6 5/5 3/3 -
Us=s1unssunisassnianinunAnauinu
3. Ugans sInsuassA NSSUNIS NSSUNIsadnuiia:auosnIsiney 6/6 - - 2/2
4. ps.oNSNU INweuuna  NSSUNNSAAS: NSSUNISASIvEaU lla: 5/6 5/5 3/3 -
NSSUNMISASSHIA=MIKUAAIADUINU
5. UWAUAIY SASIUUM  NSSUNISAAS: NSSUNISASI9EDU llas 5/6 - 3/3 -
NSSUNSASSKIazMKUAAIRDUINU
6. £s.45 lunv=10a NSSUNISAs: 4/6 - - -
7. UNENNUOR ISOUSAUIUS NSSUNIS 6/6 - - -
8. UUNsNS d0ssnuansel Nssunis 6/6 - - -
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The names of the Board of Directors, including their meeting attendance in 2017 are given below.

Board of Directors Position

No. of meetings attended / No. of meetings held in 2017

The
Remuneration| The
Board of The Audit

and Investment
Directors Committee

Committee

Nominating

Committee

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee Chairman and Director of the 6/6 - - 2/2
Investment Committee
2. Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana Independent Director, Chairman of 6/6 5/5 3/3 -
the Audit Committee, Chairman of
the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee
3. Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson Director, Director of the Investment 6/6 - - 2/2
Committee and President
4. Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul Independent Director, Director of 5/6 5/5 3/3 -
the Audit Committee, Director of
the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee
5. Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon Independent Director, Director of 5/6 - 3/3 -
the Audit Committee, Director of
the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee
6. Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa Independent Director 4/6 - - -
7. Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee Director 6/6 - - -
8. Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit Director 6/6 - - -
wushis Management

£UAURA 31 SUDTAU 2560 LJUSKNSVOIUSENG D5 uou 5 rinu mad

o
Name
1. U19ans sInSuassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
2. UAN0U0R 1ISOUSAUIUS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

3. UUnEns dosscudnmne
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

4. Uanoasuns sssuaunsad
Ms. Sirin Dhurmma-upakorn

5. UNE0AIUNT NICYUDIAQET

Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut
6. unewsdy lansnudla

Mr.Pornchai Loratanavilai

As of December 31, 2017, the management of the Company

are listed below

ANNIKUY

Position

Wonuosnsikey

President

WEosauoaNIslnny

Senior Vice President
WgouauouNslnny

Senior Vice President
WonuosNIstheurygiaznisiiu

Vice President — Accounting and Finance
WonuosnIstheuainu

Vice President — Investment
WouosNIsthewstuSuls=Nnung
Vice President - Underwriting

swiuds=90 2560
usun IngsUs:NusddIn 911A (VH1BU)



voulvaourrnlnNia:nUSUABOUVOU

wonuounisinny

1.

SUlABOU QA USKAS NSANTUINUIA/MSONISUSHISIIU
Us=913uvegusynd sautivnisainugianisatudnulng
sou WielHDulUmuuloune nagnsnussie I rungia:
IUNISANTWNU 1UIMUNEN1INISIIU IIa:0uUSUtUvey
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AMHUAINEANZNSSUNISUSEN)

ANFIUIR:SIVINUANID: IUVDIUSTNY Idusiu:N1JIdan
la=nagnsnaonndonuulouigia:an wnann

Alala:AouAUNISURUANIUATUANY VoIUSENY 910
NS NISUSKISADUIAE N1SADUAUNIETU dUFU
Jnuanisia-ousnuaduayunig 9 lasnunswenns
ITUA2INUUSENY HaonUTTIUILDUKINSTUNISARAD
AUKLIDBIUSIBNSIA:HUDENAURIADUT
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QualFimsriAugIanonIsh

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and

Responsibilities of President

Be responsible for, supervise and manage the Company’s
day-to-day operation and/or administration, including
overall operational monitoring, to be in line with
the policy, business strategy, operational goal and action
plans, financial targets, and budgets of the Company as
approved by the Board of Directors and/or resolved
by the shareholders’ meeting.

Map out business plans, define the administration
authority and prepare the yearly budgets for business
operation and capital expenditure for the Board of
Directors’ approval, and report the actual performance
against such approved business plans and budgets to
the Board of Directors.

Setout the organization structure, management approach,
and employee recruitment, training, employment and
termination of employment, and determine employees’
wage rate, salary rate, compensation, bonus and fringe
penefits under the framework and budgets approved by
the Board of Directors (except for the remuneration,
salary, compensation, bonus and fringe benefits for the
President and the Senior Executive Vice President which
shall be determined by the Board of Directors).

Follow up on and report the Company’s status and
position and recommend alternatives and strategies that
fit with the policy and market environment.

Supervise and control the Company’s operations in the
areas of, among others, finance, risk management,
internal control, back-office operation, and resources.
Act as representative of the Company and have authority
to contact government agencies and other regulatory
podies.

Communicate with the public, shareholders, customers
and employees to promote a good reputation and image
of the Company.

Ensure that good corporate governance practices are in

place.
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10.

11.

12.

gdunstuniseen IRTv WuIAU USuUse s:0ou Adu ia: 9.

VoUuAUIRYIUNSIINNUVOIUSINY 18U NSUSSY IFJA]
NOANOU I2-0UgWUNVIUIA:ANYIY NSMIKUARUIRDUIA:
UL SOURAOATINISANIASHIIa=adaRANISAN

WRISOUN 19591619300 1a:0UIIANISIVIrUANSSUANYYY
Ia=/M$on1sANIOuNTSIA ARgoveuTunsAITUIUIA:
HSONSUSHNSINUUS91AUVEIUSENG NIt NeTANSoUR
FrUAISTUSIUNRA I TUNSAIFSUOUTAIINANU:NSSUNIS
usun

081U19 KU 1I2:ANUSUEAEOUTAY MURTASULBUKLNY
rSomMUUIIUNINIFSUUDUANUNEINANENSSUNISUSEN
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NISUOUTILNY KSOUOUSINIBINMIALSUoNISTHEY
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HSo019INSUUSTUsUuaNBOUEIR9 KSODNWDAD VAN
waus:louusulnAuUSENY KéaUSENdouvausin nidu
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10.

11.

12.

Have power to issue, amend, add and revise rules, orders
and regulations pertaining to the Company’s operations
such as employment, appointment, removal and
discipline of staff and employees, fixing of salary and
other monies including aids and welfare provision.
Consider, negotiate and approve the entering into
agreements and/or any other acts relating to the
Company’s day-to-day operation and/or administration
under the delegation of power framework approved
by the Board of Directors.

Assume any power, duty and responsibility as assigned
or under the policy designated by the Board of Directors.
Have power to sub-authorize and/or assign other person
to perform any particular act on his behalf, whereby any
such sub-authorization and/or assignment shall be
within the scope of authorization specified in the letter of
attorney and/or shall conform to the rules, regulations or
orders set forth by the Board of Directors. The said
delegation of power, duties and responsibilities of
the President excludes the authorization or
sub-authorization of the President or his appointees in
the approval of transactions in which he or persons with
potential conflict of interest (as defined in notification of
the Securities and Exchange Commission or notification
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have
avested interest or may obtain benefits in any form or may
have any other conflict of interest with the Company or
its subsidiary, unless it is the approval of transactions that
are in line with the policy and guideline approved by
the shareholders” meeting or the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The Company has documented the delegation of power

to serve as an operational handbook and a reference and to
follow the procedure in a systematic manner. The Company
determines and approve the yearly budgets which consist of

the estimated underwriting income and expenses, capital ex-

penditure, operating expenses, and purchase of fixed assets.
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Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Sirin Dhummaupakorn

as Company secretary from July 26, 2017.

The Company secretary is responsible for all matters

relating to Board registration, meeting letters, Board meeting

reports, annual report, shareholders meeting letters,

shareholders meeting reports, including Profits and Loss

reports by the Board or management and other transactions

required by Capital Market Supervisory Board. According to

measure 89/14, the copy of the Profits and Loss report should

be presented to the Presidents of the Board and Auditor

within seven working days of receipt of the report.

Additional duties and responsibilities include:

1.

Provide regular advice to the Board of Directors in
respect of all legal and regulatory issues.

Organise shareholders and Board meetings in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Record proceedings of shareholders and Board
meetings and ensure decisions agreed at the
meetings are implemented.

Follow legal and regulatory requirements in the
control and disclosure of corporate information.
Follow legal and regulatory requirements in respect
of Board decisions.
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Remuneration for the Board of Directors and

Executives

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for determining remuneration of directors and top
management before seeking approval from the shareholders’
meeting for director remuneration and from the Board of

Directors for top management remuneration. The rate of
remuneration is comparable with those offered in this business
and is commensurate with their duties and responsibilities and
sufficient to stimulate and retain the talented personnel.
Directors who are assigned to also serve on other
subcommittees will receive extra remuneration. The Board of
Directors shall decide on the remuneration of each top
management member based on a yearly evaluation of his/her

performance.

1. Monetary Remuneration
Directors' Remuneration

The remunerations in 2017 as the resolution of
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 6 on April 21,
2017 are listed below:

AdeUs:=susonSy *

Monthly Remunerations |(sionau) Conference fee *

AMUZNSSUNIS (per person)

Board of Directors Us:=s1u
NSsSUNIS
NsSsSUNIS )
Director
Chairman
ANUNSSIUNISUSEN -lUo- -[UD-
Board of Directors
ANUNSSUNISASIVADU -lUo- -[UD-
Audit Committee
ANUNSSUNISASSKHIIA:AHUNAN -Uo- -IUo-
fnouliNU The Remuneration and
Nominating Committee
ANUENSSUNISAINU -lJd- -lud-

Investment Committee

Us:zsu

(per person) AUNIKG (Flonnu)

Gratuity(per person)
NSsSUNIS

nssunNIs

Director

Chairman

20,000 20,000 [Uifiu 3.0 ahuunn dnasslius:siunssuns
2 doU NSSUNSMUdU Mua: 1 dou
Not more than 3.0 million baht allocated
to the Chairman with 2 parts and the other
directors are allocated one part per person.

30,000 20,000 -[UT- -None-

20,000 20,000 -[UT- -None-

20,000 20,000 -[UT- -None-

HUEIKR *AdoUsguRonSIsoriu 9:91eTRINNssuNSANMSouUSuINndU
Remark * Meeting allowance per person was paid to only the attendees of the meeting.

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)
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In 2017, remuneration for the Board of Directors, details of which are shown in the below table:

mlﬁsJLJs:qunssums (Uan) Remunerations (Baht)

ANU=NSSUNIS

o AfU= AU= AUz o
I AUIKG9 dssrllazNIKUA
snuBonssunis :

AssUMS nssunis | nssunis | nssunis FAOUINU

Board of Directors ussn MNSOV&OU aunu .
Gratuity ' Remuneration

Board of Audit Investment . .
nd Nominatin

Directors |Committee|Committee .
Committee

1. UNYRUR HOINE 730,000 120,000 - 40,000 - 890,000
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. ns.nous NORMYINSTU 365,000 120,000 150,000 - 60,000 695,000
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

3. UNgans sINSIASSA 365,000 120,000 - 40,000 - 525,000
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4. ps.oNsny Inwruuna 365,000 100,000 100,000 - 60,000 625,000
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

5. UNAUAY sasuur 182,000 100,000 100,000 - 60,000 442,000
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

6. £s.45 lunv=104 - 80,000 - - - 80,000
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

7. UNUNBNS 40sstuanng 182,000 120,000 - - - 302,000
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

8. UAN00UOR ISOISAUIUS 182,000 120,000 - - - 302,000
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

9. UadnoJunn mryvuaum,m - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

10. UNgassy Asdaan 130,000 - - - - 130,000
Mr.Surachai Sirivallop

11. UNgYao 1WoJdonsug 317,000 - - - - 317,000
Mr. Chalaw Fuangaromya

12. Uglows ouAdswIBuY 59,000 - - - - 59,000
Mr. Oran Vongsuraphichet

13. UNgISWUS 9d0:8UNa 53,000 - - - - 53,000
Mr. Jiraphant Asvatanakul

14. unglsu lantuwis 70,000 - - - - 70,000
Mr. Chone Sophonpanich

SOu Total 3,000,000 880,000 350,000 120,000 180,000 4,530,000

KN IkR Note :  ANmauINUNSsUMS [USoUAnoUINUIUFILEUSKNS a0 0AnouInulAINATUENSSUNNSUSHISAOUIAUY
The remuneration for committee did not include in the remuneration as the management. Also, there was no remuneration to
the Risk Management Committee.
2nssuMsanaun 10-14 avoonvnnisidunssunisius:dt 2559 IRDnssurUkienssunisiul 2560
The 10th - 14th directors were resigned during 2016 but gratuity have been paid in 2017.
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Executives’ Remuneration

In 2017, the Company paid the remuneration, including
salary and bonus, to the five executives with a total of 20.5

million baht.

2. Other Remunerations

Other remunerations for directors
- None -
Other remunerations for executives

The Company provided the provident fund for the Company’s
executives with 5-10 percent contribution on their salary. In 2017,

the Company totally contributed Baht 1.3 million for five executives.

Human Resources

The total number of employees as at December 31, 2017
was 32, employees working on each core business line is
listed below:

9ausuwlnuiu

Department

WUSKNS Management

WHRJUISSA9 Business Development
WIWUNAYNS Strategic Planning
aduayuvala Operation Support
W1SUNSUUSEAUNU Underwriting
Unygiia:n1siiu la:noununglunassuds:uind

No. of Employees

Accounting & Finance and Operation Control & Budgeting

5uq Others

Souﬁuéu Total

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)
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usuUN« JulgugINgATNOUINUWINITUNNS:AUDE WIKIU:
aua:dusssu MIUANUIFT ADIUS ADIUAENUISA la:Us:aunisou
TUN1SHIU TREWINSTUNNISINUAT RouInuIuS:g=auna:
s:g:010 [ngAmouInulus:g:audu usund MruAtionTS
WRISUNUSUIWUEASTIUIFoUUS:910vVouwldnuIu AU
NS:UoUNSABAIRU IUSJTA a: Dusssu SanannisgAnouinu
UV Pay for Performance Ingdunuansufusiaiuvoswdniiu
1Jusnuunna wiunsus:10u Key Performance Indicator (KPI)
BurngnonIuuLUaIa [NYSUINS:AUUSTN auuls:AUaNENU
UMY 1WUN 1a=wWUNINUAUENAU IIa:n1sUs:I0U Competency A
AONAAOINUIRIUSSSUMANYOIUS BN doUAIMOUINUIUSE:810
Juusang [HwWansunfuAngnIwvadwlinduwunsus:iou
Competency AUSUNY UNUISTUNsritnunnumontintuang
oFWvoIWINUIU UsNINTUSENY SulArnnsasavrmouinu
AUUSBNBUY Tunauds=nungidus:o:q IWoSNYN lIaz1a5UaS
AOUAENUNSOIUNSINUTURNUUSHISNUUYBETRNUUS BN

ANMOUINUSOUVOIWUINIIUUSNIKTDINIIUIAOUAIUUNG
I180gvbadannisduduls:nousioy  lulla IUBouIKdoWIAY
NuauNUNadnuansediaguawnseaunuiudnsi$oa: 5-10 Vu
2YNUONNIU ANSNYIWEIUNA NUAUNUUSNUSIAU [IUaunu
[nsunisads:lysuwdneiu NIsUs:AUEIN gURAIKRAIA:-gvNIw
soutluA@Iulumswruutunains (ud 2560 usund [A919AN
noUINUTAINWUINIIUFILOUMYAU 29 1uuin [nglvoyaniy
mseuEalUl

ARMDUIINUVDIWUNJIU

Employees expenses

Employees’ Remuneration

The Company has reasonable and fair remuneration
policy for every level of employees, based on their educational
packground, knowledge, skill, and work experience and pays
them both short and long term remuneration. For short term
one, the Company has clear and transparent process to
determine yearly salary increase, based on Pay per
Performance principle; which takes each employee’s
performance evaluation, through Key Performance Indicator
(KP1), into consideration. The KPI is transferred from top to
bottom, starting from corporate level down to division,
department, section and employee. In addition, competency
is also assessed in accordance with the Company’s core
culture. For long term remuneration, the Company considers
each employee’s potentiality through competency assessment,
which is used in determining advancementin career path. Apart
from this, the Company periodically surveys the remuneration
of other companies in the insurance group in order to maintain
and strengthen its competitiveness in managing human capital.

Apart from salaries, the remuneration package includes
pbonuses, financial aids, employee provident fund to which the
Company contributes five to ten percent of the individual
employees’ salary depending on years of service, healthcare,
social security fund, employee benefit program, life, accident
& health insurance, and personnel development. In 2017,
The Company paid Banht 29 million for employee remuneration,
details of which are as follows:

aauunn
THB Million

NUIFDUIAzANNISY Salary and wage 25.3
NuUUS=NUAIAU Social security fund 0.2
muaunu|\77ﬂomuéﬁsamﬁwﬁw (Tludouvoausan) Contribution to provident fund 1.3
waus:lgsunatoanINdNuU Defined benefit plans 0.2
ANMOUINUBUES Other benefits 2.1
SOU Total 29.1
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Human Resource Development Policy

The Company attaches a high level of importance to
human resource development and has conducted training
needs surveys of all employees to enable them to develop
essential skills that are appropriate to their role and career
advancement. The Company encourages the employees to
develop long term Individual Development Plan and; with the
support of each employee’s boss together with the division
responsible for human capital development and management,
incorporates it into a proper type of development; including
domestic and overseas training as well as non-training
development, such as developing a project. In addition,
the Company also provides scholarship for employees to
pursue their master degree in relevant fields.

In 2017, the Company assigned 32 employees to attend
36 training courses, 548 all training hours, 17.13 average
training hours per employee on training,

Apart from general human development plan as above
mentioned; in 2017, the Company had initiated Creative Day
and Knowledge Sharing activities. These activities are
regularly organized once a month to enable the employees to
listen to new knowledge, not limited to only the ones directly
involved their work, and exchanges their views with colleagues
and external instructors in a creative atmosphere. The subjects
are such as investment introduction, health care, adjustment
of Japanese insurance companies, and block chain; aiming at
broadening their perspectives and consequently leading to
innovation and Learning Organization. This is part of 3D&I
strategies to change the way employees behave at work with
the purpose of building corporate culture that leads to an

organization of sustainable innovation.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

1. Summary of the Board of Directors’ Opinion

Regarding Internal Control System

Atthe Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2018 on February
20, 2018 in which the three Audit Committee members also
participated, the Board of Directors assessed the Company’s
internal control system and inquired the management, staff
members and concerned units about various pillars of
the internal control system, including
1. Control Environment
2 Risk Assessment
3. Control Activities
4 Information & Communication
5 Monitoring Activities

The Board of Directors deemed that the Company’s
internal control system was adeqguate and appropriate for
entering into transactions with the major shareholders,
directors, executives and related persons of the foregoing
persons. As well, other pillars of the internal control system
were adequate and could allow for the Company to operate
business under good corporate governance principles and with
transparency.

In addition, the Board of Directors has entrusted the Audit
Committee with power and duties to review and ensure that
the Company has a sound and effective internal control and
internal audit system and abides by the law governing securities
and exchange, the SET’s regulations or the laws applicable to
the Company’s business. The Audit Committee must hold
a meeting at least once a quarter to review and ensure
correctness of the Company’s financial reporting and to
consider and make certain that the Company’s connected
transactions or transactions with potential conflict of interest
are correct and compliant with the applicable laws and
the notifications and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Board
of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and other concerned authorities.
Audit committee agreed with the Company's board of directors
and auditor.
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2. Opinion of the Audit Committee that Is
Different from the Board of Directors or the
Auditor’s Observation Regarding Internal

Control

The Audit Committee provided opinion consistent with
that of the Board of Directors and the auditor.

3. Head of Internal Audit Unit

The Company has established Department of Internal
Audit which is under the direct supervision of the Audit
Committee with full authority to appoint, dismiss and transfer
Head of Internal Audit Department.

The Audit Committee monitors the operational activities
of the Head of the Internal Audit Department. The Committee
supports training programme for the Department’s Head to
ensure thathe or she obtains skills and knowledge appropriate
for the role of internal auditor. Ms.Phanida Arkad-amnuay is
the Head of Internal Audit Unit.

4. Head of Compliance Unit

The Company has established a compliance department,
which was approved by the Board of Directors on October 10,
2014. The Department will be under supervision of
the Audit Committee. Ms.Cholthicha Arayamaytheekul is

the Head of Compliance Unit.

During the year, the department performed compliance
monitoring and report to the audit committee to review on

areqular basis every quarter.
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Corporate Governance Policies

The Board of Directors of THREL mutually agrees that in
order for an organization or business to achieve sustainable
growth, it must have in place a good corporate governance
system that is compatible with its status. This is a key
fundamental for enhancing both operational efficiency and
benefit for all stakeholders. Therefore, the Board of Directors
is committed to operating business under good corporate
governance and management practices by upholding the code
of business ethics and transparency and focusing on creating
value for shareholders, employees, customers, business
partners and all stakeholders. The Company has accordingly
set out policies on corporate governance for the directors,
executives and staff members to observe in performing their
duties, as follows:

1. The Board of Directors, executives and employees shall
perform duties with strong determination, integrity and
responsibility to generate the utmost benefit to the
Company by adhering to good corporate governance
princples and business ethics in their operation.

2. The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in formulating
the Company’s vision, strategy, policy, management
structure and significant business plans and must take
actionto ensure that the internal control system, account
ing-finance system and financial reporting are reliable.

3. The Board of Directors and executives shall take the lead
on ethics and act as a role model for performing duties
with strong determination and integrity under corporate
governance principles.

4. The Board of Directors, executives and employees shall
uphold fairess and treat all groups of stakeholders onan
equitable basis, and shall monitor, control, prevent and
eradicate any conflict of interest that may take place.

5. The Board of Directors, executives and employees shall
adhere to the anti-fraud policy.

6.  The Board of Directors shall ensure that the shareholders
are treated equally, have the right to access information,
and have an appropriate channel to communicate with
the Company, and shall form an investor relations center
to be responsible for providing information to investors
and the general public.
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7. The Board of Directors and executives shall ensure that
personnel at all levels are properly selected and that the
selection process is fair and transparent.

Compliance with THREL's corporate governance policy
is a key indicator to measure the business management
performance of the Board of Directors and executives and to
evaluate the performance of all employees.

The Company encourages compliance with the corporate
governance principles and code of business ethics and
communicates with the directors, executives and employees
to ensure that they would realize and acknowledge the
significance of corporate governance and ethics and that all
employees have studied, familiarized themselves with, and
signed to acknowledge the corporate governance and ethics
as a guideline for their operation. Moreover, the Company has
to maintain corporate governance policies on its website and
regularly monitors the compliance program in general. An
assigned working party must report all updates and progreses
to the Board of Directors. For instance, the Audit Committee
has been entrusted with duties to monitor issues concerning a
conflict of interest, internal control and audit, and compliance
with laws and regulations prescribed by relevant authorities,
and to regularly report the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. The Company secretary is responsible for reporting on
securities holding by directors and executives and informing
the results thereof to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis; and so on.
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1. NS.NoUS NOMUNASOU Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

Subcommittees

1. The Board of Directors may form Subcommittees in
various aspects of concerns to assist in studying and
scrutinizing details of particular matters. Qualifications
and scope of duties and responsibilities of each commitee
shall be clearly defined.

For each boara-level committee, a meeting shall be
convened to assess the performance or review all policies
at least once a year.

2. The Board Chairman shall not act as either chairman or
member of the Subcommittees so as to ensure that each
committee cantruly exercise their independent judgment.
List of Subcommittee Members and the Scope

of Duties and Authorities
To enhance efficiency in business administration

and supervision, the Board of Directors has appointed
subcommittees to specially oversee and follow up on
the routinely important activities or the activities that need close
attention. There are four subcommittees at present, namely the

Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee,

the Investment Committee and the Remuneration and

Nominating Committee. Their structures and responsibilities

are clearly identified as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on
November 5, 2012, consisting of three independent directors.
The Audit Committee’s term is three years. As at

December 31, 2017, its existing members are listed below:

ANIKUY

Position

NSSUNISDAS:IA:US=81UNSSUNISASIVEOU

Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. ns.oNSNY Inwruuna Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul  NSSUNISOAS:IAMNSSUNISASIVEOU Independent Director and Audit Commitiee

3. UAUANY SaSUUN Mrs. Komkal Thusaranon NSSUNNSOAS:IA:NSSUNISASI9E0U Independent Director and Audit Committee
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There are two members of the Audit Committee, namely

Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul and Dr.Kopr Kritayakirana, who has

accounting and financial knowledge, was assigned to examine

and oversee the Company’s operation, financial reporting,
internal control system, external auditor selection, and conflict
of interest.

Term of Office
Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are in

office for a term of three years. The chairman and members

who retire by rotation upon the end of each term of office could
be reappointed to serve on the Audit Committee.

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To review and ensure the accuracy and adequate
disclosure of the Company’s financial reports by
collaborating with the Company’s external auditor and
executives who are in charge of financial reporting on a
quarterly and yearly basis.

2. Torecommend the auditor, during the course of auditing
the Company’s accounts, to review or examine any
transactions deemed necessary and significant.

3. To review and assess the appropriateness and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control internal
audit systems and risk management, assess
the independence of the internal audit unit, recommend
the appointment, rotation and termination of employment
of heads of the internal audit unit or any other units involved
with internal audit functions, and approve the audit plans,
budgets and manpower for the internal audit unit.

4. To review and ensure the Company’s compliance with
the law governing securities and exchange, including
notifications of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board,
notifications of the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and any other laws applicable to
the Company’s business.

5. To consider, select and recommend appointment of an
independent person to serve as the Company's auditor,
propose remuneration for the Company’s auditor, and
participate in a meeting with the auditor, without presence
of the management, at least once a year.
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To consider the connected transactions, assets
acquisition/disposal transactions or transactions with
potential conflict of interest and ensure their correctness
and compliance with the laws, notifications and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Board of

Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and

the Stock Exchange of Thailand including other concerned

authorities, to make certain that these transactions are
reasonable and bring about the maximum benefit to
the Company.

To prepare the Audit Committee’s performance report,

duly signed by the Audit Committee Chairman, for

publishing in the Company’s annual report, including at
least the following information:

(a) Opinion on accuracy, completeness and reliability
of the Company’s financial reports;

(b) Opinion on adequacy of the Company’s internal
control system;

(c) Opinion on compliance with the law governing
securities and exchange, notifications and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Board of
Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including any other
laws applicable to the Company’s business;

(d) Opinion on appropriateness of the auditor;

(e) Opinion on transactions with possible conflict of
interest;

() Number of meetings convened by the Audit
Committee and meeting attendance by each Audit
Committee Member;

(9) Opinion or observation in overall received by
the Audit Committee from a discharge of duty under
the charter;

(h) Any other transactions that should be disclosed to the
shareholders and general investors within the scope
of duties and responsibilities designated by the Board
of Directors.

To perform any other task as assigned by the Board of

Directors with the Audit Committee’s consent.
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9. Provide recommendation to management and report to
the Board of Directors in permissive period in case of
whether the following actions will occur:

(a) transactions with possible conflict of interest;

(o) fraud, strangeness or significant weakness of internal
control systems;

(c) violation of laws applicable to the Company’s
business.

If the corrective action could not complete within Audit

Committee deems appropriate. The Audit Committee shall

report to the Office of the Insurance Commission or

the SEC without delay.

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee was
established on December 1, 2012, consisting of Director&
President as Vice Chairman, and senior executives from various
departments as members. The Committee is under the
supervision of the Audit Committee.

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To recommend an approach to risk management and
policy on risks and risk appetite.

2. Tofollow up onimplementation of risk policy and control
adequacy.

3. To monitor overall enterprise risk versus risk appetite.

4. Toreportrisk management performance to the Executive

Board and the Audit Committee.

5. To monitor the management of existing risks and risks

that will arise in the future.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on February
25, 2014, consisting of directors or executives and personnel
with knowledge, skill and experience in investment
management, risk management or securities analysis.
The Board of Directors appoints the Investment Committee
from among the directors, executives or external personnel.
The Investment Committee’s term is three years. As at

December 31, 2017, Existing members are listed below:

ANIIKUY

Position

NssUNIsadNu Investment Committee
NSSUNISaINU Investment Committee
NSSUNISaINU Investment Committee

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)
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The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1.

To formulate an investment policy framework, covering
investment and other business activities of life insurance
companies as stipulated in notification of the Insurance
Commission, and submit it to the Board of Directors for
approval.

To consider and approve the Company’s investment plan
that is aligned with the investment policy framework and
risk management policy framework.

To monitor and ensure that investments and investment
fund management are in conformity with the investment
policy framework, overall risk management policy, rules
and procedures for investment, and relevant legal
provisions.

To monitor corporate governance, transparency, and
orevention of conflict of interest associated with invesment
transactions of the Company.

To monitor work systems, personnel and data used for
the Company’s investments and ensure that they are
adequate for the operation.

Toreport results of the investments to the Board of Dirtors
on a regular basis.

To perform any other task or the task under its authority

and responsibility as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee was

established on February 26, 2015, consisting of three members

of Independent Director. lts existing members are listed below:

ANIIKLIY

Position

. As.NoUs NOReNAsU

Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

. As.oNSNY Inwsuuna

Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

UuAuAnY §?TSWUUH'

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

NSsuUNNSdds:ia:us:s1unNssuNIsassrlla:nKuUAAINOUINU

Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
NSSUNISDAS:IIA:NSSUNISASSKHIA:NHUAATMNDUINU

Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee
NSSUNNSAS:IANSSUNISASSHa:NKUAARINDUINU

Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee
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The Scope of Duties and Authorities

Nomination

1.

To determine and recommend the structure, size,
composition, and qualification of the Board of Directors
and subcommittees.
To determine policy, criterion, qualification, and nomining
procedures for appointing directors and subcommittee
members to replace the outgoing members.
To recruit and nominate the directors and subcommittee
members from the gualified candidates and submit
the lists to the Board of Directors for approval and/or
propose them to the meeting of shareholders for approal,
as the case may be.
To select, screen and propose a qualified person to
assume the position of President when it becomes vacant,
including succession plan and regulations for the key top
management positions, and submit these to the Board of
Directors for consideration. In this regard,

Top management means president, as well as any

other assigned positions in the future.

Remuneration

1.

To determine a policy and structure of remuneration and
other benefits for directors, board advisors, and
subcommittee members of the Company that are subject
to transparent criteria and are commensurate with their
responsibilities, taking into account duties, responsibilities
and related risks and focusing onincrease in shareholers’
equity in the long term.

To determine a policy onremuneration of top management
thatis consistent with the Company’s overall performance
and the performance of that executive.

To determine annual remuneration of the Board of
Directors and subcommittee members and propose it to
the meeting of shareholders for approval.

To determine annual remuneration of the individual top
management and propose it to the Board of Directors for

approval.

Others

1.

To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors with the consent of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee.
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Nomination and Appointment of Directors and

Top Management

Nomination and Appointment of Independent

Directors

The Company sets out criteria for selection process of
independent directors. A candidate must meet the qualifications
for director nomination of the Company as well as the
gualifications of ‘Independent Director’ as defined by the SEC,
which are:

Definition of Independent Director

“Independent Director” of the Company means a person
who possesses the complete gualifications and has the
minimum independency as required under the Notification of
the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand as
follows:

1. An independent director must not hold more than
1 percent of the total number of shares with voting rights
of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or any other juristic persons who
may have a conflict of interest, inclusive of number of
shares held by his/her related persons.

2. Anindependent director must not be a director who takes
part in management, an employee, a staff member or an
advisor who receives a regular salary, or a controlling
person of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or subsidiaries of the same rank
or juristic persons who may have a conflict of interest,
unless the foregoing relationship already ended for at least
two years before the date of appointment as the
Company’s independent director.

3. An independent director must not have relationship,
whether by blood or by legal registration, in the form of
fatherhood, motherhood, spouse, sibling and child as well
as child’s spouse of the executives, major shareholders,
controlling persons or persons to be nominated as
executives or controlling persons of the Company or its

subsidiaries.
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An independent director must not have existing or
previous business relationship with the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies or juristic
persons who may have a conflict of interest in a manner
that may obstruct the exercise of his/her independent
judgment, and must not be the existing or former major
shareholder, non-independent director, or executive of
those who have business relationship with the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associated companies or
juristic persons who may have a conflict of interest, unless
the foregoing relationship already ended for at least two
years before the date of appointment as the Company’s

independent director.

An independent director must not be or have been an
auditor of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who may have
a conflict of interest, and must not be a major shareholer,
non-independent director, executive or managing partner
of an audit firm which employs auditors of the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associated companies or
juristic persons who may have a conflict of interest, unless
the foregoing relationship already ended for at least two
years before the date of appointment as the Company’s
independent director.

An independent director must not be or have been a
professional advisor including legal advisor or financial
advisor the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who may have
aconflict of interest, and, in case the professional advisor
is a juristic person, must not be or have been a major
shareholder, non-independent director, executive or
managing partner of the professional advisor, unless
the foregoing relationship already ended for at least
two years before the date of appointment as
the Company’s independent director.

An independent director must not be appointed as a
representative of the Company’s director, major share
holder or shareholders who are related to the Company’s
major shareholder. Anindependent director must not have
any other characteristics which make him/her incapable
of expressing independent opinions with regard to the

Company’s business affairs.
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The Board of Directors has considered, with due care,
that all independent directors fully meet the qualifications set
forth by the Company and their resuming in such position for
several consecutive terms does not have any impact on the

discharge of their duty and provision of independent opinions.

Nomination of Directors and Executives

Criteria for Director Selection

The Company has set up the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee to be responsible for director
nomination. The Remuneration and Nominating Committee
determines qualifications of the required director positions that
fit in with the nature of business operations and strategies of
the Company. It also takes into account the needed skill and
the policy on board diversity in terms of professional skill and
specialized expertise, knowledge and talent, and work
experience. The qualified candidates who have amassed
professional experience, knowledge and capability that will be
useful to the Company will be selected and appointed as
the Company’s directors or executives. They must also
completely meet the qualifications specified in Section 68 of
the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (and as amended)
and the Notification of the SEC and must not possess any
prohibited characteristics under the SEC Act (and as amended)
and other applicable laws and regulations.

The existing THREL Board of Directors is composed of
eight members, the number of which is compatible with
the Company’s business operation. All of them have had work
experience or used to assume a top-ranking position in
the business and government sectors. In view of their
educational background, most of the directors finished their
studies in the field of business administration and economics
and some of them graduated in accounting and laws. As such,
the Board of Directors is composed of experts with skills and
experience in a diverse field of professions that can suitably

cover all aspects of the Company’s affairs.
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Nomination and Appointment Process for

Directors

In order to nominate a candidate for director position,
the Remuneration and Nominating Committee and
sharenolders’ consent is required. There is also no limit to how
many candidates a shareholder can nominate. The Company
offers an opportunity to each shareholder to propose
appropriate candidates through the Company’s website prior
to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which is
usually held 3 months prior to the end of fiscal year. The
candidates must be competent and have a proficiency
background in various professional fields. Also, the candidates
must have leadership skills, vision, virtue and ethic,
exceptional working history as well as be able to express
opinion freely. The shareholders may cast their votes for each
individual candidate in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the Company as follows:

1) Each shareholder casts a number of votes equal to

the number of the share units.

2) Each shareholder will cast the votes as stated in rule
number 1) and the votes can be for one or many
candidates. However, the vote must be evenly split.
The Company does not apply cumulative voting due
to the structure of the shareholders of the Company,
which does not have any absolute major shareholder
who can influence the Company or decide which
candidate to vote for.

3) Those who receive majority of votes from
shareholders will be elected as Directors of

the Company.

Criteria for Executive Selection

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of
the Remuneration and Nominating Committee, considers an
appointment of top management at president level and higher
to be responsible for business operation, based on both
the candidate’s qualifications for an executive position and

the Company’s succession plan.
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Nomination and Appointment Process for

Executives

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for nominating a qualified candidate for
the President position. At the same time, the President and
the Board of Directors are jointly responsible for nominating
senior executives in the first and second layers below
the President. Qualified candidates are screened based on
their knowledge, competence, skill and experience that will be
useful for the Company’s business operation, as well as their
profound understanding of the Company’s business and
administrative ability to achieve the Company’s goals and
objectives. After completion of the selection and nomination
process, names of the qualified persons will be proposed to

the Board of Directors for approval.

Monitoring of Associated Companies

Under the Company’s mechanism for monitoring of its
associated companies, the Board of Directors and/or the
management are responsipble for nominating and voting on
appointment of the Company’s directors and/or executives to
serve as directors of the associated companies. The appointed
persons shall be obligated to perform duties in the best interest
of the associated companies that they serve. Number of director
seats in the associated companies to which the Company is
entitled is allocated according to the Company’s shareholding
percentage in any such entities or as agreed upon in
the shareholders’ agreement.

However, there has been no agreement between
the Company and other shareholders with respect to

the management of the associated companies.
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Internal Information Disclosure Policy

The Company has a policy to prohibit executives and
employees at all levels from using internal information for
personal benefit. Apart from the data security measure that
limits number of personnel who could access confidential
information and the requirement for directors and executives
to comply with the SEC regulations, the Company has
incorporated best practices into its code of business ethics
and clearly stipulated disciplines and disciplinary actions in
the Company’s work regulations. In this respect, all employees
are 1o sign the data security policy compliance agreement in a
pid to prevent them from using the Company’s information for
personal benefit or to prevent unauthorized use of such
information. Moreover, the Company adopts the following
policy and measure to monitor the executives’ use of internal
information for personal benefit and for securities trading:

1. Provide the directors and executives with knowledge
about their duty to report their securities holding and the
holding of securities by their spouse and minor children
to the SEC in accordance with Section 59 and penalty
clauses in Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments), and
also to report their and their spouse’s and minor
children’s acquisition or disposal of securities to the SEC
in accordance with Section 246 and penalty clauses in
Section 298 of the Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments).

2. Ensure that the directors and executives, including their
spouse and minor children, prepare and disclose
reports on their securities holding and the holding of
securities by their spouse and minor children of securities
in the Company including changes in such holdings to
the SEC in accordance with Section 59 and penalty
clauses in Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments),
and to submit a copy of such reports to the Company on

the same day that such reports are submitted to the SEC.
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3.

Ensure that the directors, executives, staff and employees
of the Company and its subsidiary who have known of
the material insider information that has an effect on
prices of the securities shall exercise caution in trading
securities of the Company during a 30-day period prior
to the date on which the financial statement or such
insider information is disclosed to the public and during
a 24-hour period after the disclosure of such information
to the public. Those concerned with the insider
information shall not make it available to other parties
until the information is notified to the SET. A violation
of such rules and regulations shall be deemed as
a disciplinary offence pursuant to the Company’s
working regulations. Persons committing such offence
shall be penalized, according to the degree of its severity,
ranging from verbal warning to written warning, putting
on probation and termination of employment by way of
dismissal, removal or discharging, as the case may be.
Pronibit the directors, executives, staff and employees of
the Company from using the insider information, which
has or may have an impact on changes in prices of the
Company’s securities and has not yet been disclosed
publicly and which they have derived from their position
or status, for selling or buying or for offering to sell and to
buy or for persuading other persons to sell or to buy or to
offer to sell or to buy shares or other securities (if any) of
the Company, directly or indirectly, in such a manner that
could cause damage to the Company, directly or
indirectly, irrespective of whether such transaction is
performed for personal benefit or for the other’s benefit
or whether such informationis disclosed to allow for other
person to perform such transaction in exchange for a

benefit for themselves.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

Audit Fee

Remuneration for the external auditors payable by the
Company and associated companies is comprised of annual
audit fee, review audit fee for quarterly financial statements, fee
for review and assessment of internal control on investments,
and fee for audit of the risk-based capital report of life
reinsurance business under the OIC’s regulations. For 2017,
atotal of THB 2.15 million was paid to EY Office Ltd.

Non-Audit Fee

In the fiscal year 2017, the Company:

«  Did not pay any audit fee to the auditors or to the person
or entity relating to the auditors and the audit firm with
which the auditors have worked,

«  Did not pay any other service fees unrelated to the audit;
and

»  Did not bear any future expenses arising from unfinished

assignments.

Compliance with Good Corporate Governance

Principles by the Company in 2017

The Company adheres to and complies with the corporate
governance principles for listed companies as outlined by the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and in line with the international
practices. Thus, a policy and guideline have been clearly
defined in the corporate governance and ethics handbook to
make certain that the Company upholds a good management
standard, operates business with responsibility and
transparency, has a mechanism of checks and balances, and
acts ethically with respect to the organization, third parties and
all groups of stakeholders. The Company strictly conforms to
the corporate governance principles, which consist of five core

pillars as follows:
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Chapter 1: Rights of Shareholders

1.1 Rights of Shareholders

The Company gives importance to and respects rights to
which the shareholders are entitled in their capacity as both
investors and owners of the Company, and accordingly provides
the shareholders with an opportunity to exercise their basic
rights under the laws.

In addition, the Company recognizes the shareholders’
rights beyond such basic rights, including right to have
access to crucial information sufficiently and timely via
the Company’s website, right to communicate with
the Board of Directors through the channels designated by
the Company, etc.

1.2 Shareholders’ Meeting

The Company sets out that an annual general meeting of
shareholders is held within the first four months after the end
of an accounting year and that, where there is an urgent need
to consider any matter which could affect or is related to the
shareholders’ interest and is subject to the shareholders’
approval, the Board of Directors may then convene an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders case by case.
1. In 2017, the Company held two shareholders’ meeting,

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 6

on April 21,2017, which was attended by eight directors.
2. The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholder

No. 1/2017 on September 22, 2017, which was attend

by directors.

For such meeting, the Company adopted the best
practices in accordance with the AGM Checklist project
carried out by the Thai Investors Association, which are:
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Treatment of shareholders before the meeting

date

1.

The Company provided the shareholders with an
opportunity to propose meeting agenda or submit
guestions about the Company for the 2017 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and to nominate
gualified persons for election as the Company’s
directors in advance during the period from
September 26, 2016 until December 31, 2016 through
e-mails or letters sent directly to the Company Secretary.
The result was that after the end of such period none
of the shareholders proposed the meeting agenda
or nominated qualified persons as the Company’s
directors for the Board of Directors’ consideration.

The notice of the meeting, meeting agenda with the Board
of Directors’” opinion, proxy forms prescribed by Ministry
of Commerce comprising Proxy Form A, Form B and
Form C, documents or evidence showing identification of
the shareholders or proxies entitled to attend the meeting,
and documents for all agenda items are publicized via
the Company’s website in both Thai and English
languages at least 30 days ahead of the meeting date
and prior to the delivery of those documents to
the shareholders by mail. In 2016, the Company posted
the notice of the shareholders’ meeting on its website
35 days prior to the meeting date.

In 2017, the Company submitted the notice of the
shareholders’ meeting and relevant documents to
the shareholders 22 days in advance. The shareholders
would have sufficient time to study the meeting agenda
in advance. The Company delivers notice of the
shareholders’ meeting, giving detailed information of
the meeting date, time and venue, meeting agenda,
objectives and reasons, opinion of the Board of Directors,
minutes of the previous meeting, annual report, proxy
forms prescribed by Ministry of Commerce with
proxy granting instructions that are clear and easy for
the shareholders to follow, list of independent
directors whom the shareholders can select and assign
as their proxy to attend the meeting on their behalf,
details of documents that the shareholders must
bring on the meeting date, the Company’s Articles of
Association pertinent to the shareholders” meeting and
method of vote casting, and all other documents to

preserve shareholders’ right to attend the meeting.
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The Company facilitates and encourages all shareholders
and institutional investors, to participate in a shareholder
meeting in order to allow for all shareholders to equally
exercise their rights at the meeting, by setting the suitable
meeting time and date and arranging the meeting venue
that is conveniently accessible to all shareholders.
The Company also provides proxy forms, for all
shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting to
assign a proxy to attend the meeting on their behalf.

Treatment of shareholders on the meeting date

1.

Onthe meeting date, the Company provides convenience
for the shareholders and proxies on an equitable basis,
whether individual, juristic or institutional investors, and
arranges for a sufficient number of reception staff,
document screening staff and computer equipment to
ensure the registration, the meeting and the vote counting
are carried out efficiently. English language interpreters
are available for foreign investors who wish to attend
the meeting.

Registration begins one hour and a half before the start
of the meeting. The Company will not perform any act in
such a way that will restrict rights of the shareholders to
attend the meeting and all shareholders are entitled to
register for attending the meeting at any time throughout
the meeting.

The barcode system is used for meeting registration and
vote counting to ensure accuracy, convenience and
rapidity.

The meeting starts with introducing the Board of Directors,
the management, the auditors and legal advisors who
have been assigned as inspectors of the meeting, and
will explain to the shareholders about how to cast votes
and use voting ballots for each agenda item.

The Company’s legal advisors are assigned to serve as
inspectors to independently monitor and ensure that the
registration, the meeting and the vote counting are
conducted transparently and accurately at every step in
accordance with the laws and the Company’s Articles of
Association, while the shareholders are given an
opportunity to volunteer to witness the vote counting and
to raise any questions regarding the vote counting.
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6. The Company conducts the meeting according to the
agenda and has no policy to add any new agenda items
or change material information without notifying
the shareholders in advance. During the meeting,
the Chairman gives the opportunity to the shareholders
to aise questions and express opinions on each agenda
item and provides clarifications to all queries to
the shareholders’ satisfaction. At the previous meeting of
shareholders, the Board Chairman, Chairman of
the Remuneration and Nominating Committee,
Director&President, top management, the auditors and
the legal advisors participated in the meeting to answer
the questions raised by the shareholders.

7. The shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting
has already been declared open are given the right to
cast votes on the agenda item that is still under
consideration and has not yet been voted on.

Treatment of shareholders after the meeting

date

1. For the 2017 shareholders’ meeting, the Company
disclosed the meeting resolutions and voting results
immediately after the meeting date through anews release
to the SET.

2. For the 2017 Annual General Meeting and the previous
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders,
the Company made the minutes containing all material
information available within 14 days after each meeting in
accordance with SET requirements and posted
the minutes on the Company’s website.

3. Audio and visual records of the meeting were also made
available in VCD format for interested shareholders who
did not attend the meeting

The Company communicates with shareholders,
discloses corporate information and the shareholding structure
in its subsidiaries and associated companies clearly in its
annual report and on its website. Such disclosure is to assure
shareholders that the Company’s management structure is
effective, transparent and accountable and will lead to
sustainable growth and generate a fair rate of return for
shareholders.
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Chapter 2: Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

2.1 Treatment of Shareholders

All groups of shareholders, whether major shareholders,
minority shareholders, institutional investors or foreign investors,
are treated on a fair and non-discriminatory basis with their
rights being equally protected. The Company has observed
the following best practices:

1. All shareholders are given an equal right, regardless of
their shareholding percentage, to nominate persons for
directorship and to propose agenda items in advance.
The Company has disclosed this information via the SET
and posted on the Company’s website the process for
completion and submission to the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee and/or the Board of Directors for
further consideration. In the event that the Board of
Directors resolves to reject the agenda items proposed
by the shareholders, the Company will notify the
shareholders of the reasons for such rejection at the
shareholders’” meeting. The shareholders who attend the
annual general meeting are also granted the right to
nominate persons for directorship directly to the meeting.
At the 2017 Annual General Meeting, no shareholders
nominated qualified persons for election as directors or
proposed additional agenda items.

2. The shareholders are allowed to forward their questions,
comments or suggestions in advance through e-mails or
letters directly to the Company Secretary prior to the
meeting date so that all questions could be gathered for
answering at the meeting. In 2017, none of the
shareholders submitted guestions, comments or
suggestions in advance through the said channels.

3.  In order to protect the interest of and facilitate
communication with all groups of shareholders, the notice
of the meeting, meeting materials, minutes of the previous
meeting, and any related information are posted on the
Company’s website and available inboth Thai and English.

4. All shareholders have an equal access to
the Company’s information. Up-to-date information is
always disclosed via the Company’s website.
Shareholders are properly and equitably treated by
having access to information disclosed through the
SET’s information disclosure system and the Company’s

website and investor relations unit.
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NivasouUs:yu (s19)

n1suUs:yu
Total number of
Meeting

participant in meeting

(persons)

nsUs:guaIryASIA 6 703
Annual General Meeting No.6

nsUs=uuaaIrYASIA 1/2560 274
Extraordinary General Meeting 1/2017

Number of Shareholders

The Company formulates in writing a guideline on data
storage and control over the use of internal information to
ensure fairness to shareholders; notifies and prohibits
the directors, executives, employees and their related
0Eersons such as spouse, minor children and nominee
from using internal information that is crucial to trading of
the Company’s shares and share price movement and
has not yet been disclosed publicly in accordance with
the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535; and
stipulates that the directors and executives must report
to the SEC their holding of securities of listed companies
in which they hold office within 30 business days after
assuming the position and within three business days
after buying or selling the securities and must always
submit a copy of such report to the Company Secretary.

2.2 Participation in Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting by
themselves are encouraged to appoint other persons or
any of the independent directors as their proxy to attend
the meeting and cast votes on their behalf by using
the proxy form that allows the shareholders to determine
their voting direction. The Company posts the proxy forms
including allrelevant details and procedures on its website
at least 30 days in advance. The Shareholders’ Meeting

in 2017 can be summarize as follows:

JusuLifioRu JqudugifioKunuaUdUN:

AUNGoEAUIDY (s19) Tﬁujé"iunﬁﬁs'ouUs:qunlnu (s19)
Number of Shareholders
attending the meeting | who appoint other persons|

(persons) as their proxy (persons)

101 602

82 192

swiuds=90 2560
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2. Shareholders are encouraged to use ballots for voting
oneach agendaitem. Ballots are separately provided
for each agenda item. In particular, ballots for election
of directors are arranged on an individual basis so
that the shareholders can cast votes as they deem fit.
The voted ballots are collected in the meeting room
and the total votes derived will be aggregated with
the votes pre-determined in the proxy forms, the final
voting result of which will be announced in the meeting
room.

Chapter 3: Awareness of Stakeholders’ Roles

3.1 Non-Violation of Human Rights

The Company respects the stakeholders’ rights under
the laws or the obligations or agreements made between
them and shall not perform any act in violation of the rights
of those stakeholders. We have formulated a policy on
human rights for the Board of Directors, executives and all
employeesto adhere to and have clearly defined the rights
of all groups of stakeholders in the code of ethics and
business conduct. We also make certain that all such rights
are protected with fair treatment and that the stakeholders
receive a fair compensation for any damage arising
from violation by the Company. The details are available
and can be downloaded from the Company’s website at
www.thairelife.co.th and the annual registration statement
(Form 56-1)

3.2 Treatment of All Groups of Stakeholders

A guideline ontreatment of all groups of stakeholders
has been devised for the Board of Directors, executives
and employees to observe, as follows:
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Treatment of Shareholders

The Company respects the shareholders’ basic rights
under the laws and the Company’s Articles of Association,
including right to attend a shareholders’ meeting and to
cast votes, right to freely express opinion at the meeting,
and right to receive a fair return. Moreover, the Company
recognizes rights of the shareholders beyond their basic
rights and strictly protects the shareholders’ rights.

1. The Company ensures that the shareholders receive
adequate and appropriate information by disclosing
crucial information, both financial and non-financial,
to the shareholders in an accurate, complete and
timely manner through various channels such as
the SET’s electronic information disclosure system,
the Company’s website, newspaper, press release,
or written letter, etc.

2. The Company encourages the shareholders to
exercise their right to attend the shareholders’
meeting, right to cast votes at the meeting, and other
rights to which they are entitled, and shall not perform
any act that will infringe on or prejudice the
shareholders’ rights.

3. The Company grants rights to the shareholders to
express their comments or lodge any complaints
regarding the Company’s business operation through
channels indicated on the Company’s website. All
comments are screened and forwarded to the Board
of Directors or the concerned units and any
development thereof will be informed to the relevant
shareholders in due course. In 2017, no suggestions
or complaints were submitted to the Company and
there were only some phone contacts with our
Investor Relations unit, inquiring about the Company’s
pusiness operation.
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Treatment of Employees

Employees are akey resource and critical to business
success. The Company would like all employees to take a
pride in the Company and experience good career
opportunities.

1. The Company treats all staff members under the
principles of human rights, dignity and equality and
does not perform any act that will infringe on or
prejudice rights of the employees.

2. The Company recruits suitable personnel at all levels
through a fair and transparent process, based on
factors such as qualification for each position,
scholastic requirement, work experience and other
requirements essential for such job, without
discrimination on the grounds of gender, age, race,
religion or any other status unrelated to the work.

3. The Company places importance on safety, sanitation
and a pleasant working environment. Once a year
the Company conducts a fire drill to remind everyone
of the dangers of events such as a fire and maintains
and repairs all equipment to ensure it is fully
operational at all times. In order to emphasize
the importance of this the Company incorporated
the above guideline into the code of ethics and
pusiness conduct. In 2017, no employees suffered
a workrelated injury or iliness.

4. The Company has formed a Welfare Committee to
represent employees in improving welfare in
conjunction with the management and in arranging
activities for employee participation.

5. The Company provides a compulsory annual health
check-up program, classified by age group, for all
employees. The Company also encourages
employees to exercise by providing a fully-
equipped standard gym, believing that employees
in good health help to decrease the illness rate and
increase their working efficiency.
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10.

The Company adopts a policy and practice that
ensures employees’ remuneration and fringe benefits
are at an appropriate level and commensurate with
their duty and responsibility and are comparable with
those of similar businesses. To serve this purpose,
salary and compensation survey data in insurance
and similar industries from different sources and data
on yearly performance evaluation of the individual
employees are used as a basis for such consideration.
In addition, the Company provides a provident fund,
so that employees can accumulate funds for their
future needs. Details of employee remuneration
(including contribution to the provident fund) are
presented in “Structure of Shareholders and
Management” section.

Realizing that personnel are the organization’s most
valued resources, the Company implements a policy
onpersonnel development by encouraging employees
to undergo training and competence developmentin
order to strengthen their working efficiency and
advance their career. All employees are developed
according to the training road map, career path and
career plan designed for the individual employees.
Number of employees’ training hours are described
in ‘Structure of Shareholders and Management’
Section.

The Company allows employees to always be updated
on relevant news and information through channels
such as the Company’s Intranet, internal news
circular, e-mail, etc. in abid to promote communication
petween the organization and employees and, hence,
increase teamwork efficiency and relation.

Every year the Company conducts an employee
attitude and satisfaction survey in order to use the
comments and suggestions obtained from the survey
for further corrective action.

The Company also allows employees to convey their
opinions and lodge complaints and any other issues
relating to their work either to their supervisors or
directly to top management. All comments and
complaints are considered in conformity with the
policy on complaints and whistleblowing management
and whistleblower protection.
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Treatment of Customers

The Company attaches importance to customer
satisfaction while upholding the code of best practices
towards customers, including, among others, fair and
non-discriminatory treatment of customers, promotion of
good and sustainable relationship, and others as specified
in the Company’s good management practices and anti-
fraud policy, which can be summed up as follows:

1. The Company treats customers on a fair and
non-discriminatory basis and avoids any unethical
acts such as collusion in price fixing or job allocation
or use of customers’ confidential information for
the benefit of a third party.

2. The Company strictly honors undertakings made with
customers and delivers a quality and reliable service
in accordance with its business standards.

3.  The Company provides services in a polite and
respectful manner and promotes a long lasting and
sustainable relationship with its customers to ensure
friendliness and satisfaction amongst all parties.

4. The Company willnot disclose customers’ information
unless otherwise permitted by the customers or where
it has the duty or is required by law to make such
disclosure or where the disclosure will benefit
insurance business or the public as a whole.

5. The Company gives advice on and assistance only in
matters relevant to its business.

6. The Company maintains high service standards in
order to serve customers’ requirements.
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Treatment of Business Partners, Competitors

and Creditors

The Company treats business partners, competitors
and creditors under the rules for ethical, free and fair trade
competition and within the purview of the laws and their
mutual obligations. This has been incorporated into the
code of ethics and business conduct in order for all parties
to abide by.

1. The Company sets out rules for evaluation and
selection of partners and counterparties who
conduct business with a high degree of accountability,
follow codes of ethics and display professional
integrity and are not involved in any form of fraud.

2. The Company treats all partners and counterparties
on an equitable and non-discriminatory basis and
does not take advantage of its partners and
counterparties.

3. The Company puts in place a management and
follow-up system to ensure the agreement conditions
are completely fulfilled, together with a fraud
prevention process at all steps of its operation.

4. The Company does not perform any act that will
tarnish its competitors’ reputations through any
allegation without any reasonable grounds.

5. The Company does not seek to obtain confidential
information of its competitors by any unethical or
improper method.

6. The Company does not perform any act that will
infringe upon the intellectual property and invention
under patent of other parties or its competitors.

7. The Company complies with all conditions under
agreements made with creditors in respect of
guarantees, fund management, payments and any
other matters agreed upon with such creditors.

8. In the event of failure to fulfill the conditions,
the Company will promptly notify creditors and provide
reasons and remedial measures for such failure in
order to jointly seek solutions to the problem.

9.  The Company abides by an anti-fraud policy and
follows the principles of integrity, and neither gives
nor receives any brioe whether in form of a gift or any
other benefit. It will not perform any act that is
conducive to fraud and bribery. It will not perform any
act or assist in or support any act that is deemed as
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misconduct according to the relevant laws and
notifications. It will not perform any act relating to
property in bad faith or any act that is detrimental to
the national economy or security, nor conceal or take
part in a transfer or sale of property obtained from
such act.

10. The Company has a policy to abide by the laws
governing intellectual property or copyright and does
not infringe on intellectual property or copyright.

In the past year, the Company had no disputes with
its customers, partners, competitors and creditors which
could cause a material impact.

Treatment of Regulatory Bodies and

Government Agencies

The Company complies with all laws, notifications,
rules and regulations stipulated by regulatory bodies and
governmentagencies. The Company also cooperates and
collaborates in corporate governance and anti-corruption
measures that have been supported by regulatory bodies
and government agencies or other private agencies in
order to enhance management efficiency and ultimately
achieve strong and sustainable development.

Treatment of Society and Environment

In conducting business, the Company pays attention
to all concerned parties and acts as a good corporate
citizen contributing positively to the community and the
environment. The Company has incorporated into the code
of ethics and business conduct, to which all staff members
must adhere, the best practices towards our society and
environment including the promotion of an efficient use of
resources.
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The Company encourages all employees to join in
CSR activities and community development, and
operates business without causing any negative
impact on society and the environment. In 2017, the
Company promoted the creation of a pleasant
workplace condition and improvement of the
surrounding environment.

The Company is determined to operate its business
with fairness and display responsibility for society in
general and the environment and all groups of
stakeholders in its core business processes. The
Company assesses the impact of its activities on
society the economy and the environment. The
Company also identifies operational goals that cause
no impact on society and environment.

The Company encourages all employees to use
natural resources efficiently with the least possible
waste, torecycle all types of products and to conserve
energy through lower power usage.

The workplace environment has been improved and
maintained and meets modern day health and safety
standards.

The Company is aware of the importance of a sound
society. As part of Thai society, the Company deems
that it has duty to support and operate CSR activities
and community development. This is complementary
to the Company’s main objective to operate a
business for the benefit of the insurance business and
national economy as a whole.
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3.3 Whistleblowing and Complaints Report

The Company, with the Board of Directors’ approval,
has adopted a policy on complaints and whistleblowing
management and whistleblower protection. Measures,
regulations, guidelines and procedures for dealing
with this have been communicated to all concerned
parties to ensure a full understanding and a method for
handling each case correctly and properly. The details are
presented in the Corporate Governance Handbook which
can be downloaded from the Company’s website at
www.thairelife.co.th and the annual registration statement
(Form 56-1)

Chapter 4: Information Disclosure and

Transparency

4.1 Disclosure of Information

It is important that the Company discloses all
significant information such as business activity and
financial reports to the public through various channels
required by law or by authorities in a strict, complete and
timely manner, by ensuring that the information disclosed
is accurate, precise and relevant. The Company also
discloses the following information to demonstrate its
compliance in responsible corporate governance and
business transparency:

1. The Company has established the code of business
ethics and best practices for the Board of Directors,
the management and staff to adhere to since 2012.
The corporate governance policy, anti-corruption
policy, and handbook on corporate governance and
business ethics of the Company's are posted on the
Intranet and the Company’s website, in order for all
directors, executives and staff members to familiarize
themselves with, acknowledge and abide by.

2. The Company’s information, both financial and
non-financial, is disclosed. The financial information
is audited and reviewed by the auditors and approved
by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.
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3. All information, including financial statements and
annual reports is made available on the Company’s
website in both Thai and English.

4. Pressreleases and significant business activities that
are useful to shareholders, investors, securities
analysts and general public are made available via
the Company’s website.

5. The Company discloses the roles and duties of the
Board of Directors and committees, the number of
meetings and attendance record of each member in
the past year.

6. The Company publishes a report on the Board of
Directors’ responsibility for the financial report in its
annual report (Form 56-2).

7. The Company discloses information on remuneration
for directors and management in the annual
registration statement (Form 56-1) and the annual
report (Form 56-2) and also discloses the policy on
remuneration for directors and top management,
including type, nature and amount of remuneration
received by each member for serving on committees
and as a director in subsidiaries.

8. The Company has a requirement to report all trading
transactions of securities holdings of directors and
executives. The Company Secretary is assigned to
collect all of such information to report to the Board
of Directors.

4.2 Investor Relations

The Company stresses the importance to investor
relations management by remaining committed to
performing duties with accountability and integrity and
providing accurate, adequate and reliable information to
ensure that investors, analysts and concerned parties
receive information in a correct, sufficient, complete,
transparent and equitable manner.

The Company has assigned Ms. Sirin Dhumma-
upakorn, Company secretary, to be in charge of “Investor
Relations” unit. For enquiries, please call 02 666 9000 or
e-mail to corpsecretary@thairelife.co.th. For activities in

2017, there were 12 meetings held with members of the
media, securities analysts, investors and fund managers.
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4.3 Report on Interest

The Company has established guidelines and rules
and procedures for reporting the interests of directors,
executives and their related persons, which were duly
approved by the Board of Directors. Such reports show
compliance with regulations for connected transactions
and monitoring the interest of directors, executives and
their related persons insofar as the said interest is relevant
to the Company’s business management.

1. The Company has a policy under which the directors
and executives are required to disclose their interest
and interest of their related persons in a form
designated by the Company on a yearly basis and
when there is a change in such information during the
year. The directors and executives who have interest
in any transactions of the Company shall not
participate in decision-making on such transactions,
and the transactions shall be processed according to
the measures or procedures for approval of related
party transactions of the Company.

2. The Company has a policy on trading of the
Company’s securities and procedures for reporting
of securities holdings of directors, executives and
employees who have access to confidential internal
information, and requires that the directors and
executives have a duty to report their securities
holding in accordance with SEC’s regulations.
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KUOAN 5 ADTIUSUABOUVOUANUINSSUNIS

5.1 AIUSUABOUVOIATUNSSIUNISUSEN

Chapter 5: Board of Directors’ Responsibility

5.1 Responsibility of the Board of Directors
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In addition to its power, duties and responsibilities

prescribed under the law and the Company’s Articles of

Association, the Board of Directors also has other

responsibilities:

1.

The Board of Directors has duty to determine
the Company’s vision and mission so that
the executives and employees would perform their
duties towards a common goal. In 2017, t he Board
of Directors reviewed and approved the vision,
mission, strategy, target and direction for business
operation of the Company as well as reviewed
the significant policies to be in line with business
operation under corporate governance principles
such as the policy on corporate governance,
the anti-corruption policy, etc.

The Board of Directors monitors and ensures that the
Company's strategies are put into practice. At every
quarterly meeting, the Board of Directors follows up
on the management’s performance and requires that
there must be a report on the Company’s operation
andbusiness performance, especially the performance
against financial targets and action plans, to make
sure that the established strategies are accomplished.
Determine the duties, authorities and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors in accordance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations and the power,
duties and responsibilities of all Subcommittees so
as to enable the Board of Directors and the
Subcommittees to correctly make consideration and
render opinion within the scope of their power, duties
and responsibilities.

The roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of

Directors are as follows:

(a) The directors must have knowledge, ability and
experience that are useful for business operation,
be keen onthe activities of the Company of which
they serve as director, and have strong
determination, honesty and integrity in business
operation.
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[ANSSUNIS WUSKIS laswangiunnAuiviiana:
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NISAITUSSAY

(0)

The directors must, in performing duties, comply
with the laws, objectives and Articles of Association
of the Company, resolutions of the Board of
Directors and resolutions of the shareholders’
meeting with honesty, integrity, due care,
protection of the Company’s interest, and
accountability to shareholders on a continuous
basis.

The Board of Directors has duties to determine
the Company’s business policy and direction,
including action plans, budgets, etc., and to
monitor and supervise the management to
implement the policy efficiently and effectively so
as to maximize economic value and shareholders’
wealth.

The Board of Directors should always follow up
onthe Company’s operation and be kept informed
of the Company’s compliance with the laws and
relevant agreements and should see that
the management notifies all crucial issues of
the Company to ensure effective business
operation.

The Board of Directors should arrange for the
Company to have in place an effective internal
control and internal audit system under the Audit
Committee’s advice.

The independent directors and other third-party
directors should be prepared to exercise their
independent judgment with respect to strategy
formulation, business administration, resource
utilization, director appointment and determination
of operational standard procedures, and also be
prepared to object to any acts performed by other
directors or the management in the case where
there is a conflict in matters that will dampen
the equality of all shareholders.

(g) Assess the Company’s compliance with corporate

governance policy and review the policy at least
once a year.

Establish a written code of business conduct for
the directors, executives and employees to
familiarize with and adhere to in business
operation.
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(i) Arrange for the Audit Committee to render opinion
to the Board of Directors regarding the transactions
with conflict of interest in material aspect between
the Company and persons with vested interest or
related persons of the directors or executives,
whereby the directors or executives with vested
interest shall not be allowed to participate in the
meeting or cast votes on any such agenda item.
The nature of such relationship and definition of
persons with vested interest shall be as specified
inregulations of the SET and the SEC.

() Arrange for the Company’s internal control system
to be reviewed by the internal unit and/or external
agency to reasonably ensure that, once this is
fulfilled, the Company will be able to achieve its
goals in (1) efficient and effective operations and
worthwhile utilization of resources; (2) accurate,
reliable and timely accounting and financial
reporting; and (3) compliance with the Company’s
policies, rules and regulations and the laws.
Results of such internal control review shall be
reported to the Audit Committee, the Executive
Board and the Board of Directors in order to further
develop and improve the internal control system.

5.2 Self-Evaluation of Board of Directors

Annually, each member of the board is required to
evaluate the overall performance of the Board of Directors,
using an evaluation form determined by the SET Corporate
Governance Center. The purpose of thisis to jointly review
performance, problems and obstacles in the past year.
The result will be used as a guideline to improve the work
of the Board of Directors to ensure greater effectiveness
and efficiency. In 2017, the SET Corporate Governance
Center’s evaluation form was used, similar to the past years.
All directors completed the evaluation and the result
showed that the Board of Directors expressed opinion on
all of the six main subjects of the evaluation as follows:

1. Structure and qualification of the Board of Directors,
2. Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors,
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5.4 NISWAIUNNSSUNNS WUSKIsiazwUunuu

1. aUuayulrNSsSUNISUSYN WUSKAS llasiaviunisusun
IVISOUNISAUUUN ausunuaulAuddiasuaniuu
NssSUNISUSBNINg nanananndwe d10ndiu n.a.6.
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Board meeting,
Performance of directors,
Relation with the management,

I

Self-development of directors and development of
executives

The overall evaluation of the Board of Directors for
the year 2017 found that the Board was operating
exceptionally well.

Apart from that, the Board of Directors also arranged
for an evaluation of the subcommittees. The assessment
covered the following issues:

1. Composition of the Audit committee,
2. Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Audit
committee,

Audit Committee meeting,

Performance of the Audit committee, and

Relation with the management

The overall evaluation result of the year 2017 showed
that all subcommittees completely performed their duties
and in accordance with the Charter. Their opinion on the
above issues was in the level of strongly agreed or excellent
action.

5.3 Performance Evaluation of Top

Management

The Board of Directors sets out that there shall be a
performance evaluation of President and other executives
on an annual basis at the last meeting of the year to be a
basis for consideration on their compensation. In this
respect, the board of directors shall consider and
recommend compensation rate for President and
executives.

5.4 Development of Directors and

Executives

1. The Company encourages the directors, executives
and Company Secretary to attend seminars and
training programs organized by Thai Institute of
Directors, the SET, the SEC and the National
Corporate Governance Committee so that they could
use the obtained knowledge for operational
improvement on a continuous basis. The directors
must at least undergo training and participate in the
continuing programs as required by the SET and
the SEC.
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5.5 N1soNwudunonmIIKkUY (Succession

Plan) dansSuyusriss:augy

ACUZNSSUNISASSHAIIA:ANHUAAINDUINUSIUNU
Wouognsikny Tunisvaniiwudunansiknudia-nirum
AouAnanoyILVIgMUILUEUNDAFIKUIITOEIEA U 1as
sounustevuirAtuzNssuniIsnsiuiduds:91eg1000¢
Ua:AsufiononuAurnvaunsUfURMUILU

5.6 ANMOUIINUNSSUNISIIAzUSKIS

ulgunga:KnaniNouriunNISWINSCUNMIKUAANMDUIINU

dnncylunisnnuaulgugia:NINuIaNISANTUINTUVOY
USINH NISWNSOUNANNOUINUVOINSSUNSIIA:NSSUNISYA
JourFN09 FIAURDSWISTUNIRESSIFoYIUS:AURIMUN:aUIa:
A0nNF0INUNSHINNNINUSUENTOUIA:UNUINNSDAIU
SOUVEINSSUNISIINANU lazaunsnIUSUINgulRnussie
AndIAoInAU
ACUNSSUNISUSENITULWISIUIAIRBUINUVDY
NSSUNNSIAUSKISS:AUGI 8MMSUANNOUINUNSSUNISY:UN
iduaveaulRvINAUSUYToRU IngvoeulRAImaUINU
NSSUNISIINAUATINDUINUVOINSSUNISEAEDUERNF € NN
46 12:dIMSUAINOUINULIUSKASSMUEU:UNIAUDVOOUUR
NNNUSUATUENSSUNISINEHANINCUAINSWINSTUNF U
ANRMOUINULUSHISS:AUAY WarstunlngiUSguimoulanu
ssNenNdIAINU TUSAUIRZONU IKUN:aUNUNISHUNRA
ADUSUINBOU lIasiWgdwonv:gulola:snuiuAaIns

swiuds=90 2560
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2. Newdirectors shall be provided with basic information
about the Company, entailing a listed company
director handbook, annual registration statement
(Form 56-1), annual report (Form 56-2), minutes of the
Board of Directors’ meetings, minutes of the
shareholders’ meetings, the Company’s corporate
governance policy, and others, which will be helpful
for the new directors in performing their duties.

3. The executives and employees shall be rotated to
assume the tasks in which they are adept, based
primarily on suitability of work and timing. The
President shall determine such timing and consider
their working performance as a basis for drawing up
a development and succession plan. This is also
aimed to enrich the executives and employees’
knowledge and competence and enable them to
replace each other.

5.5 Succession Plan for Top Management

The board of directors collaborates with the President
in preparing a succession plan and determining qualified
persons under the plan, as well as reporting the progress
on plan implementation to the Board of Directors at least
once a year.

5.6 Remuneration of Directors, Committee

Members and Executives

The policy and criteria for director remuneration are
consistent with the best practices. Since the Board of
Directors plays a vital role in directing the policy and
overseeing the operation of the Company, the remuneration
of directors and members of all committees should be
reasonable and commensurate with their respective duties
and responsibilities, including their role and engagement,
and should be comparable with similar businesses.

The board of directors has duty to consider
remuneration of directors and top management. The
director remuneration is subject to approval from the
shareholders’ meeting, whereby approval shall be
separately sought for remuneration of directors and
remuneration of committee members. Meanwhile,
the remuneration of President and top management is
subject to approval from the Board of Directors’ meeting
and is decided based on comparison with similar
businesses at
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the same level, considering that the remuneration is
commensurate with their duties and responsibilities and
sufficient to motivate and retain quality personnel.
The Board of Directors will conduct a yearly performance
evaluation and use the evaluation result as a basis for
determining the remuneration of each member of the top
management.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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Policy Overview

THREL's main objectives are to operate their
business to optimum levels to benefit the Thai insurance
sector and the country’s overall economy. The Company
strongly adheres to a good governance policy and social
responsibility to strengthen the insurance industry and
the overall economy of the country which supports the
Company's sustainability into the future.

« The commitment of the Company is to build a strong
society that leads to sustainable growth and long
term development through: -

« Business partners, the insurance business sector and
Thai people ingeneral by cooperatively developing and
building business with the Company's counterparties
and to effectively respond to society’s current
requirements.

« Benefits for shareholders through growth in revenue
and profits and maintaining sustainable growth and
development.

« Development of employees through skills improvement
and promotion of good quality of life for all personnel.
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CSR Activities and Reports

In its core business processes, the Company is
mindful of the adverse impact on society, stakeholders and
the environment these may have. As aresult, the Company
ensures that its business does not affect neighboring
communities and society in general, all of which is inline
with its policy on corporate, social and environmental
responsibilities. Sound corporate governance practices,
observance of the law and the rights of individuals are
all taking into consideration. The generations of financial
returns sustainable business development for shareholders
and stakeholders’ interests are sought without harming
society and the environment.

In 2017, the Company produced its first Sustainable
Development Report to publicize its CSR activities that
support sustainable development in tandem with the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) framework so that all stakeholders
have access to relevant information. The report is
available in Thaiand English and can be downloaded from
the Company’s website at www.thairelife.co.th.

Anti-Corruption Activities

The Company has a policy to act against corruption
and bribery for commercial benefit and established this in
2012 inits business ethics code inrespect of best practices
towards customers, competitors and state agencies.
The Sustainable Development Report for 2017 is available
and can be downloaded from the Company’s website at
www.thairelife.co.th.

CSR Plan

The Company is committed to operating its
business in a fair and responsible manner towards
society, the environment and all groups of stakeholders
involved in the core business processes of the Company.
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Nature of Related Transactions

The Company has business transactions involving
related parties because shareholders and/or directors
participate inthem, either because of personal relationships
or simply from taking part in the same transactions. In such
cases, the Company takes into account the true nature of
the relationships to a greater extent than the legal forms
they take or the contracts behind them. Most of these
fransactions come about in the ordinary course of business,
with prices at the standard rates. These are disclosed in
the list “Related Transactions,” in the Notes to Financial
Statements for 2017.

Necessity and Reasonableness of Related

Transactions

Such related transactions that the Company has with
the related parties are considered to be beneficial to
the business development and will enhance the business
and create stability for the company, which can be
considered a maximization of the existing resources
together with the company and also a cutting down on
the expenses.

Policy on Interest and Conflict of Interest

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of
prevention of interest and conflict of interest and has
established a policy oninterest and conflict of interest as
follows:

1. The Board of Directors shall prudently control and
monitor any transactions that are prone to a conflict
of interest by determining approval procedures for
connected transactions in writing.

2. The Audit Committee shall report transactions with a
possible conflict of interest and connectedtransactions
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

3. If there are any connected transactions that are
subject to disclosure rules or approval from
the shareholders pursuant to the SET’s requirements,
the Company shall, before entering into
the transactions, clearly disclose to shareholders
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the information regarding relationship of
the connected persons, policy on determination of
transaction value, reasons for entry into the
transactions, and opinion of the Board of Directors
on the transactions.

4. The Board of Directors sets out that materials on
related party transactions shall be disclosed in
the annual registration statement (Form 56-1) and
annual report of the Company, with details about
names of persons who may have a conflict of interest,
relationship, nature of the transactions, conditions,
policy on price determination and value of
the transactions, reasons and necessity of
the transactions.

Guidelines on Consideration of Transactions

that Have/May Have a Conflict of Interest

Consideration of transactions that have/may have a
conflict of interest shall comply with the rules set forth by
the SEC and the SET. The Audit Committee has duty to
monitor and ensure that the rules are strictly adhered to,
as well as duty to compile and report transactions with
related parties that may lead to transactions with a possible
conflict of interest to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis.

Measures or Procedures for Approval of Related

Party Transactions

The Company abides by the law governing securities
and stock exchange and the regulations, notifications,
directives or requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The executives
or stakeholders who have a vested interest are not allowed
to participate in the approval of such transactions.

In the case where it is legally required to obtain
approval from the Board of Directors’ meeting,
the Company will arrange the Audit Committee to join
the meeting to consider and advice regarding necessity
and reasonableness of any such transactions.
The principles for entering into the arm’s-length transactions
and the non-arm’s-length transactions are as follows:
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Arm’s-length transactions

The Board of Directors gives approval in principle for
the management to approve the arm’s-length transactions
executed by the Company and its subsidiaries with
the directors, executives or related persons provided that
those transactions are under the same trade terms and
conditions as those executed by persons of ordinary
common sense with general counterparties in the same
situation and the bargaining power thereof is free from their
influence in their capacity as directors, executives or
related persons.

The Company will present a summary report on
the said transactions to the Audit Committee’s meeting
and the Board of Directors’ meeting on a quarterly basis.

Non-arm’s-length transactions

The non-arm’s-length transactions are to be
considered by the Audit Committee before proposing to
the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting
for further consideration and approval. In this respect,
the Company must observe the law governing securities
and exchange and the regulations, notifications, directives
or requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory Board
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including
the disclosure rules for connected transactions.

In the case where the Audit Committee has no
expertise in the consideration of any potential related party
transactions, the Company will appoint an independent
specialist or its auditor to render opinion on such
transactions to be a basis for decision making by the Audit
Committee and/or the Board of Directors and/or
the shareholders, as the case may be. This is to ensure
that such transactions are necessary and reasonable and
are executed in the interest of the Company. The Company
will disclose information on the related party transactions
in the annual registration statement and notes to
the financial statements that have been audited by
the Company’s auditor. Related Party Transactions
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Policy or Trend of Related Party Transactions in

the Future

In enter into any related party transactions in the
future, the Board of Directors must comply with the law
governing securities and exchange and the regulations,
notifications, directives or requirements of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, including the disclosure rules for connect
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries, in
accordance with the accounting standards set out by
the Federation of Accounting Professions.

The current related party transactions with other life
insurance companies are the usual transactions executed
in line with condition in general. The related party
transactions made with Thaire Services Co., Ltd. and Thaire
Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd., include human resource
management service fee, IT consulting and service fee,
and office space rental, all of which will continue to take
place. The human resource management service fee and
the IT consulting and service fee are made through existing
resource to ensure cost saving, whereas the office space
rental fee is comparable with space rental by other nearly
companies in nearby areas.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Operating Results
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Overview of Operating Performance

The Company has engaged in life reinsurance of all
classes. The reinsurance premium written are partially
appropriated for insurance reserve which is further invested to
bring in returns that could cover contingent liabilities. Thus, in
addition to life reinsurance, investment is extremely crucial for
our business operation.

Our major income source is net reinsurance premium
written which make up 95-98 percent of total income, followed
by investment income which is around 2-4 percent of total
income. The remainder includes commission and brokerage
income and other incomes. Such premium growth was
primarily caused by continuous expansion of Thailand’s life
insurance market.

The Company provided reinsurance for domestic life
insurance companies. The services are classified by
two main types of business, which are conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. Over the past 6-7 years,
non-conventional reinsurance has played a pivotal role in
growing the Company’s overall premiums. It has experienced
robust growth and contributed an increasing proportion in
the Company’s total reinsurance premium written when
compared with the past records.

Onthe investment side, the Company enjoyed an average
rate of return on investment of 3-6 percent in 2015 to 2017.
The main investment assets are held-to-maturity investments
such as government and state enterprise securities,
debentures, etc., which make up about 40-60 percent of total
investment assets, moreover by available-for-sale investments
such as equity securities and unit trusts, accounting for

approximately 40-50percent of total investment assets.
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Operating Performance

Income

The Company’s income is mainly derived from earned
premium, commission income and profits from investment of
its associated companies, net investment income, profits
(losses) from investment, fair value gain (losses) as well as
other incomes. In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s total
income was recorded at THB 2,186.3 million, THB 2,058.4
million and THB 1,892.2 million respectively, representing
a growth rate of 6.2 percent and 8.8 percent respectively.
A rise in the Company’s total income derives from net
insurance premiums owing to the growth in total revenue and
the expansion of domestic insurance business which will be

described as follows:

Earned Premium

Earned premium is the amounted of total premiums
calculated from gross reinsurance premium written less
reinsurance premium ceded and change in unearned premium
reserves.

IN2017,2016 and 2015, the Company’s income had gain
from earned premium of THB 2,096.5 million, THB 1,965.8
million and THB 1,833.5 million respectively, representing a
growth rate of 6.7 percent and 7.2 percent respectively.

Interms of reinsurance premium written, the growth was
primarily caused by the expansion of domestic life insurance
market which increased annually. Life insurance market
of Thailand's CAGR between years 2011-2017 was at
10.6 percent while the Company’s CAGR of the same period
was approximately 17.0 percent, resulting in increased gross

written premiums from life insurance companies.
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Source : OIC and the Thai Life Assurance Association

uona Nt SudaNIKAUINNSIWUTUVOIUSAUBIATU
Us:INNSoUWFUUNRUSENY [HSoUARAUIa:WEILNAUUSENUS:AU
Hn3UBIINSIAUINogTTuENANIUE) 6-7 URLULN BarinTi
USUNIASUAUIUINSSUUS:AUNEFORUINNIINISSUUSAUSY
FoIUUAJIA

i0uUs:=nunenfioidusiele

Another contributing factor was growth in non-
conventional reinsurance, which the Company has innovated
and developed in partnership with a life insurance company,
which it has grown remarkably in the past 6-7 years, resulting

in a higher market share when compared with the convention-

2559 2558
2016 2015

al reinsurance.

Earned Premium 3uunn Sowa: aauuln Sogar aauuln Sogar
THB Million | Percent |THB Million| Percent |THB Million Percent
NsUS=AUEINUS:INNAVIFL Conventional Reinsurance 1,149.4 54.8 1,185.3 60.3 1,232.8 67.2
NISUSAUZINUSINNSIUWEUIUN Non-conventional Reinsurance 947 1 45.2 780.5 39.7 600.7 328
SOU Total 2,096.5 100.0 1,965.8 100.0 1,833.5 100.0
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Net Investment Income

Net investment income is income derived from invest-
ments inassets, including loans. It consists of interest, dividend,
gain on sales of investments, share of profit from investment in
an associate, and so on.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company generated net
investment income of THB 82.4 million, THB 86.7 million and
THB 52.4 million, respectively, decreased 5.0 percent and
increased 65.3 percent respectively. The rates of return on
investment were 4.6 percent, 5.6 percent and 3.5 percent,

respectively.
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Items

Net investment income will vary according to investment
situation each year; for example, interest rate from debt
securities or dividends from securities investment in the stock
market, etc. In 2016, the Company’s revenues from investment
increased owing to the selling of investment in equity securities,
resulting in profits of approximately THB 27 million. As for 2015,
the Company’s revenues from investment declined due to the
continual reduction of policy rate which in turn affected the

return on bank’s interest and interest from bond investment.

dnsanauUINUIINRUaINU/" (Soga:) Investment Yield/" (percent)
NUadNu/Z (@uunn) Investment/” (THB Million)

4.6 5.3
1,987.4 1,5696.8

3.6
1,626.1

/1 9RSIWANaUINUNNIIUAINUAILONUIN uasouvadswlmmmsadmuamé s (ViAnu) 9INNNSVIBaUNSWeaINu doulitvwanilsviniuasnulu
UsSYNsau lia=rls (vinnu) 91NN1sUSUYaAIgRsSsU FASFoEUaINU (1088)
Investment Yield: Divide the summary of net investment income, gain (losses) on investments, share of profit from investment in an associate, and

fair value gain (losses) by the average investment assets.
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ainuluusuNsou

Investment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, trading investments, available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity investments,

general investments, loans, and investments in an associated.

9INKUNYIHAUS:NOUIUNISITUAHSUT dudniun
31 8Uo1AU 2560 lia: 2559 [AIUNISTMUNEOUINUANTUIIUDON
Ou 2 dou Us:nousog wannnuAUs:AuBInUS:INNAIAL l1a:
WARAUAUSAUTIRUSINNSOUWFUUN At

nasuUs:nl

AVIAL (81uunn)
Conventional
Reinsurance
(THB Million)

10uUs:AusoRtiolusnald Eamed Premiums 1,149.4
ANEINTUNISSUUS:AUNY Underwriting expenses 872.0
flsvonnissSuds:=rAusnesio 277.4
Profit from underwriting

amsirlsvinnissuds:nungsio(Sova:) 241

Underwriting profit margin (percent)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 classified business lines as

conventional and non-conventional reinsurance as follows:

33mUs:zNn | NasUs:=nuddnUs:inn | nasUs:nuddnus:inn | N1sUs:Nusddnuds:inn

SOUWRJUA (8aUUnn)
Non-Conventional

AJIAU (A1uu1n)
Conventional

SOUWRJUA (81UU1N)
Non-Conventional
Reinsurance

Reinsurance Reinsurance

(THB Million) (THB Million) (THB Million)
947.1 1,185.3 780.5
692.8 944.7 663.1
254.3 240.6 117.4

26.9 20.3 15.0

NMISWVIFTUREIRUIIUSENY TInS1rIsoINNISSU
Us:AUNYF091nNN1sUS:AUZIAUSINNSOUWAUNEY  USUND
unuINIIduUIausIa:souALUSENUS:AUBIRAUITOANAU
la=WruUNsusssUUs:INNTHURAR39:10uRFodnsveunann
[nolAsouIu-UNNISAILUNISRAaATRIKUI:aunuNauanAlas
douNINISVI8VeIgNAAINdINNSUSAUEIRAUS:INNAYIAL TnY
uU 2560 USUNY JoMsIAISYINNISSUUS:AUNYADIINNIS
Us=Auganus:INNsauwsunSosa: 26.9 USUsoIwuvUIDoIUSaU
IRounuionifganuvaslnouRininusosa: 15.0 1lovanidy
Us:nungsiosuRiwuvuia:Aunmdenanay 1a:0smsifisenn
nsSuUs:AURYFD9NNSUSAUBIRUS:INNAYIAUSoa: 24.1
UsugowuidelUsouifigunueonifeonuvasdiounimnusoya:
20.3 10ovnANaUlUNAINURanaY

From the above table, the Company earned underwriting
profit from non-conventional reinsurance and developing new
and highly demanded policies as well as devising innovative
marketing plan while expanding distribution channels
appropriate for the Company’s target customers more than the
conventional reinsurance. In 2017, the underwriting profit
margin from non-conventional reinsurance was recorded at
26.9 percent, increased by 15.0 percent compared to the same
period of the previous year. Furthermore, the underwriting
profit margin for the conventional reinsurance was 24.1 percent,
compared to 20.3 percent growth of the previous year. This is

due to the decreasing of claims incurred.
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AlEINaranvoIusang uaidu 2 doulsiin 1. Aaulru
nAINU 112: 2. ANBINglunissuds:=nuny

AgulruNAInNU

AraulnunAINU Us:nausog Araulnunainuiinavu
Aunonsérsaidona:guldfdns:IkAuionds:Nunosioltioy
Aounstinyionus=nununsyiful oy Us:auaUning
n$o1du80n Nuwals:lgguniunsusssyUs:Auddn 0o
101Us:NUNnNSIT0NgASUMUANSUSSSUTNUA HEoASU
40410a1nNsuUssSUMHUALY ANAouAAUTHUNAINUSUALN
NIsINUSAUNYFD SoUfEISOUANaUIKUNAINUATIUISNISN
AURAERSUSAUNY [REWR1STUN9INANUSINTUNSARRAAVOY
AAUlHUNAINURNNG = IngIoNUS:AUNUTUOUNAR MSU
$19N1sA0UENYIFenINaVUIZonounrSo tu Juus:ou Man
$19NMSA0WENYIFENUSENY [FSUsT1gnUIaaululASUS1EIU
AudsoudiuAIgInaRInATUINNSIANISANAUTKUNAINUTUSDY

Ul 2560 U 2559 1a:U 2558 USHN JANaUlKuNAINUIA:
AEI19IUNISYANISANAUlKUNAINUINIAU 915.3 d1UUin
952.9 &UUn l1a: 783.2 a1uun MUEAU KU 3 URWIUUY
USENg JonsaouAtaulnunainu (Loss Ratio) IMnuSoga: 44 .4
Soga: 48.91a:500a: 44.0 MUATRNU USENAWNSOUSHISINNNS
[AlRgIEonWwanstunAgRUSENgoUSUANUIALIA Ia:n1sUS=uIn
N1SENSIANAUIHUNAINUAIUISNISNIATUNANANSUSAUNY
IH07190UNINSTUNRDANAUlHUNAINUUIISIERTUO19A0UAU
WIKINaVUle 10osanATgdngninatovuognungninnny
WionUds=nung

g WISANIUNISINYAIFUIKUNAINUITLANSNUAD
AUIKb9rls (Profit Commission) 839:nanosiol dnsndou An
aulrunminu (Loss Ratio) ATUdtu INA1aUlKUNAINU
la:-Alg919tlunIsInnIsA1aulnunainu IUSguIngunu
JoUs:nunesundedusiold [ngdnsidoun1aulmu
nanuiduntaluourus:nounTgTunisinus:ansniwval
N1sSUUS:UAYVOIUSEN RISUNININSIA0USOU Ko
“Combined Ratio” Nv:losungsioll

S’1_£J\]_’_1UUS:0°’1_I:J 2560 . _
usun IngsUs:NuBddIm 910/ (UKIBU)

Expenses

Two major expense categories for the Company are 1)

claim expenses and 2) underwriting expenses.

Claims Expenses

Claims expenses consist of claims incurred, whether paid
or unpaid to the reinsured in case of the insured’s becoming
ill, having an accident or passing away, and benefits under a
life insurance policy payable upon the insured reaching the age
specified in the policy or upon completion of a period of time
specified in the policy, deducted by claims recovered from
reinsurance. These also include actuarial claim liability reserve,
which is derived from the best possible estimate of claims
expected to be paid to the insured in the future for both the
reported and the unreported losses incurred before or on the
estimation date, and include loss adjustment expenses.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded claims
expenses at THB 915.3 million, THB 952.9 million and THB
783.2 million respectively, representing a loss ratio of 44.4
percent, 48.9 percent and 44.0 percent respectively. Never-
theless, the Company can manage and handle claim and loss
adjustment to some extent as well as capable of estimating
premium reserves classified business lines as conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. However, in some cases, such
expenses may be uncontrollable since they depend largely on
risks faced by the insured.

Nevertheless, claim payment will directly affect
the profit commission which will be discussed later on. Loss
ratio will be calculated from compensation and expenditures
in handling with such compensation, compared to earned
oremiums. The loss ratio will be employed as one of
the instruments in measuring the Company’s efficiency in
the reinsurance business, called “the combined ratio” which
will be explained in details later.
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ANENIUNISSUUSNUNY Us:noumnog AumkGY ANEIng
TuNsSuUS:AUAEAU lla:ANTEINETUNISANITUIU

AUNIKGD

9 NALFNAN0UMEOVIIRUTIaNEUNNSUS:NOUSSAY
voJusung 1Junisnndnycyids:AunononuusenUs:ugin
MUIAarYYIUSNUNYFD9:1aRAISIUNISUNYBOUUS:NDOUR DY
(1) 108Us:-AUNLFaSU (2) AMTETNURWIRNIA 15N AMUAInGe91g
MUVonNaJiudryny 1a: (3) ANaulKuUNAINUINTMNIUAIUSULA
fonsusssUludnynyds=Auiumotus aauuaAinie 3u
Isgulatou douanvigannisSuds:Aungsoniudanynyn
Ussnunome Ardunbendveeniu 2 dou Aerrdunien
FoungIINUSUNUs:NUEdRAIDod0UTFUSEN Ia:AnUAInTernls
Bariunoti doundurlsanuanissuls:AunonusEnd Foding
TAUSBNUSUBINAdYT Tngdounuarinlsv:0onsIwuvurso
analnuwanlsoInNNIssuUs:AUNY KINVIUARSUUS:AUNYD
N1sIeAaUlnUNAINUEY dounuumlisvinwanisSuds:nunglu
dryryndue v:0omsanavnsalul nutifulumuiioulvvoy
aryryds:nungpiolnazouy

ul 2560 U 2559 1a:U 2558 UsEN TAMUNIKGIINIAU
593.4 &2UUN 620.2 SUUIN lIa: 508.3 EUUIN MUENAU By
Andudns1doumUInbdaansinnnusesa: 28.6 soua: 31.7 1a:
Sova: 28.3 muaau Inulud 2560 AUIKTTaRS 10U
Usugoanauitiosnindndounissuduriduiluus:-nunelutsio
9M19aYNTHIDONSINSTUAUNIKTIAN3IToUs:Unadisn
doulut 2559 UsBN SudulasuNstUludouvaINIsUs:NUEIR
TuUs=INNSouWRIUN (Non-conventional Reinsurance) RONASTH
AU Inde9NIous:AunFosulisnTudnsiay doutut) 2558
AUIT90aRsdouRUSURDanauitiosaNandoun1ssUIUR
{Ouibous:nunsludsoongdnynyndidonsinissngatiikds
FndnIduUs:AURgUIsNOUSNnUmUEIWU soufurnuikbeniils
Ranay

dns1douAUIKdansAUoUINANUNIMTIRNSSlAAN
Uinde 1Ussuifounuiteds:nunontelusnald [ngdnsidou
AUInTeans DurtluodAus:neuRlsTunisinus:ansniw
VoJIN1sSUUS:AUAYYOIUSINY AISEN3NTNSIAaUSIU HED
“Combined Ratio” Nv:lFosunusolU

Underwriting Expenses

Underwriting expenses include commission expenses,

other underwriting expenses, and operating expenses.

Commission expenses

As mentioned earlier, the Company’s core business is to
provide reinsurance services for life insurance companies.
Under the reinsurance contract, account items consist of
(1) reinsurance premium (2) deductible expenses such as
commission expenses as agreed upon in the contract and
(8) claim payable based on the liability per policy under such
reinsurance contract. Therefore, the commission is comparable
to a discount payable from reinsurance under the reinsurance
contract. Commission is divided into 2 parts, commission
payable to the life insurance company when transferring a
transaction to the Company and profit commission which relies
mainly on profit sharing from guality of such transaction
the Company has to pay to the life insurance company. If the
Company has to pay a large amount of claims for such
transaction, the profit commission payable to the Company will
decline as a result or not be paid at all. Nonetheless,
the profit commission will vary based on each reinsurance
contract’s terms and conditions.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded
commission expenses at THB 593.4 million, THB 620.2 million
and THB 508.3 million respectively, representing net
commission expenses ratio of 28.6 percent, 31.7 percent and
28.3 percentrespectively. In 2017, the Company acquired new
project in non-conventional reinsurance business which
provided commission on the first year’s premium at a lower rate
compared to renewal premiums. In 2016, the Company
acquired new project innon-conventional reinsurance business
which provided commissions on the first year’s premium at a
higher rate compared to renewal premiums. In 2015,
the commission ratio dropped due to higher proportion of
renewal premiums which gave lower commission rate than
The first year’s premium including the decline of profit
commission.

Net commission ratio will be calculated from commission
expenses less commission income, compared to earned premium.
Net commission ratio is regarded as one instrument in measuring
the Company's efficiency in the reinsurance business, called the

combined ratio which will be discussed later on.
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MIUEAU
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ANEIETUNISAITUINUUS:NOUADY AEINaWUINIU AN
39191fwaiuonAs ANNGaNNS la:ANTEIUTUNSAITUNUBU

Tul 2560 U 2559 11a:0 2558 usundg UAlg9191u
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usun IngsUs:NUsdIn 910/ (UHIBU)

Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses consist of contribution the
Office of Insurance Commission, employee’s expenses which
are relate for underwriting and other underwriting expenses as
agreed on in the reinsurance contract.

In 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company recorded other
underwriting expenses of THB 24.2 million, THB 21.2 million
and THB 14.0 million respectively, accounting for a growth rate
of 14.2 percent and 50.9 percent respectively.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprise of personnel expenses,
premise expenses, taxable expenses, and other operating
expenses.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded total
operating expenses at THB 75.7 million, THB 58.2 million and
THB 55.2 million respectively, accounting for a growth rate of
30.1 percentand 5.3 percent respectively. In 2017, anincrease
in operating expenses resulted from an increase in personnel
expenses and information technology consulting. In 2016, an
increase in operating expenses resulted from an increase in
information technology consulting and computer application

service expenditures.

Underwriting Expenses and Operating Expenses

Ratio

The ratio of underwriting expenses and operating
expenses are one of the instrument employed in measuring
the Company’s efficiency in reinsurance business which is
called “combined ratio”. Such ratio is calculated from other
underwriting expenses plus operating expenses in comparison
with net written premiums, underwriting expenses and other
operating expenses. In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the ratio of
underwriting and operating expenses was equivalent to
4.7 percent, 4.0 percent and 3.8 percent respectively.
The Company has established a policy to control such
expenses not to exceed 5.0 percent of net written premiums
and not higher than the average operating expenses of the life

insurance industry.



dmsngousou

ansndousoududnsidourtonidnuadwiwsranglu
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1. dnsndoumaulnunainu
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AAUlKUNAINU (Loss Ratio) dnsndourunikiieans Ranad
drsul 2559 Combined Ratio AIWUVUIToI9INUSENY U
dns1daUANAUlUNAINU (Loss Ratio) RWUVU

Combined Ratio

Combined ratio is a commonly used ratio in measuring
the efficiency of insurance. Combined ratio consists of
the following:

1. Lossratio
2. Net commission ratio
3. Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

Consequently, if the combined ratio is lower than 100
percent, meaning that the Company has profits from its rein-
surance business. The Company’s combined ratio in 2017,
2016 and 2015 were 77.7 percent, 84.6 percent and 76.1
percent respectively. In 2017, the Company experienced a
decline in combined ratio owing to higher loss ratio whereas in
2016, anincrease in combined ratio was a result of anincrease

in net commission expenses ratio.

ANSWIENIONSIE0USOU Table illustrating the combined ratio

S19UNIS

Items

Kuog : Soga:
Unit: percent

dmsIdouANZUlHUNAINU Loss ratio 44.4 48.9 44.0
Ons1doUAIUNINTRENS Net commissions ratio 28.6 31.7 28.3
dmnsIdouANEINSUUSNUNYIa:-ATEIN8FAITUIU 4.7 4.0 38
Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

9MS1d0USOl Combined ratio 77.7 84.6 76.1
Mlsans Net Profit

(Ul 2560 U 2559 11a:U 2558 Usen Unlsansiminu
435.7 ahuunn 321.7 a1uuin na: 388.7 aiuuin muatnu
Andudnsinilsanssoda: 19.9 Soga: 15.6 11a: Sova: 20.5
niudrau Inglul 2560 dnsinnlsansiwuvullosunann
\JuUs:AungsosufIwuvu Us:naunurlaulrnunainuna:
AUindsnanay doutut 2559 dnsirlsansanaiiosutan
Aaulnunanuia:A KGR IWILTU

amsawanoulinugouvouyfiioku

uU2560U 2559 1a:U 2558 USYN« JaRNSIWanaUINUadU
vouytioAuInnnusoga: 30.5 Soga: 24.8 11a:soga: 31.4 AU

any

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded a
net profit at THB 435.7 million, THB 321.7 million and
THB 388.7 million respectively, representing a net profit margin
of 19.9 percent, 15.6 percent and 20.5 percent respectively.
An increase of profit margin in 2017 was due to an increase in
reinsurance premium and a decline in the Company’s claims
incurred and commission expenses. A decline of net profit
marginin 2016 was due to an increase in the company’s claims

incurred and commission expenses.

Return on Equity

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded return
on equity of 30.5 percent, 24.8 percent and 31.4 percent,

respectively.
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Ul 2560 U 2559 112U 2558 USUNY Jannlondnyryn
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Reinsurance Receivables

RNUDNIFNNNISUSAUNYMD Amounts deposited on reinsurance
NUANSUMNNISUS:AUNYFM Amounts dues from reinsurers
SOU Total

Financial Position

Assets

The Company’s core assets are composed of cash and
cash equivalents, accrued investment income, premium
receivables, reinsurance assets, reinsurance receivables,
investments in securities, and premises equipment.

As of the end of 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s
total assets were recorded at THB 2,397.1 million,
THB 2,052.5 million and THB 2,025.3 million respectively,
growing by 16.8 percent and 1.3 percent respectively. Such
asset growth was the result of an increase in cash, cash
equivalent and investment assets in line with the Company’s

growth. The Company’s assets comprise as follows:

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance Receivables consists of amounts deposited
on reinsurance and amount due from reinsurers.

Amounts Deposited onreinsurance are premium reserves
collected by an insurance company (a reinsured) from a
reinsurer as security in case the reinsurer encounters financial
difficulties and is unable to perform obligations under
the insurance contract. Such reserves will be returned
pythe reinsured in the following year or upon an expiry of
the contract.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s reinsurance
receivables amounted to THB 212.2 million, THB 273.1 million
and THB 317.9 million, representing 8.9 percent, 13.3 percent
and 15.7 percent of total assets respectively. Detalls are
described below:

KUY : &1uun

Unit: THB million
2560 2559 2558
2017 2016 2015
54.0 56.3 70.2
158.2 216.8 247.7
212.2 273.1 317.9

[nolut 2560 1a: U 2559 Ustn Jaunswevnnisus:=nuns
FioanadtiosaniuASUIRgauNsUs:AUNgFoRanad Ity

INUSENY aNUNSOUSKISNNSIAUKTIHAY

swiuds=90 2560
usun InesUs:NUBIM 9111A (UNIBU)

In 2017 and 2016, the decline in the Company’s
reinsurance assets was attributed to a decline in amounts due
from the reinsurance due to its higher efficiency in credit

management.
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Investment Assets

aauunn

Sowa: aauun
THB Million | Percent | THB Million | Percent

Investment Assets

Investment assets are composed of available-for-sale
investments, held-to-maturity investments, general

investments, and loans, details of which are as follows:

ajuun
THB Million | Percent

Soga:

NUEAIA:S18NISIAYUINIRNUAR Cash and cash equivalents 2121 10.7 181.9 1.4 73.9 4.8
RUaINUIWoAN Trading investment

MSTENSNU Equity securities 6.2 0.3 73.3 4.6 76.5 5.0
NUaINUIWOVIY Available for sale investment

NSIASNU Equity securities 241.7 12.2 207.9 13.0 110.8 7.3

HUIQUENQU Unit trusts 466.8 23.5 5121 32.1 490.2 32.1
Quamuﬁo:ﬁooumsuﬁmum Held to maturity investment

nannSwegsyunala:Syoarng 768.7 38.7 468.3 29.3 393.2 25.8

Government and state enterprise securities

Hur) Private enterprise debt securities 76.1 38 25.0 1.6 25.0 1.6

\GUUWOSUWHTS Deposits at banks 195.0 9.8 1038.0 6.5 335.0 22.0
uasnunoly General investments 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1
NUlANEU Loans 0.1 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.5 0.1
NUaINUIUUSBNSOU Investments in an associate 18.6 0.9 22.9 1.4 18.9 1.2
SOU Total 1,987.4 100.0 1,596.8 100.0 1,526.1 100.0

uauNUIWoOM

NuaunuIioA KUNetiy Wuasnuiusgnanuia:d
JnnUs:avAnvvigliuounnnduing Insasnulurusnn:1I0gulu
natnnannsweiruls:inAlng tul 2560 U 2559 1a:U 2558
USBNORUaINUIWOAINIAL 6.2 d1uUINn 73.3 89UUIN la:
76.5 auun muaau IngAndudnsidounoaunswesousod
a- 0.3 Sogas 3.6 Sogar 3.8 MUAINU

Inos:r3T 2557 UsBnd lrloulaguus: NNRUaINUIURU
snn:i0oulunatarannsweikaus:nAlnaikants ugdau
niauingfioayiluiuadnuidovigunJuRuainuiwor
douvnmisUsuIaguulounanIsainuvedusend IWomauauay
ANTUNISIUAIUNISAINUIAADTULUWOUYDISTATKUTU
nANARANNSWE duwalkiuadnuiworniul 2558 1a:U 2559 [
9UDUNUGY

Mol Ruadnuiioriut 2560 U 2559 11a:U 2558 Anilu
ansidounoaunswygainuininusosa: 0.3 Saga: 4.6 la:
Soga: 5.0 MuanU

Trading investments

Trading investments refer to investment performed by
the Company with the intention to sell them in the near future
in which the Company has to invest such registered shares in
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). In2017, 2016 and 2015,
the Company had total trading investments of THB 6.2 million,
THB 73.3 million and THB 76.5 million respectively,
representing 0.3 percent, 3.6 percent and 3.8 percent of its
total assets respectively.

During the year 2014, the Company transferred a part of
its investments in a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET) from “available-for-sale investments” to “trading
investments” owing to the change in its investment policy in
compliance with the Company’s investment situation and
fluctuation of the share price in the stock market and this
generated an increasing of trading investment in 2015 and 2016.

Nevertheless, trading investments in 2017, 2016 and 2015
accounted for 0.3 percent, 4.6 percent and 5.0 percent of

investment assets respectively.
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Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments refer to investments made
by the Company and intended to be sold in the future,
comprising of equity securities and unit trusts.

IN2017,2016 and 2015, the Company’s available-for-sale
investments amounted to THB 708.5 million, THB 719.9 million
and THB 601.1 million respectively, representing 29.6 percent,
35.1 percent and 29.7 percent of total assets respectively.
A proportion of equity securities to unit trusts in
the available-for-sale investments were reported at 20 percent
to 35 percent and 65 percent to 80 percent respectively.

Nevertheless, available-for-sale investments in 2017,
2016 and 2015 made up 35.7 percent, 45.1 percent and 39.4
percent of investment assets respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are investments made by
the Company and intended to be held until maturity,
comprising of government and state enterprise securities,
debentures, and deposits at banks.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, held-to-maturity investments
amounted to THB 1,039.8 million, THB 596.3 million and
THB 753.2 million, respectively, representing 43.4 percent,
29.1 percentand 37.2 percent of total assets, respectively. The
majority of investment items were government and state
enterprise securities and deposits at banks.

Nevertheless, held-to-maturity investments accounted
for 52.3 percent, 37.4 percent and 49.4 percent of investment
assets in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Premises and equipment

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, premises and equipment of
the Company amounted to THB 46.3 million, THB 42.6 million
and THB 42.9 million respectively, representing 1.9 percent,
2.1 percentand 2.1 percent of total assets respectively. In 2017,
Premises and equipment increase from office renovation.
In 2016 and 2015, Premises and equipment was declined as

aresult of depreciation.
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Liabilities

As atthe end of 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Company had
total liabilities of THB 853.6 million, THB 739.5 million and
THB 742.9 million, respectively, increased by 15.4 percent and
decreased by 0.5 percent, respectively. In 2017 the chiefly

attributed changes in total liabilities were increased from

insurance contract liabilities which the mainitems are as follows:

Amounts Due to Reinsurers

IN2017, 2016 and 2015, amounts due to reinsurers totaled
THB 181.9 million, THB 184.4 million and THB 154.2 million,
respectively, representing 7.6 percent, 9.0 percent and
7.6 percent of total liabilities and equity, respectively. In 2016,
the accrued transaction on the amount due to reinsurers
increased as a result of the business expansion of
the Company and the list is not yet due.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are composed of long-term
insurance policy reserves refer to reserves for long-term
reinsurance agreements, loss reserves and outstanding claims

and premium reserves.

Long term insurance policy reserves

At the end of the reporting period, there will be
comparison between value of gross premium valuationreserves
and unearned premium reserves for policies that still remain in
force. If value of gross premium valuation reserves is higher
than unearned premium reserves, such difference will be
recognized and the gross premium insurance reserves will be
presented in the financial statements. The gross premium
insurance reserves are life insurance reserves calculated by

the actuarial method pursuant to the OIC notification.
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In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company maintained long
term insurance policy reserves of THB 321.3 million,
THB 285.4 million and THB 269.3 million respectively,
representing 13.4 percent, 13.9 percent and 13.3 percent of
total liabilities and shareholders’ equity respectively. As for 2016
and 2017, an increase in long term insurance policy reserves
was a result of an increase in net reinsurance premium of

long-term policies.

Loss Reserves

Loss reserves refer to provisions for claims for losses
incurred but not yet agreed upon or reported. Provisions for

claims shall conform to the law governing reserve calculation.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s loss reserves
equaled THB 34.9 million, THB 49.7 million and
THB 58.0 million respectively, accounting for 1.5 percent,
2.4 percent and 2.9 percent of total liabilities and owners’
equity respectively. In 2016 and 2017, a decrease in loss
reserves resulted from a decline in incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR).

Premium Reserves

Premium reserves refer to unearned premiums of active
policies for short-term reinsurance agreements, with
the reserving method in line with the OIC notification. At every
final date of the reporting period, there will be a comparison
pbetween value of premium reserves and value of unexpired risk
reserves. If value of unexpired risk reserves is higher than
premium reserves, such difference will be recognized and
the unexpired risk reserves will be presented in the financial
statements. The unexpired risk reserves, consistent with
the actuarial method, are provided for any possible future claims

arising from the insurance that remains in force.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company had premium
reserves of THB 222.1 million, THB 182.1 million and
THB 197.8 million, respectively, representing 9.3 percent,
8.9 percent and 9.8 percent of total liabilities and shareholders’
equity, respectively. In 2017, an increase in premium reserves
was due to an increase in net reinsurance premium of health
insurance. In 2016, a decline in premium reserves was due to
a decline in net reinsurance premium of group life and

personnel accident.
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Asset Management Ability

Amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium
receivables, commission income receivables, claim receivables
and various other items receivable from reinsurers, excluding
reinsurance premium receivable, and are deducted by
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records
allowance for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that
may be incurred due to uncollectible, taking into account
collection experience and the status of reinsurers.

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company had outstanding
debts from reinsurance which was equivalent to THB 158.2
million, THB 216.8 million and THB 24 7.7 million, respectively,
which were accounted for 6.6 percent, 10.6 percent, 12.2
percent of the total asset respectively. In 2016 and 2017, the
amounts due from reinsurers declined since the Company was
able to manage debt collection more effectively.

Nevertheless, 95 percent of the amounts due from
reinsurers are not yet due. Only less than 5 percent exceeds
the payment due date as indicated in No.8 of notes in
the financial statement.

In 2016 and 2015, the Company had recognized
THB 8.7 million and THB 2.4 million allowances for impairment
of available for sale investments which was considered as
expenses in profit and loss statement due to significant decline
of investment value in equity fund. In 2017, the Company had
reversed an allowance for impairment Available-for-sale
investment and recognized as income in the statements of

income.
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Liquidity and Capital Adequacy

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities is reinsurance
receivables and investment income , operating expenditures
and corporate income tax. In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
the Company had cash flow provided from operating activities
of THB 294.0 million, 418.0 million and THB 282.1 million
respectively. Anincrease in cash flow from operating activities
iN2017 was the result of a growth in reinsurance premiums and
investment in securities which in 2016, such cash flow
increased due to anincrease in cash received fromreinsurance

and investment income.

Cash flow from investment activities

IN2017,2016 and 2015, the Company reported cash flow
for investing activities of THB 23.9 million, THB 10.0 million and
THB 18.0 million respectively. The Company's cash flow from
investing activities increased as a result of an investment in
the systems of reinsurance development in order to support

DUSINESS expansion.

Cash flow from financing activities

In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s cash flow
employed in financing activities amounted to THB 240.0 million,
THB 300.0 million and THB 270.0 million respectively. The only
cash flow from financing activities was dividend payment paid

to the Company’s shareholders.

Capital Structure

The Company does not acquire other capital sources from
loaning or have any other sources out of financial budget.
Nevertheless, the Company’s D/E ratio at the end of 2017 was
0.6 times and debts caused mainly by due to reinsurers and

insurance contract liabilities.
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Factors with Possible Impacts on Future

Operation and Financial Position

Economic Volatility

Economic fluctuation could be a threat to consumers’
purchasing power. Particularly in tough economic times,
consumers will become more stringent in their spending,
including their decision on buying insurance. Some of them
choose to take out insurance only when they could save enough
money. Besides this, interest rate is another factor influencing
consumers’ insurance buying decision, which is made based
on comparison with yields from other forms of financial
instruments. Interestrate also has an effect on the rate of return
receivable by the Company from investments, which will further

affect our operating performance.

Domestic Reinsurance Business Expansion by

Foreign Reinsurers

Factors include the expansion of international reinsurance
companies in Thailand (not in a form the joint venture),
cutting-edge technology and ongoing product innovation and
development have made the reinsurance with life insurance
companies more difficult. However, major life insurance
companies in Thailand are still close and in good relationship
with the Company, as well as the Company had an expertise
in the life insurance business of Thailand as well, led to
The Company’s growth steadily.
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Financial Information

(Unit : THB Thousand)

OPERATIONS

Gross Written Premiums
Net Written Premiums
Earned Premium
Underwriting Profit!

Net investment income
Profit before Tax

Net Profit

Financial status
Investment Assets

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Paid-up Capital

Capital Funds (Shareholders' Equity)
Book Value per share (Baht)
Dividend per Share (Baht)
Financial Ratio (Percent)
Loss Ratio”

Expenses Ratio®

Combined Ratio

Return on Equity
Investment Yield

Earnings per Share (Baht)

2,157,428
2,136,580
2,096,545
455,964
82,355
542,233
435,684

1,987,421
2,397,065
853,601
600,000
1,543,464
2.57

0.50

44 .4
33.83
.y
30.5

4.6
0.73

1,975,176
1,950,078
1,965,811
299,753
86,682
390,000
321,748

1,696,792
2,062,532
739,617
600,000
1,313,015
2.19

0.40

48.9
35.7
84.6
24.8

5.3
0.54

1,850,785
1,828,084
1,833,458
423,065
52,424
478,113
388,673

1,626,145
2,025,325
742,862
600,000
1,282,464
2.14

0.50

44.0
32.1
76.1
31.4

3.6
0.65

1,623,774
1,606,600
1,682,962
331,274
115,612
449,188
371,717

1,483,505
1,978,544
788,832
600,000
1,189,712
1.98

0.45

40.8
38.3
79.0
32.6

8.2
0.62

1,387,856
1,373,504
1,399,753
412,793
58,406
473,685
382,998

1,336,066
1,784,390
692,804
600,000
1,091,586
1.82

0.45

37.3
31.9
69.2
41.5

4.8
0.71

1,144,948
1,127,988
1,040,660
232,954
52,449
286,680
220,798

1,038,978
1,386,433
632,109
500,000
764,324
1.51

0.42

36.2
41.0
77.3
28.2

5.4
0.44

—

841,638
821,764
839,243
248,628

48,368
298,189
200,999

970,589

274,740

461,119
500,000
813,622
1.63
0.40

31.5
38.9
70.4
26.1

5.1
0.40

Description :

1. Since 2011, the Company has changed in accounting policy of commission and brokerage income from

reinsurance (“Income”) and commission and brokerage expense from reinsurance (“Expense”) are deferred and

realisedasincome andexpensesonamonthly basisover thetermof policy coverage, inproportiontothe amount of

unearned premium.

2. Since 2013, the Company has prepared financial statements disclosing the investments in associated

company by using the equity method which is in accordance with TAS 28 Investment in Associated Company

(revised 2009)

2012 and 2011 were restated according to the change in accounting policy as above.

Note :

1. Net of other operating expenses and allowance for doubtful debt (if any)

2. Lossincurred expressed as a percentage of earned premiums deduct life policy reserve increase(decrease)

3. Expenses Ratio expressed as a Commission Ratio plus Underwriting and Operating expenses Ratio
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Report on the Board of Directors’ Responsibility towards the Financial Statements
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial
statement of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited.
Such financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai
Accounting Standard. Appropriate accounting policies are
cautiously utilized. Sufficient important information is disclosed
in the footnotes of the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained an
effective internal control system. They also have ensured that
appropriate procedures are being utilized to evaluate
the adequacy of internal controls and risk management, and
monitored the effectiveness of its compliance. In this regard,
the Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committees who
are non-management members of the Company as regulators
inthis matter. The opinion of the Audit Committee in this subject
is included in the Audit Committee Report listed in the annual
report.

Furthermore, it is the opinion of the Board of Directors
that the Company’s internal control system is overall
satisfactory and capable of creating confidence in
the credibility of the financial statements of Thaire Life
Assurance Public Company Limited.

A

ot

(Mr. Suchin Wanglee) (Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson)

Chairman Director and President
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Audit Committee Report
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Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee is composed of three independent
directors: Mr. Kopr Kritayakirana as Chairman of the
Audit Committee, Mr. Apirak Thaipatanagul, and
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon. Allmembers of the Audit Committee
are knowledgeable and experienced in reviewing
the reliability of financial statements required by the Office of
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee has duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board of Directors, which include reviewing
the correctness and adequacy of the Company’s financial
reporting and ensuring the effectiveness of internal control
system, risk management system and corporate governance
process and the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring and
ensuring that any transactions that may have a conflict of
interest are conducted in accordance with regulations and
provide maximum benefit to the Company, as well as selecting
and nominating an independent auditor for the Company.

In 2017, the Audit Committee completed their duties
under the scope of responsibilities assigned by the Board of
Directors and in line with the Audit Committee Charter.
Five meetings were held in the year and were attended by all
committee members. The Management, independent auditor,
internal auditor, and risk management department
representatives were also invited to join the meetings on
the agenda items which they were concerned. The main duties
performed by the Audit Committee in 2017 can be summarized
as follows:

1. Approved guarterly financial statements and reviewed
annual financial statements of the Company prior to
disclosure to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

2. Nominated and recommended an appointment of auditor
and fixing of auditor’s remuneration, with EY Office
Limited being nominated and appointed as auditor of the

Company for another year (for the year 2017).
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Attended two joint meetings with the auditor, one of which
was organized without the attendance of
the Management to consider the guideline and scope
of auditing and review the audit plan, results and
recommendations to ensure that the audit of financial
statements was carried out properly and completely in
accordance with the auditing standards.

Oversaw internal audit, approved the annual internal
audit plan based on the Company’s material risks,
reviewed the audit reports to ensure that the audit was
carried out properly and completely in accordance with
the internal auditing standards, and followed up on
the recommended corrective actions to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control
system.

Reviewed the report on compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on a quarterly basis.

Reviewed the report on related party transactions on a
quarterly basis.

Reviewed and ensured that the Company’s risk
management policy and implementation of risk
management policy and guideline were appropriate and
effective, received quarterly reports on risk management
from the Enterprise Risk Management Department, and
provided feedback on a regular basis.

Arranged for the annual self-assessment of the Audit
Committee as a whole and discussed the assessment
results at the Audit Committee meeting.

Arranged for the annual evaluation of internal control
adequacy and proposed the evaluation results to  the

Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee’s opinions are as follows:

1.

Based on (1) a review of the Company’s significant
accounting policy, (2) an enquiry about important details
of financial position and performance, (3) a review of the
report on evaluation of internal control adequacy, and
(4) an independent meeting with the auditor to discuss
about observations on the financial reporting process and
reliability, the Audit Committee has not found any ground
for doubting that the Company’s financial statements
presents information which contradicts material fact and,
hence, is confident that the Company’s financial state-
ments is reliable, accurate and complete in accordance

with the financial reporting standards.
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The Company’s internal control system, risk management
system, operational control of management team, and
monitoring system are effective and adequate.

The Company gives importance to compliance with
the law on securities and exchange, regulations of
the Stock Exchange, and other laws relevant to
the Company’s business.

The appointed auditor of the Company has experience
in auditing several insurance companies and has
a well-recognized broad local and global network,
thus enabling the auditing standard of the Company to
meet international level. Moreover, the auditor and all
persons designated to certify the financial statements
are the auditors approved by the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, are independent, and do not
have any relationship or any transaction that may cause
conflict of interest with the Company, thereby ensuring
that an audit will be conducted in an efficient and
transparent manner.

All related party transactions or transactions that may
cause conflict of interest were done in conformity with
the laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange and were
reasonable with the maximum benefit to the Company.
There was not any other indication or remark that implied
any irregularity.

The Audit Committee has the number of members,
composition and qualification suitable for an
efficient discharge of duties under the Audit Committee
Charter. The Audit Committee has performed their duties
in accordance with the scope of responsibilities
correctly and completely in all respects with good
collaboration and support from all concerned parties.

On Behalf of the Audit Committee

<

(Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position, in which the equity
method is applied, as at 31 December 2017, and the related statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows, in which the equity method is
applied, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and also have audited the separate financial statements of Thaire

Life Assurance Public Company for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2017,
its financial performance and cash flows, for the year then ended in accordance with Thai

Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my

opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.
Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.
Reinsurance premium written

The Company’s core revenue is reinsurance premium written, which amounted to Baht 2,157
million, representing 98 percent of the Company’s total revenues. The Company has entered into
reinsurance contracts with customers, who are life insurance companies, for both facultative and
treaty reinsurance contracts. Conditions under those contracts vary depending upon types of
insurance, ratios of premium ceded, insured periods, etc. In addition, recognition of revenue on
such reinsurance contracts shall also meet the definition of insurance contracts under Thai
Financial Reporting Standards. Therefore, the Company’s management is required to use
judgement in consideration and review its product classification. Hence, | therefore focused on

examining that the reinsurance premium written is recognised correctly as actually incurred.

| assessed and tested, on a sampling basis, the Company’s internal controls relevant to revenue
recognition from each type of reinsurance contract, assessed the method and assumptions used
for product classification testing, involving our expert to provide independent assistance with
these assessments, through comparison to historical data, industry data and analysis of the
related actuarial model. Moreover, on a sampling basis, | tested the data used for product
classification testing and tested inward reinsurance premium against the statements received
from reinsurers. | also performed analytical procedures on reinsurance premium written,
disaggregated by reinsurance type and tested, on a sampling basis, significant adjustments

made by journal vouchers.

swiuds=90 2560
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Liability adequacy test for long-term insurance policy reserves

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
long-term insurance policy reserves amounting to Baht 321 million, representing 38 percent of
total liabilities, which were set aside for inforce policies as at 31 December 2017 with reference to
the Unearned Premium Reserve method. The Company tests the adequacy of the reserve by
comparing it to the amount of reserves determined using the Gross Premium Valuation method,
and if that assessment shows that the carrying amount of reserves is inadequate, the Company
will recognise the amount of the shortfall as an expense and the gross premium valuation reserve
is presented in the financial statements. The Gross Premium Valuation method involves the use
of assumptions regarding matters such as mortality rate, discounted rate, lapse or surrender rate,
and selling and administrative expense ratio. Changes in such assumptions will affect the amount
of long-term insurance policy reserves. The Company’s management is required to exercise high
level of considerable judgement in selecting these assumptions. | therefore focused on the

adequacy of long-term insurance policy reserves.

| assessed the method and key assumptions used in determining long-term insurance policy
reserves, involved our expert to assist with independent analysis and comparison of the methods
and assumptions used to historical data and industry data, and analysis of the actuarial model
used in calculating reserves under the Gross Premium Valuation method. | also tested, on a
sampling basis, data used in the liabilities adequacy test, and | performed analytical procedures

on movements of long-term insurance policy reserves.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial

statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in

this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Nonglak Pumnoi
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4172

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 February 2018
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Financial Statements

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2017
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 212,087,690 181,912,145 212,087,690 181,912,145
Accrued investment income 9,242,150 10,059,153 9,242,150 10,059,153
Reinsurance assets 7 4,015,200 3,673,841 4,015,200 3,673,841
Reinsurance receivables 8 212,172,855 273,124,392 212,172,855 273,124,392
Investment assets

Investments in securities - net 9 1,756,626,673 1,391,666,388 1,756,626,673 1,391,666,388

Loans 10 120,379 292,891 120,379 292,891

Investments in associates 11.1 18,586,214 22,920,401 21,684,234 6,000,000
Premises and equipment - net 12 46,319,442 42,617,893 46,319,442 42,617,893
Intangible assets - net 13 40,278,981 24,627,263 40,278,981 24,627,263
Deferred tax assets 14.1 28,150,584 32,280,190 28,150,584 32,280,190
Other assets

Deferred commission expenses - net 65,652,194 68,816,498 65,652,194 68,816,498

Others 3,812,535 540,605 3,812,535 540,605
Total assets 2,397,064,897 2,052,531,660 2,400,162,917 2,035,611,259
Liabilities and owners' equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 15 578,361,292 517,154,652 578,361,292 517,154,652
Due to reinsurers 16 181,944,707 184,402,737 181,944,707 184,402,737
Income tax payable 71,439,987 29,599,975 71,439,987 29,599,975
Employee benefit obligations 17 9,087,919 4,197,790 9,087,919 4,197,790
Other liabilities

Accrued expenses 2,529,686 2,798,843 2,529,686 2,798,843

Deferred commission income - net 60,249 51,260 60,249 51,260

Others 10,176,891 1,311,293 10,176,891 1,311,293
Total liabilities 853,600,731 739,516,550 853,600,731 739,516,550
Owners' equity
Share capital 18

Registerred, issued and paid-up

600,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000

Share premium 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825
Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve 19 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

Unappropriated 761,494,365 569,482,472 763,441,126 552,491,098
Other component of owners' equity 42,806,976 4,369,813 43,958,235 4,440,786

Total owners' equity

Total liabilities and owners' equity

1,543,464,166

1,313,015,110

1,546,562,186

1,296,094,709

2,397,064,897

2,052,531,660

2,400,162,917

2,035,611,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of income
For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Note 2017 2016 2017 2016

Revenues
Reinsurance premium written 2,157,427,777 1,975,176,249 2,157,427,777 1,975,176,249
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded (20,847,584) (25,097,874) (20,847,584) (25,097,874)
Net reinsurance premium written 2,136,580,193 1,950,078,375 2,136,580,193 1,950,078,375
Add (less): Unearned premium reserves (increased)

decreased from prior year (40,035,591) 15,732,755 (40,035,591) 15,732,755
Earned premium 2,096,544,602 1,965,811,130 2,096,544,602 1,965,811,130
Commission income 3,525,473 2,308,306 3,525,473 2,308,306
Share of profit from investments in associates,

accounted for under the equity method 11.3 6,159,496 9,041,557 - -
Net investment revenue 42,104,670 61,744,939 47,144,670 66,784,939
Gains on investments 31,964,466 19,100,585 51,977,630 19,100,585
Fair value gains (losses) 2,126,582 (3,205,500) 2,126,582 (3,205,500)
Other income 3,913,847 3,565,170 3,913,847 3,565,170
Total revenues 2,186,339,136 2,058,366,187 2,205,232,804 2,054,364,630
Expenses
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

from prior year 35,530,506 15,915,529 35,530,506 15,915,529
Gross benefits and claims 919,004,077 957,324,933 919,004,077 957,324,933
Less: claims recovered from reinsurers (3,745,510) (4,396,502) (3,745,510) (4,396,502)
Commission expenses 593,430,549 620,185,623 593,430,549 620,185,623
Other underwriting expenses 24,163,209 21,154,692 24,163,209 21,154,692
Operating expenses 21 75,723,075 58,182,161 75,723,075 58,182,161
Total expenses 1,644,105,906 1,668,366,436 1,644,105,906 1,668,366,436
Profits before income tax expenses 542,233,230 389,999,751 561,126,898 385,998,194
Income tax expenses 14.2 (106,548,984) (68,251,302) (106,548,984) (68,251,302)
Profits for the years 435,684,246 321,748,449 454,577,914 317,746,892
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profits for the years 0.73 0.54 0.76 0.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
Profits for the years 435,684,246 321,748,449 454,577,914 317,746,892
Other comprehensive income
ltems to be recognised in statements of
income in subsequent periods:
Share of other comprehensive income from associates
- Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements in foreign currency (1,121,566) - - -
- Gains on revaluation
of available-for-sale investments 41,280 28,524 - -
Gains on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments 49,396,811 11,732,604 49,396,811 11,732,604
Less: Income tax expenses (9,879,362) (2,346,521) (9,879,362) (2,346,521)
Iltems to be recognised in statements of income
in subsequent periods - net of income taxes 38,437,163 9,414,607 39,517,449 9,386,083
Items not to be recognised in statements of
income in subsequent periods:
Share of other comprehensive income from
an associate - actuarial losses (44,467) (52,216) - -
Actuarial losses (4,534,958) (699,165) (4,534,958) (699,165)
Add: Income tax revenues 906,992 139,833 906,992 139,833
Items not to be recognised in statements of income
in subsequent periods - net of income taxes (3,672,433) (611,548) (3,627,966) (559,332)
Other comprehensive income for the years 34,764,730 8,803,059 35,889,483 8,826,751
Total comprehensive income for the years 470,448,976 330,551,508 490,467,397 326,573,643
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash received from reinsurance

Interest income

Dividend income

Other income

Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Income tax expenses

Investments in securities

Loans

Purchase of investments in an associate

Sale of investments in an associate

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Disposals of equipment

Purchases of equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the years

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the years

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016
678,967,700 452,964,906 678,967,700 452,964,906
20,668,970 18,952,704 20,668,970 18,952,704
36,866,421 48,873,581 36,866,421 48,873,581
35,255,721 30,139,807 35,255,721 30,139,807
(24,191,079) (20,849,423) (24,191,079) (20,849,423)
(61,636,723) (57,832,506) (61,636,723) (57,832,506)
(70,458,728) (95,430,968) (70,458,728) (95,430,968)
(359,922,917) 41,049,483 (359,922,917) 41,049,483
172,512 166,545 172,512 166,545
(21,684,234) - (21,684,234) -
60,000,000 - 60,000,000 -
294,037,643 418,034,129 294,037,643 418,034,129
14,990 100 14,990 100
(6,213,459) (2,242,926) (6,213,459) (2,242,926)
(17,663,629) (7,739,460) (17,663,629) (7,739,460)
(23,862,098) (9,982,286) (23,862,098) (9,982,286)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

30,175,545 108,051,843 30,175,545 108,051,843
181,912,145 73,860,302 181,912,145 73,860,302
212,087,690 181,912,145 212,087,690 181,912,145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

21

Corporate information

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company,
incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand since 9 October 2013. Its major shareholder is Thai Reinsurance Public Company
Limited, a public company incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the major shareholder
held 15.53% and 17.47%, respectively, of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of life reinsurance. The
registered office of the Company is located at No. 48/15 Soi Ratchadapisek 20,
Ratchadapisek Road, Samsennok Sub-district, Huaykwang District, Bangkok.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance
with Thai accounting practices related to insurance and the accounting and reporting
guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC”), and in accordance
with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification of the Office of Insurance
Commission (“OIC”) regarding criteria, procedures, conditions and terms for preparation and
submission of financial statements and operating performance reports of life insurance
companies B.E. 2559 dated 4 March 2016, which has become effective as from 1 January
2016 onwards.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in Note to the financial statements regarding a summary of significant

accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such

financial statements in Thai language.
The financial statements in which the equity method is applied

The Company prepares the financial statements, in which equity method is applied, which

has presented investment in an associate under the equity method.
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2.2

3.1

3.2

Separate financial statements

The Company prepares the separate financial statements, which has presented investment

in an associate under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company have adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations (revised 2016) and new accounting treatment guidance which are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2017. These financial reporting standards
were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards
with most of the changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and
provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of standards. The adoption of
these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements. However, one standard that directly relevant to the Company changes

to key principles, which are summarised below.
TAS 27 (revised 2016) Separate Financial Statements

This revised standard stipulates an additional option to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in separate financial statements under the equity
method, as described in TAS 28 (revised 2016) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures. However, the entity is to apply the same accounting treatment for each category
of investment. If an entity elects to account for such investments using the equity method in

the separate financial statements, it has to adjust the transaction retrospectively.

This standard does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements
because the management has decided to continue accounting for such investments under

the cost method in the separate financial statements.
Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of
revised financial reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2017) which are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These financial reporting standards
were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards
with most of the changes and clarifications directed towards disclosures in the notes to

financial statements.

The management of the Company believe that the revised financial reporting standards will

not have any significant impact on the financial statements when they are initially applied.
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4.1

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Reinsurance Premium written

Reinsurance premium written consists of reinsurance premium less premium of
canceled policies and premiums refunded to policyholders. Reinsurance premium is
recognised as revenue when the reinsurer submits the reinsurance application or the
statement of accounts and the Company confirms the coverage under the reinsurance

contracts and is adjusted by unearned premium reserves.
Commission income

Commission income are recorded as deferred revenue and will be gradually

recognised as revenue on a monthly basis proportionately to the ceded premium.
Investment revenues
Interest on investments

Interest is recognised as revenue on an accrual basis based on the effective interest

rate.
Dividends on investments

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is

established.
Gains (losses) on investments

Gains (losses) on investments are recognised as revenues or expenses on the

transaction dates.

4.2 Expenses recognition

Reinsurance premium ceded

Reinsurance premium ceded is recognised as expense when the insurance risk is

transferred to another reinsurer.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 154
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



193

b. Gross claims

Claims consist of claims and losses adjustment expenses of reinsurance for both
reported claim and not reported claim, and include the amounts of the claims, related

expenses, and loss adjustments of current and prior year incurred during the year.

Claims of reinsurance are recognised upon the receipt of the claims advice from the
reinsured, based on the claims notified by the reinsured and estimates made by the
Company’s management. The maximum value of claims estimated is not exceeding

the sum-insured under the relevant policy.

Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised as a deduction item against gross
claims when claims are recorded under the conditions in the relevant reinsurance

contracts.
c. Commission expenses

Commissions of reinsurance are recorded as deferred expenses and will be gradually

recognised as expenses on a monthly basis proportionately of earned premium.
d.  Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses are other expenses relating to reinsurance both directly
and indirectly, including various insurance-related contributions, which are recognised

as expenses on accrual basis.
e. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are these operating expenses not related to underwriting and

claims, which are recognised as expenses on accrual basis.
4.3 Product classification

The Company classifies inward reinsurance contracts and outward reinsurance contracts
based on the nature of the insurance contracts. Insurance contracts are those contracts
where the insurer has accepted a significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. To determine whether a
significant insurance risk has been accepted, the insurer compares the amount of benefits
payable if an insured event occurs with the amount of benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. If the above condition is not met, the Company classifies the insurance
contract as an investment contract. Investment contracts are the contracts that have the
legal form of insurance contracts and transfer financial risk to the insurer, but not significant

insurance risk. Financial risks are as interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or price risk.
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4.4

4.5

4.6

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of the significance of the
insurance risk at an inception of contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract
has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime. If any contract is previously classified as an investment contract at
an inception of contract, it may, however, be reclassified to be an insurance contract later if

the level of the insurance risk increases significanthy.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at bank, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets consist of long-term insurance policy reserves refundable from
reinsurers and unearned premium reserves, less allowance for doubtful accounts (if any).

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers are estimated, proportionally based on the
reinsurance terms of long-term insurance policy reserves and unearned premium reserves

in accordance with the insurance reserve calculation laws.

The Company set up a provision for impairment when it has objective evidence, as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets, that the
Company may not receive payment from reinsurers and these amounts, which are effected

from an event, can be measured reliably.
Reinsurance receivables and due to reinsurers
a. Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables are stated at amounts deposited on reinsurance and

amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium receivables, commission income
receivables, claim receivables and various other items receivable from reinsurers, and
are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records allowance for
doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to uncollectibles,
taking into account collection experience and the status of reinsurers as at the end of
the reporting periods.

b. Due to reinsurers

Due to reinsurers are stated at amounts due to reinsurers and other amounts due to

reinsurers which consist of other reinsurance payable to reinsurers, excluding claims.
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4.7

The Company presents net of reinsurance to the same entity (reinsurance receivables or

due to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are met.

(1)

(2)

The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of

financial position, and

The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements

of financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.

Investment assets

a.

Investments in securities

(1) Trading investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these

investments are recorded in statement of income.

(2) Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these investments are recorded in statements of comprehensive income, and

will be recorded in statement of income when the investments are sold.

(3) Held-to-maturity investments are presented at amortised cost. The
premium/discount on the investments is amortised/accreted by the effective
interest rate method with the amortised/accreted amount presented as an

adjustment to the interest income.

(4) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which are classified as general

investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last
working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value
of debt securities is determined based on yield rates or prices quoted by the Thai
Bond Market Association. The fair value of investment units is determined from their

net asset value.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such
investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the
date of reclassification are recorded in statements of income or recorded as
revaluation surplus or deficit on available-for-sale investment in other components of

owners’ equity, depending on the type of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
cost of the investments is recognised in statements of income. The weighted average

method is used for computation of the cost of investments.
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The Company records purchases and sales of investments in equity securities on
trade dates and records purchases and sales of investments in debt securities on

settlement dates.
b. Loans

Loans are stated at net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for the estimated loss that may be incurred in collection of loans. Increase (decrease)

in allowance for doubtful accounts is recognised as expenses in statement of income.
c. Investmentin an associate

Investment in an associate, as presented in the financial statements in which the
equity method is applied, is recorded initially at cost and is subsequently adjusted to
reflect the proportionate share of the associate’s net income or loss and deducted by

dividend income.

Investment in an associate, as presented in the separate financial statements, is
stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any). Loss on impairment is recorded

as an expense in statement of income.
4.8 Premises and equipment and depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years
Office equipment and furniture - bSyears
Computers - Jyears
Motor vehicles - bSyears

Depreciation is recognised as expense in statement of income. No depreciation is provided

on land.

An item of property, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on

disposal of an asset is included in statement of income when the asset is derecognised.
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4.9

410

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for

impairment (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over their economic
useful lives and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. The amortisation
expense is charged to statement of income. No amortisation is provided on computer

program under development.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, which are computer softwares, have an estimated

economic useful life of 10 years.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect
of investments, premises and equipment and intangible assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
as expenses in statement of income when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the

carrying amount.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of
the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the

asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised immediately in statement of income.
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4.11 Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities consist of long term insurance policy reserves, loss reserves,

claims payable and premium reserves.

a.

Long term insurance policy reserves

At the end of the reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of gross
premium valuation reserves with unearned premium reserves, and if gross premium
valuation reserves are higher than unearned premium reserves, the Company will
recognise such difference and gross premium valuation reserves are presented in the

financial statements.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)
Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as direct insurance, that transfer insurance
risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.

(2) Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves, calculated using an
actuarial method in accordance with the OIC notifications. The main
assumptions applied relate to lapse or surrender rate, selling and administrative
expenses, mortality, morbidity, discount rate and non-guaranteed dividend

payment rate.
Loss reserves

Loss reserves are provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on
the claims notified by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s
management. The maximum value of estimated claim will not exceed the sum-insured

under the relevant policy.

Loss reserves are calculated using an actuarial method based on the best estimate of
claims expected to be paid to the insured in respect of losses incurred before or as at
the end of the reporting period whether or not the claims are reported to the Company,
including loss adjustment expenses. Differences of the then-calculated loss reserves
and the loss reserves already recognised in the financial statements is claims incurred
but not yet reported (IBNR).
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Premium reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy reserves. At the end of the
reporting period, the Company compares the amount of unexpired risk reserves with
that of unearned premium reserves, and if unexpired risk reserves are higher than
unearned premium reserves, the Company will recognise such difference and
unexpired risk reserves are presented in the financial statements.

(1)  Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)

Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three
hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as direct insurance, that transfer insurance
risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.

(2) Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are the reserves for the future claims that may be
incurred in respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserves are set aside
using an actuarial method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected
be incurred during the remaining coverage period, based on historical claim
data.

4.12 Employee benefit obligation

a.

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in
a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses
when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payment it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats this severance
payment obligation as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income and recorded directly to
retained earnings.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
Long-term leases

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Company as a leasee are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are presented as
long-term liabilities, while the interest element is charged to statement of income over the
lease periods. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of

the lesser periods and the useful lives of the leased assets.

Leases of assets, which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Company, as the leasee, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in statement of income on a straight line basis
over the lease terms. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as

an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in statement of income.
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4.16 Income taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred income taxes.
a. Current income taxes

Current income taxes are provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid
to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.
b. Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,

using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences
while it recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At each reporting period, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or a part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Company records deferred taxes directly to equity if the taxes relate to items that

are recorded directly to equity.
4.17 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the

Company.

They also include associated companies, and individuals or enterprises which directly or
indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning

and direction of the Company’s operations.
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4.18 Fair value measurement

5.1

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case when there is no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using a
valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured

at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categories of inputs to be used in fair value measurements as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:
Allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers, the
management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things,
past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Impairment on reinsurance assets

In determining impairment on reinsurance assets, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates loss on impairment of each reinsurers based on conditions in
contract and events occurred that the Company may not receive entire amount under the

term of contract.
Allowance for impairment on investments in equity securities

The Company treats available-for-sale investments and general investments as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement of the management.
Premises and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the buildings and equipment and to

review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review premises and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding

forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible assets and amortisation

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset
or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of

estimated future taxable profits.
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5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are calculated using the actuarial method based on the
current assumptions or assumptions determined on the policy inception dates, which reflect
the best estimates at that times. The main assumptions used are policy surrender or lapse
rates, selling and administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity, longevity, discount rates,
non-guaranteed dividend rates and so on. However, the use of different assumptions could
affect the amount of life policy reserves and adjustments to the life policy reserves may

therefore be required in the future.
Loss reserves

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and
outstanding claims taking into account two factors. These are the claims incurred and
reported, and the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), the losses on which are
estimated using international standard actuarial techniques. The major assumptions used
under these techniques consist of historical data, including the development of claims
estimates, paid, average costs per claim and claim numbers etc. Nevertheless, such

estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and actual results could differ.
Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are calculated using an actuarial technique, based on the best
estimate of the claims and relevant expenses expected to be paid over the remaining terms
of the insurance. Estimating such reserves requires the management to exercise judgment,

with reference to historical data and the best estimates available at the time.
Obligation under the defined benefit plan

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement.
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5.12

5.13

Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management
is required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or
liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and

arrangements.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises
judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets, and include consideration of credit risk (the Company
and its counterparty), liquidity risk, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value and

disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at

31 December

2017 2016

Cash 1,034 3,000
Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 69,033,204 24,467,297
Deposits at banks with fixed maturity date - 100,000,000
Deposits at other financial institutions 43,791,232 -
Short-term investments in money market

mutual fund 99,262,220 57,441,848
Total cash and cash equivalents 212,087,690 181,912,145

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, saving deposits, fixed deposits and deposits at other
financial institutions carried interests between 0.1 and 1.0 percent per annum and 0.1 and

1.5 percent per annum, respectively.
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7. Reinsurance assets
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2017 2016
Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers
Long-term insurance policy reserves 4,005,634 3,664,928
Unearned premium reserves 9,566 8,913
Total reinsurance assets 4,015,200 3,673,841
8. Reinsurance receivables
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2017 2016
Amounts deposited on reinsurance 53,976,701 56,308,814
Amounts due from reinsurers 158,196,154 216,815,578
Total reinsurance receivables 212,172,855 273,124,392

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers, classified by
overdue periods of principal, are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2017 2016
Not yet due 157,402,355 216,773,031
Overdue not longer than 12 months 793,799 33,002
Over 1 year to 2 years - 9,545
Total amounts due from reinsurers 158,196,154 216,815,578
THAIRE LIFE AsSURANCE pcL. 108



9. Investments in securities

9.1 Classified by types of investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at 31 December
2017 2016
Cost/ Cost/
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value

Trading investments
Equity securities 6,223,658 6,213,240 78,933,171 73,299,100
Less: Unrealised losses (10,418) - (5,634,071) -
Trading investments - net 6,213,240 6,213,240 73,299,100 73,299,100
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities 653,587,368 708,535,161 725,416,554 730,967,536
Add: Unrealised gains 54,947,793 - 5,550,982 -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - (11,048,473) (11,048,473)
Available-for-sale investments - net 708,535,161 708,535,161 719,919,063 719,919,063
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise

securities 768,672,536 468,342,505
Private enterprise debt securities 76,100,016 25,000,000
Deposits at financial institutions which

mature over 3 months 195,000,000 103,000,000
Total held-to-maturity investments 1,039,772,552 596,342,505
General investments
Equity securities 2,105,720 2,105,720
Total general investments 2,105,720 2,105,720
Investments in securities - net 1,756,626,673 1,391,666,388

In the first quarter of 2017, the Company redeemed the government securities that were
classified as held-to-maturity investments, with an amortised cost of Baht 40.6 million and a
face value of Baht 40.0 million. These securities were to mature in the year 2021. However,
the Company’s management had reviewed whether the classification of the remaining
investments in debt instruments as held-to-maturity is appropriate and concluded that the

Company still intends and is able to hold these debt investments to maturity.
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9.2

9.3

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company has reviewed the appropriateness of the
existing classification of its investments in securities and reclassified investments in
marketable securities with fair values at transfer date totaling Baht 75.4 million from trading
investments to available-for-sale investments because the Company intends to hold these
securities as long-term investments in order to earn dividends and does not intend to sell
them in the near term in order to generate profits from changes in securities prices. The
reclassifications resulted in fair value gains of Baht 2.1 million, which were recorded in
statement of income.

Remaining period of debt securities

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, Investments in debt securities have the following
remaining periods to maturity.

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements as at 31 December

2017 2016
Period to maturity Period to maturity
Within Within
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 528,325,652 154,969,360 85,377,524 768,672,536 267,480,822 115,454,331 85,407,352 468,342,505
Private enterprises debt securities 36,128,817 39,971,199 - 76,100,016 15,000,000 10,000,000 - 25,000,000
Deposits at financial institutions
with an original maturity period
longer than 3 months 195,000,000 - - 195,000,000 103,000,000 - - 103,000,000

Total held-to-maturity investments 759,454,469 194,040,559 85,377,524  1,030,772552  385480,822 125454331  85407,352 596,342,505

Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-sale investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
For the years ended 31 December For the years ended 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-
sale investments - net of income taxes
- beginning of the years 4,369,813 (5,044,794) 4,440,786 (4,945,297)
Gains on revaluation during the years 37,591,463 30,868,844 37,539,863 30,833,189
(Gains) losses transferred to be recognised
in statements of income 11,856,948 (19,100,585) 11,856,948 (19,100,585)
Total 49,448,411 11,768,259 49,396,811 11,732,604
Less: Income taxes (9,889,682) (2,353,652) (9,879,362) (2,346,521)
Other comprehensive income for the years -
net of income taxes 39,558,729 9,414,607 39,517,449 9,386,083
Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale
investments - net of income taxes
- end of the years 43,928,542 4,369,813 43,958,235 4,440,786
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9.4

10.

11.

Investments subject to restriction

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company placed some investments as a security with
the Registrar and had some investments placed to guarantee for electricity consumption as

described in Notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements.
Loans

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balances of loans are classified by overdue periods

of principal as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Personal guarantee loans as at
Outstanding periods 31 December
2017 2016
Not yet due 120,379 292,891
Total loans 120,379 292,891

The above are outstanding loans to employees provided in accordance with the employee
welfare plan at the interest rate of not lower than 1.00% per annum and not higher than
MLR-3% per annum. The MLR is reference to that announced by commercial banks.

However, no interest is receivable on such loans at the end of the reporting periods.

Investment in an associate

11.1 Details of an associate

Company’s Country of Issued and paid-up share capital Shareholding percentage held by
name Nature of business incorporation as at 31 December the Company as at 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht) (%) (%)
EMCS Thai Provision of computer Thailand - 30,000 - 20.00
Co., Ltd. services in relation
to motor losses
management
TKI Life Life insurance Lao 66,118 - 32.50
Insurance
Company
Limited
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Company’s name

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

EMCS Thai Co., Ltd.

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

Investment value under equity method

as at 31 December

Investment value under cost method as

at 31 December

2017 2016

2017 2016

22,920
18,586

6,000
21,684

18,586 22,920 21,684 6,000

EMCS Thai Company Limited

On 27 April 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to acknowledge a

letter of intent from Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited, a major shareholder of the

Company, expressing its intention to purchase all shares of EMCS Thai Company Limited

held by the Company.

On 26 July 2017, the Board of Directors meeting of the Company No. 4/2017 passed a

resolution to propose to the Shareholders Meeting to consider and approve the sale of all

shares of EMCS Thai Company Limited held by the Company and to execute the Share

Sale and Purchase Agreement though which the purchaser and seller will trade this stock,

provided that the following precedent conditions are fulfilled or a written waiver has been

granted by the parties who have the right to grant such waiver.

1)

No changes or events have occurred which may have a material adverse effect on
EMCS Thai Company Limited;

The Company has received approval from a meeting of its shareholders to enter into

The purchaser has obtained approval from the Office of Insurance Commission to

The Company and the purchaser have obtained the necessary approvals for the
acquisition or disposal of shares of EMCS Thai Company Limited (as the case may

be) or to complete the transaction as agreed in the Share Purchase Agreement, and;

2)
the share sale transaction;
3)
purchase the shares from the Company;
4)
5)

There are no legal proceedings, claims, or any actions brought by a governmental

authority or any persons to terminate the share sale transaction.
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11.2

On 22 September 2017, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders passed a
resolution to approve the sale of all 1,200,000 shares of EMCS Thai Company Limited held
by the Company, equivalent to 20 percent of the total shares of EMCS Thai Company
Limited, at a price of Baht 50 per share, or a total of Baht 60 million to Thai Reinsurance

Public Company Limited.

In the fourth quarter of 2017, the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC) granted
approval to Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited to purchase the shares of EMCS
Thai Company Limited from the Company. The Company received payment for the shares
on 16 November 2017.

Currently, the conditions of the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled.
The Company recorded the sale of the shares and recognised gain on sale of investment of
Baht 34 million in the financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Baht 54

million in the separate financial statements.

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

During the year, the Company invested in 2,600,000 ordinary shares of TKI Life Insurance
Company Limited, with a par value of LAK 2,000 each, amounting to LAK 5,200 million or
equivalent to Baht 21.7 million, representing 32.5 percent of the share capital of that
company. TKI Life Insurance Company Limited was incorporated in 2016 and is principally
engaged in the operation of life insurance business in Laos. The Company has fully paid up

the shares.
Financial information of the associate

Summarised information about financial position

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life
Insurance
Company Limited EMCS Thai Co., Ltd.
31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2017 2016
Total assets 58,884 - 134,095
Total liabilities (1,696) - (19,493)
Net assets 57,188 - 114,602
Shareholding percentage (%) 32.50 - 20.00
Carrying amount of the associates based on
equity method 18,586 - 22,920
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Summarised information of statements of comprehensive income

TKI Life
Insurance

Company Limited

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

EMCS Thai Co., Ltd

For the
year ended

31 December

For the years ended 31 December

Revenue

Profits (losses) for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

2017 2017 2016
674 109,292 121,424
(6,081) 40,680 45,139
(3,451) (16) (118)
(9,532) 40,664 45,021

(1) Profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 was calculated based on profit from 1 January 2017 until the date

of sold the investments in an associate.

11.3

Share of profit (loss) and other comprehensive loss and dividend income

During the years, the Company recognised shares of profit (loss) and other comprehensive

loss from investment in an associate in the financial statements, in which the equity method

is applied, and recognised dividends received from the associate in the separate financial

statements as below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Share of profit (loss) from

investment in associate for the

Share of other comprehensive

loss from investment in an

associate for the years ended

Dividends received for the

Associate years ended 31 December 31 December years ended 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd. (") 8,136 9,042 (3) (24) 5,040 5,040
TKI Life Insurance
Company Limited (1,976) - (1,122) - - -
6,160 9,042 (1,125) (24) 5,040 5,040

(1) Profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 was calculated based on profit from 1 January 2017 until the date of

sold the investments in an associate.
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As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded investments in associates under
the equity method (in the financial statements in which the equity method is applied) based
on the financial information, as prepared by the associates’ management. However, the
Company obtained the 2016 financial statements of EMCS Thai Co., Ltd., which were
audited by the associate’s auditor under report dated 23 February 2017, showed the
amounts that are not significantly different from the financial information prepared by the

associate’s management used equity-accounting in that year.

Premises and equipment

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and separate financial statements

Furniture,
fixture and Motor
Land Buildings equipment Computers vehicles Total

Cost
As at 1 January 2016 17,640,000 30,937,145 3,921,815 714,271 3,008,606 56,221,837
Additions - 1,175,938 1,135,081 173,608 - 2,484,627
Disposals - - (25,964) - - (25,964)
As at 31 December 2016 17,640,000 32,113,083 5,030,932 887,879 3,008,606 58,680,500
Additions - 2,722,109 1,546,755 1,944,595 - 6,213,459
Disposals - - (405,229) (181,433) - (586,662)
As at 31 December 2017 17,640,000 34,835,192 6,172,458 2,651,041 3,008,606 64,307,297
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2016 - 7,718,624 2,956,725 556,751 2,102,735 13,334,835
Depreciation for the year - 1,586,004 418,307 147,703 601,721 2,753,735
Depreciation on disposals - - (25,963) - - (25,963)
As at 31 December 2016 - 9,304,628 3,349,069 704,454 2,704,456 16,062,607
Depreciation for the year - 1,613,992 573,229 269,115 54,150 2,510,486
Depreciation on disposals - - (405,191) (180,047) - (585,238)
As at 31 December 2017 - 10,918,620 3,517,107 793,522 2,758,606 17,987,855
Net book value
31 December 2016 17,640,000 22,808,455 1,681,863 183,425 304,150 42,617,893
31 December 2017 17,640,000 23,916,572 2,655,351 1,857,519 250,000 46,319,442
Depreciation for the year
2016 2,753,735
2017 2,510,486

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but
are still in use. The original cost before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets

amounted to approximately Baht 2.7 million and Baht 3.0 million, respectively.
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13. Intangible assets

Cost

1 January 2016

Additions

31 December 2016
Additions

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2017
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2016
Amortisation during the year
31 December 2016
Amortisation during the year
31 December 2017

Net book value

31 December 2016

31 December 2017

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Computer
Computer softwares under

softwares development Total
981,787 16,414,528 17,396,315
31,308 7,466,452 7,497,760
1,013,095 23,880,980 24,894,075
5,886,474 11,777,155 17,663,629
35,658,135 (35,658,135) -
42,557,704 - 42,557,704
165,845 - 165,845
100,967 - 100,967
266,812 - 266,812
2,011,911 - 2,011,911
2,278,723 - 2,278,723
746,283 23,880,980 24,627,263
40,278,981 - 40,278,981
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14. Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses
14.1 Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements Changes in deferred
in which the equity method is applied tax assets and liabilities are
and Separate financial statements recognised for the year ended
as at 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016

Deferred tax assets arose from:
Loss reserves 6,990 9,930 (2,940) (1,671)
Commission payable on reinsurance 42,403 32,881 9,522 1,881
Differences between premium/discount on debt

securities recognised at effective interest

rates and interest actually incurred (206) 29 (235) (234)
Unrealised gains on available-for-sale

investments (10,990) (1,110) (9,880) (2,346)
Net deferred commission (13,118) (13,753) 635 1,416
Others 3,072 4,303 (1,231) 1,947
Deferred tax assets 28,151 32,280
Total changes (4,129) 993
Changes recognised in:

- Statements of income 4,843 3,200

- Statements of comprehensive income (8,972) (2,207)

(4,129) 993

14.2 Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are made up as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and

Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Current income taxes:
Interim corporate income tax charge (111,392) (71,451)
Deferred income taxes:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 4,843 3,200
Income tax expenses reported in the statements of income (106,549) (68,251)
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15.

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profits for the

year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profits before income tax expenses

Applicable tax rate
Income taxes at the applicable tax rate
Tax effects of:

Non-taxable revenues

Non-tax deductible expenses

Additional tax-deductible expenses allowed

Others

Total

Income tax expenses reported in statements of

income

Insurance contract liabilities

Long term insurance policy reserves
Loss reserves
Claims incurred and reported
Claims incurred but not yet reported
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves

Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is

applied

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016
542,233 390,000 561,127 385,998
20% 20% 20% 20%
(108,447) (78,000) (112,225) (77,200)
2,889 9,518 6,667 8,718
(1,406) (100) (1,406) (100)
386 411 386 411
29 (80) 29 (80)
1,898 9,749 5,676 8,949
(106,549) (68,251) (106,549) (68,251)
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2017

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net
321,283,566 (4,005,634) 317,277,932
4,340,244 - 4,340,244
30,609,187 - 30,609,187
222,128,295 (9,566) 222,118,729
578,361,292 (4,015,200) 574,346,092
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(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2016

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long term insurance policy reserves 285,412,354 (3,664,928) 281,747,426
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 4,362,250 - 4,362,250

Claims incurred but not yet reported 45,287,997 - 45,287,997
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 182,092,051 (8,913) 182,083,138
Total 517,154,652 (3,673,841) 513,480,811

15.1 Long term insurance policy reserves
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity

method is applied and Separate financial

statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Beginning balances 285,412,354 269,258,855
Reserves increased from new policies and
enforced policies 321,283,566 285,412,354
Decreases in policy reserves (285,412,354) (269,258,855)
321,283,566 285,412,354

Ending balances
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15.2 Loss reserves

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and Separate financial

statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Beginning balances 49,650,247 58,005,606
Claims incurred for the years 932,079,248 965,421,918
Changes in loss reserve 79,219,351 44,280,223
Changes in assumptions for calculating loss
reserves (93,888,416) (52,667,232)

Claims paid during the years (932,110,999) (965,390,268)
Ending balances 34,949,431 49,650,247

15.3 Claim development tables
a. Gross claims table

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Prior to

Accident year/Reporting year 2011 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total

Outstanding claim provision:

- as at accident year / 131,578,954 177,388,453 226,113,053 288,608,228 294,603,119 358,551,964 363,689,673

Reporting year

- Next one year 204,403,156 301,936,463 339,691,796 426,244,997 390,862,969 476,858,625

- Next two years 206,853,930 298,878,147 343,030,869 429,289,768 392,782,278

- Next three years 209,473,930 299,764,147 349,070,304 429,520,630

- Next four years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304

- Next five years 209,473,930 299,768,519

- Next six years 209,473,930

Cumulative claim estimates 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278 476,858,625 363,689,673

Cumulative payments to date (209,473,930)  (299,768,519)  (349,070,304)  (429,520,630)  (392,782,278)  (476,858,625)  (332,749,242)

Total loss reserves 4,009,000 - - - 30,940,431 34,949,431
b. Net claim table

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Prior to

Accident year/Reporting year 2011 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total

Outstanding claim provision:

- as at accident year / 131,578,954 177,388,453 226,113,053 288,608,228 294,603,119 358,551,964 363,689,673

Reporting year

- Next one year 204,403,156 301,936,463 339,691,796 426,244,997 390,862,969 476,858,625

- Next two years 206,853,930 298,878,147 343,030,869 429,289,768 392,782,278

- Next three years 209,473,930 299,764,147 349,070,304 429,520,630

- Next four years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304

- Next five years 209,473,930 299,768,519

- Next six years 209,473,930

Cumulative claim estimates 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278 476,858,625 363,689,673

Cumulative payments to date (209,473,930) (299,768,519) (349,070,304) (429,520,630) (392,782,278) (476,858,625) (332,749,242)

Total loss reserves 4,009,000 - - - - 30,940,431 34,949,431
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15.4 Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in the calculation of long-term insurance policy reserves under

gross premium valuation method for liabilities adequacy test are determined as follows:
a. Mortality rate

The Company uses the Thai mortality table as a basis and adjusts it based on the

Company’s experience.
b. Lapse rates

The Company determines the assumptions based on actual historical lapse rates of the

Company.
c. Discount rate

The Company used zero coupon government bond yield curve as a baseline, adjusted
for the credit spread between these and A-rated corporate debt securities with 5 years to

maturity in order to expiate the illiquidity risk premium.

Key actuarial assumptions in IBNR calculation is the ultimate loss ratio, The ultimate loss
ratio is calculated loss reserves by dividing estimated ultimate losses by estimated ultimate

premiums.

15.5 Unearned premium reserves

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and Separate financial

statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Beginning balances 182,092,051 197,833,952
Premium written for the years 940,110,057 700,976,997
Premium earned during the years (900,073,813) (716,718,898)
Ending balances 222,128,295 182,092,051
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16. Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and Separate financial

statements

31 December

2017 2016
Amounts due to reinsurers 181,944,707 184,402,737
Total due to reinsurers 181,944,707 184,402,737

17. Employee benefit obligations

The movements employee benefit obligations for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016 were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and Separate financial

statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the
years 4,197,790 3,155,407
Included in statements of income:
Current service costs 233,864 226,107
Interest costs 121,307 117,111
Included in statements of comprehensive
income:

Actuarial (gains) losses due to

- Demographic assumptions changes (2,348,029) 570,493
- Financial assumptions changes 887,533 (211,779)
- Experience adjustments 5,995,454 340,451
Total actuarial losses 4,534,958 699,165
Defined benefit obligation at end of the years 9,087,919 4,197,790

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company expected that no long-term employee
benefits payable during the next year.
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As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the weighted average durations of the liabilities for

long-term employee benefit were approximately 8.0 years and 13.0 years, respectively.

The significant assumptions used in calculation of the defined benefit plan were

summarised below.

(Unit: % per annum)

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Discount rate 2.3 3.5
Salary incremental rate 6.5 6.5
Staff turnover rates 11.5-20.0 55-244

The impact from sensitivity analysis on significant assumptions that affect employee benefit

obligations as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are summarised below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
employee benefit employee benefit
Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2017 decrease 31 December 2017
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht

Discount rate 1.0 (402,968) 1.0 472,449
Salary increasing rate 1.0 592,528 1.0 (522,878)
Staff turnover rate 10.0 (375,745) 10.0 443,900

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
employee benefit employee benefit
Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2016 decrease 31 December 2016
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht

Discount rate 1.0 (478,038) 1.0 590,632
Salary increasing rate 1.5 918,719 15 (701,606)
Staff turnover rate 1.8 (306,842) 1.8 355,018
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18.

19.

20.

20.1

Share capital

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company’s has the registered, issued and paid-up

share capital consists of about 600 million shares with par value of Baht 1 per share.
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered

capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
Segment information
Operating segment information reporting

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to make
decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The

Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as President.

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its
products and services and have two reportable segments are “conventional products” and
“non-conventional products”. Segments are differentiated based on the design of the
product, and specifically whether they are a traditional product line available in the current
market or a new type of product in expectation of market demand and the Company can

continuously service.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker has reviewed the operating results of the operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions and assessing performance.
Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and on a basis
consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements.
However, in the part of assets and liabilities, segment performance is measured based on
the same basis applied to the financial statements whereby operating segments were not

separately measured.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with

that for third party transactions.
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Operating segment information for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 can be

classified by type of products as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Conventional Non-conventional
products products Total
Underwriting revenues
Reinsurance premium written 1,201,262,081 956,165,696 2,157,427,777
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded (19,744,872) (1,102,712) (20,847,584)
Net reinsurance premium written 1,181,517,209 955,062,984 2,136,580,193
Less: Unearned premium reserves increased from
prior year (32,061,230) (7,974,361) (40,035,591)

Earned premium 1,149,455,979 947,088,623 2,096,544,602
Underwriting expenses
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

(decreased) from prior year (32,365,354) 67,895,860 35,530,506
Net benefits and claims 494,304,850 420,953,717 915,258,567
Commissions and brokerages expenses - net 396,705,320 193,199,756 589,905,076
Other underwriting expenses 13,454,145 10,709,064 24,163,209
Total underwriting expenses 872,098,961 692,758,397 1,564,857,358
Profit from underwriting 277,357,018 254,330,226 531,687,244
Operating expenses (75,723,075)
Profit from operations 455,964,169
Share of profit from investments in associates 6,159,496
Net investment revenue 76,195,718
Other income 3,913,847
Profit before income tax expenses 542,233,230

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year
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usun IngsUs:NusddIn 911A (VH1BU)

(106,548,984)

435,684,246




20.2

Underwriting revenues
Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Add (less): Unearned premium reserves (increased)

decreased from prior year
Earned premium
Underwriting expenses
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
from prior year
Net benefits and claims
Commissions and brokerages expenses - net
Other underwriting expenses
Total underwriting expenses
Profit from underwriting
Operating expenses
Profit from operations
Share of profit from investments in associates
Net investment revenue
Other revenue
Profit before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Geographic information

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Conventional

products

Non-conventional

products

Total

1,180,369,821
(25,097,874)

794,806,428

1,975,176,249

(25,097,874)

1,155,271,947

794,806,428

1,950,078,375

30,001,792 (14,269,037) 15,732,755
1,185,273,739 780,537,391 1,965,811,130
1,911,315 14,004,214 15,915,529
550,497,499 402,430,932 952,928,431
379,685,419 238,191,898 617,877,317
12,642,092 8,512,600 21,154,692
944,736,325 663,139,644 1,607,875,969
240,537,414 117,397,747 357,935,161

(58,182,161)

299,753,000
9,041,557
77,640,024
3,565,170

389,999,751

(68,251,302)

321,748,449

The Company operates in Thailand only. As a result, all the revenues and assets as

reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable

segment.
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20.3 Major customers

21.

22,

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had net reinsurance

premium written from 3 major life insurance companies totaling Baht 1,418 million and Baht

1,361 million, respectively.

Operating expenses

Personnel expenses

Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Expenses by nature

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
Net claims

Commission expenses

Other underwriting expenses

Personnel expenses

Premises and equipment expenses

Other expenses
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(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
29,074,509 22,835,510
20,890,990 12,517,114

196,288 184,993
25,561,288 22,644,544
75,723,075 58,182,161

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
35,530,506 15,915,529
913,664,672 952,638,407
593,430,549 620,185,623
4,680,753 4,333,328
52,600,071 40,365,638
20,890,990 12,517,114
27,171,180 23,014,537



23.

24,

25.

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is contributed to by both the employees
and the Company on a monthly basis, at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’
basic salaries, based on the length of employment. The fund is managed by Krungsri Fund
Management Company Limited and will be paid to employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. During the years 2017 and 2016, the Company contributed

Baht 2.4 million and Bath 1.9 million, respectively, to the fund.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other
comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the years.
Dividends paid

Dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 consisted of the

following:
Dividend per
Approved by Total dividend share
(Million Baht) (Baht)
Final dividend from 2016 net income Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 21 April 2017 120.0 0.20
Interim dividend for 2017 Board of Director meeting
on 30 August 2017 120.0 0.20
Total dividend paid during 2017 240.0 0.40
Final dividend from 2015 net income Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 22 April 2016 180.0 0.30
Interim dividend for 2016 Board of Director meeting
on 16 August 2016 120.0 0.20
Total dividend paid during 2016 300.0 0.50
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26.

26.1

Related party transactions
Nature of relationship

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The relationship between the Company and its related parties are summarised below:

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited An associate whereby the Company holds 32.5% of
such company shares
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd.™ An associate whereby the Company holds 20.00% of

such company’s shares

Thai Reinsurance Plc.?® Related by way of shareholding

Bangkok Life Assurance Plc.® Related by way of having common directors and shareholding
Thai Life Insurance Plc. Related by way of having common directors and shareholding
Thaire Services Co., Ltd. Related by way of having common directors and shareholder
Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd. Related by way of having common shareholder

() This entity had been considered an associate until the date of sold the investment in an associate and ceased to be a

related company due to no having common directors.

@) This entity had been considered an associate from 19 March 2015 to 10 May 2016 and to a related company from 10 May
2016 onwards.

®) This entity has been considered a related party since 22 April 2016 onwards since it has been started to have common

director since that date.
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26.2 Significant related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had significant
business transactions with its related parties. Such transactions, which have been
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business

between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

2017 2016 Pricing policy
Transaction with associates
Revenues
Dividend income(" 5,040 5,040 Asdeclared
Service revenues 1,050 - Contract rates
Expenses
Service fee expenses? 800 2,994  Contract rates
Transactions with related parties
Revenues
Reinsurance premium written 427,814 291,405 Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Commission income 684 398  Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Claims refundable 727 804  Normal commercial terms for underwriting
Service revenues 1,995 2,206  Contract rate
Expenses
Reinsurance premium ceded 2,232 2,337  Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Claim expenses 232,359 193,438 Normal commercial terms for underwriting
Commission expenses 103,705 82,596 Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Service fee expenses@ 17,164 8,342  Contract rate

() Including in “Net investment income” in statements of income

@ Including in “Operating expenses” in statements of income
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26.3 Outstanding balances

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had the

related parties as follows:

outstanding balances with its

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December

Related parties

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers™
Amounts due from reinsurers®

Amounts deposited on reinsurance®

Deferred commissions expenses

Loss reserves®

Amounts due to reinsurers®

Deferred commissions income

Accrued expenses®

() Including in “Reinsurance assets” in statements of financial position

@ Including in “Reinsurance receivables” in statements of financial position
@) Including in “Insurance contract liabilities” in statements of financial position

@) Including in “Due to reinsurers” in statements of financial position

® Including in “Other liabilities” in statements of financial position

26.4 Directors’ and key management’s remuneration

2017 2016
796 670
34,566 28,122
3,254 11,491
12,703 16,316
18,886 14,438
19,020 34,469
12 9
67 250

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had salaries, bonuses,

meeting allowances and post-employment benefits incurred in respect of its directors and

key management personnel as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

Short-term benefits

Post employment benefits

Total

2017 2016

23,647 23,968
5,627 1,307

29,274 25,275
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27. Assets placed and reserved with the Registrar

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had the following assets placed and
reserved with the Registrar of the Office of Insurance Commission in accordance with the

Life Insurance Act.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2017 2016
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Assets placed
Government bonds 21.0 211 21.0 19.7
Assets reserved as insurance reserves
Government and state enterprise bonds 179.0 182.7 169.0 170.4

28. Other assets subject to restrictions

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had pledged the following assets as
collateral.

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December

2017 2016

Guarantee for electricity consumption

Government bonds 0.1 0.1
29. Commitments and contingent liabilities
29.1 Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no outstanding capital commitments contracted
for computer software installation (2016: Baht 13.3 million).

29.2 Service commitments

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had outstanding service commitments
and future minimum service fees amounting to Baht 4.2 million and Baht 8.4 million,
respectively.
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30. Risks and risk management

30.1 Life insurance risk

Life Insurance risks arising from the conduct of reinsurance activities are managed as

follows:

a.

Product design and development and pricing

The Company has appointed the Product Development Committee to consider
significant issues that would affect the Company’s financial position. Furthermore the
underwriting results are monitored after new products are launched so that they can be
used to improve the products.

Underwriting of reinsurance

The Company has improved its underwriting guidelines based on technical knowledge
and updated statistics, to keep up with changes in market conditions. Moreover, there
are training courses to develop the knowledge and discipline of the underwriting staff
and underwriting audits are performed to ensure that working practices correspond to

the manual.
Retrocession

An excess of loss retrocession program has been implemented as a risk management
tool. The Company buys retrocession coverage for excess of loss in order to limit the
maximum loss per event. In addition, the Company has a policy to retrocede its
business only to retrocessionaires that have credit ratings of at least “A-.”

Reserve estimates

The Company’s loss reserves are examined and certified by independent actuarial
fellows. Moreover, factors that might affect the Company’s loss reserve estimates are
analysed and monitored periodically to ensure they adequately cover its obligations.

Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsurance concentration risk is the risk arising from a concentration of business
written within a particular type of contracts. Reinsurance contracts can be divided into
short-term and long-term, which have different obligations. Long-term reinsurance
contract obliges the Company to provide ongoing coverage without changing premiums
or benefits or canceling the contract whereas short-term contract obliges the Company
on a yearly basis and enables the Company to adjust reinsurance conditions when
renewal is made.
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Hence, in order to prevent any volatility to the Company’s financial position, the
Company has the policy to balance the portfolio mix of long-term and short-term
contracts. The proportion of long-term and short-term contracts in as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows;

(Unit: Percent)

As at 31December

2017 2016
Long-term reinsurance contracts 56.00 55.00
Short-term reinsurance contracts 44.00 45.00
Total 100.00 100.00

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed to analyse the risk that insurance contract liabilities will
increase or decrease as a result of changes in the assumptions used in calculating,
gross and net reserves, profits before taxes, and owner’s equity. The risk may occur
because the frequency of claims, value of claims, or loss adjustment expenses may not

be as expected.
(1) Sensitivity analysis on long-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2017, impacts from changes in assumptions on long-term
insurance policy reserves are shown below:
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2017

Increase
(decrease) in

loss reserves

Increase
(decrease) in Increase

loss reserves (decrease) in

Increase

Change in before after profits before (decrease) in

Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Mortality rate +5 % 46,848,066 46,848,066 (46,848,066) (37,478,453)
Mortality rate 5% (48,021,688) (48,021,688) 48,021,688 38,417,350
Lapse rate +5 % 3,894,028 3,894,028 (3,894,028) (3,115,222)
Lapse rate 5% (3,966,072) (3,966,072) 3,966,072 3,172,858
Discount rate +5 % (8,433,651) (8,433,651) 8,433,651 (6,746,921)
Discount rate -5 % 8,783,112 8,783,112 (8,783,112) (7,026,490)

As at 31 December 2016, the amounts of UPR are higher than the amounts of

GPV reserves. Therefore, the Company did not perform the sensitivity analysis on

long-term insurance policy reserves.
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(2) Sensitivity analysis on short-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, impacts from changes in assumptions on loss

reserves are shown below:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2017
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
loss reserves loss reserves (decrease) in Increase

Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Ultimate loss ratio +5 % 40,629,866 40,629,866 (40,629,866) (32,503,893)
Ultimate loss ratio -5 % (13,650,128) (13,650,128) 13,650,128 10,920,102
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2016
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
loss reserves loss reserves (decrease) in Increase
Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Ultimate loss ratio +5 % 37,646,426 37,646,426 (37,646,426) (30,117,141)
Ultimate loss ratio -5% (8,411,116) (8,411,116) 8,411,116 6,728,893

30.2 Financial risks

a. Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to reinsurance receivables

and investments in debt securities. The Company manages the risk by regularly

evaluating credit quality of its retrocessionaires and issuers of securities and assessing

the ability to pay debt as it comes due, through periodical analysis and monitoring of

their financial positions. The Company has a strict policy to retrocede its business to

foreign retrocessionaires and buy securities from issuers that have credit ratings of at

least A-. Therefore, the Company does not expect to incur material financial losses. The

maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of reinsurance

receivables and investments in debt securities as presented in the statement of financial

position.
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b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and

securities prices may have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company

had no significant financial assets denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is

therefore confined only to interest rate risk and equity position risk.

(1) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks

and investments in debt securities.

The Company has managed interest rate risk by closely monitoring interest rate

movement and incorporating it into investment allocation decision making.

Significant assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in

the table below, with those assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the

maturity date.

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Equity securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Loans
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance receivables
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
- loss reserves

Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and separate financial statements

31 December 2017

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
- - - 212,087 1 212,088 0.10-1.00
528,326 154,969 20,000 65,378 - 768,673 1.32
36,129 39,971 - - - 76,100 1.65
- - - - 716,854 716,854 -
195,000 - - - - 195,000 1.49
120 - - - - 120 3.50
- - - - 212,173 212,173 -
- - - - 321,284 321,284 -
- - - - 34,949 34,949 -
- - - - 181,945 181,945 -
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and separate financial statements

31 December 2016

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 100,000 - - 81,909 3 181,912 0.10-1.50
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities 267,481 74,896 20,000 105,966 - 468,343 1.76
Private enterprise debt securities 15,000 10,000 - - - 25,000 0.00 - 1.86
Equity securities - - - - 795,324 795,324 -
Deposits at financial institutions 103,000 - - - - 103,000 1.75
Loans - 293 - - - 293 3.50
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance receivables - - - - 273,124 273,124 -
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves - - - - 285,412 285,412 -
- loss reserves - - - - 49,650 49,650 -
Due to reinsurers - - - - 184,403 184,403 -

(2) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that change in the market prices of securities will

result in fluctuations in revenues and in the value of assets.

The Company manages the price risk by continually analyzing and monitoring
changes in any factors that might lead to adverse movement in the market price of
the invested securities. The Company has adopted a prudent investment policy and
avoids speculative investments that would jeopardize its capital. The Company
invests in high quality securities that are expected to generate reasonable and

consistent returns.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company has risk from its investments in

securities of which the price will change with reference to market conditions.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its financial assets

and/or procure sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting

in the occurrence of a financial loss.

The Company manages its liquidity position through prudent investment decisions, cash

flow matching of assets and liabilities, and diversification of assets and liabilities to

ensure that adequate cash is available when needed. Moreover, the Company sets its

liquidity position at a higher than that required by the Office of Insurance Commission.

Counting from the financial position date, the periods to maturity of assets and liabilities

held as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments in securities

Loans

Assets under insurance
contracts

Reinsurance receivables

Liabilities under
insurance contracts

Due to reinsurers

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments in securities

Loans

Assets under insurance
contracts

Reinsurance receivables

Liabilities under
insurance contracts

Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2017

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total
212,086,656 - - - 1,034 212,087,690
714,748,401 759,454,469 194,940,559 85,377,524 2,105,720 1,756,626,673

- 120,379 - - - 120,379
- 212,172,855 - - - 212,172,855
- 181,944,707 - - - 181,944,707

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2016

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total
81,909,145 100,000,000 - - 3,000 181,912,145
793,218,163 385,480,822 125,454,331 85,407,352 2,105,720 1,391,666,388
- 172,512 120,379 - - 292,891
- 273,114,847 9,545 - - 273,124,392
- 184,402,737 - - - 184,402,737
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Reinsurance contracts generate annually net reinsurance premium after underwriting
expense throughout term of contracts. Time to maturity of liability from reinsurance
contract as of 31 December 2017 and 2016 are shown below:

(Unit: Percent)

Time to Maturity 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
1 year 14.0 10.2
1 year to 5 years 33.9 29.7
Over 5 years 521 60.1
Total 100.0 100.0

31. Fair value of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had the following financial assets that
were measured at fair value, and had financial assets and liabilities that were measured at

cost but has to disclose fair value, using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2017
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value
Assets measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in money market fund - 99,262,220 - 99,262,220 99,262,220
Trading investments
Equity securities 6,213,240 - - 6,213,240 6,213,240
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities 518,402,696 190,132,465 - 708,535,161 708,535,161
Assets for which fair value are
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash, saving, current accounts
and deposits at other financial
institutions 112,825,470 - - 112,825,470 112,825,470
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities - 775,465,347 - 775,465,347 768,672,536
Private enterprise debt securities - 76,765,431 - 76,765,431 76,100,016
Deposits at bank - 195,000,000 - 195,000,000 195,000,000
Other investments - - 5,089,525 5,089,525 2,105,720
Loans - - 120,379 120,379 120,379
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Assets measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in money market fund
Trading investments
Equity securities
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities
Assets for which fair value are
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash, saving, current and fixed
accounts
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Other investments

Loans

31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value
- 57,441,848 - 57,441,848 57,441,848
73,299,100 - - 73,299,100 73,299,100
420,848,519 299,070,544 - 719,919,063 719,919,063
124,470,297 - - 124,470,297 124,470,297
- 476,729,752 - 476,729,752 468,342,505
- 25,519,018 - 25,519,018 25,000,000
- 103,000,000 - 103,000,000 103,000,000
- - 5,184,283 5,184,283 2,105,720
- - 292,891 292,891 292,891

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets presents according to Note 4.18 to financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, fair value of financial assets was not significant

difference from their book value.
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32.

33.

34.

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of financial

instruments are as follows:

(a) Financial assets and liabilities having short-term maturity periods as cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits at banks with an original maturity period longer than 3
months are presented at fair values, which approximate their carrying amounts in the

statement of financial position.

(b) Investments in debts securities are presented at fair values based on market prices or
prices determined using the yield curve as announced by the Thai Bond Market

Association.

(c) Investments in equity securities are presented at fair values is based on market prices.
In case of non-marketable equity securities, the fair values are determined
approximately using the price to book value ratio, except for investment units, which
are not listed securities, their fair values are the net asset value per unit as announced

by the fund manager.

(d) Loans are presented at fair value, which are estimated by discounting expected future

cash flow by the current market interest rate.
During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management for life insurance companies

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that it has
ability to continue its business as a going concern and to maintain risk-based capital in

accordance with the requirements of the Office of the insurance Commission.
Events after the reporting period

On 20 February 2018, the Board of Directors’ Meeting passed a resolution to be proposed
for approval of dividends in respect of the second half-year operating results of 2017 at
Baht 0.30 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Baht 180 million by the Annual
General Meeting of the Shareholders to be held in April 2018.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 20 February 2018.
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General Information

Company Thaire Life Assurance PCL
Name
Head Office 48/15Rajchadapisek Soi20,Rajchadapisek
Location Road, Samsennok, Huaykwang, Bangkok
10310
Phone: 0-2666-9000
Fax: 0-2277-6227
Nature of Provision of reinsurance
Business (Life insurance business)
Registered 0107554000241
Number
Website www.thairelife.co.th
Registered 600 million ordinary shares of THB 1 each,
Capital, Total THB 600 million
Issued and
Paid-up

Legal Entities in which the Company holds

shares more than 10 percent

Company TKI Life Insurance Company Limited
Name
Head Office Level 4, Zone A office Unit, The Iconic,
Location Unit 11, Phonxay Road,Phonxay Village,
Saysettha District, Vientiane Capital 01000
Lao PDR.
Phone: 856-21417707
Fax: 856-21417705
Nature of Provision of insurance
Business (Life insurance business)
Registered 305013561-9-00
Number
Website www.tki-insurance.com
Registered 8millionordinary shares of LAK 2,000 each,
Capital, Total LAK 16,000 million or approximately
Issued and THB 66 million
Paid-up
Percentage 32.5 percent
Owned
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Other References

Share RegistrarThailand Securities Depository Co.,

/ Transfer

Agent

Auditor

Ltd.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
93 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng,
Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

Phone: 0-2009-9388

Fax: 0-2009-9476

Mrs. Nonglak Pumnoi

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
No. 4172

EY Office Limited 193/136-137 Lake
Ratchada Office Complex FI 33,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

Phone: 0-2264-9090

Fax: 0-2264-0789-90



UNIQUE LIFE RESOLUTIONS

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
48/15 Soi Rajchadapisek 20, Rajchadapisek Road
Samsennok , Huaykwang

Bangkok 10310



